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ABOUT CIFI

Established in 2000 and headquartered in Shanghai, CIFl Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI" or the “Company") is engaged in the property
development, property investment and property management
business in the People’'s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China").
We are a strategy-oriented and shareholder value-focused real
estate enterprise. We develop our business strategies in line with
government policies related to the real estate sector in China.

We have achieved a nationwide geographical coverage and a strong
presence in first-tier cities, second- and third-tier cities with high
growth potential in China. Our business operations are diversified in
terms of geographic locations which facilitate our future expansion.
As at 31 December 2012, we had 49 property projects in three
geographic regions in the PRC: the Yangtze River Delta, the Pan Bohai
Rim and the Central Western Region. Our development properties are
located in 11 cities including Shanghai, Beijing, Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin,
Chongqing, Changsha, Zhenjiang, Jiaxing, Langfang and Tangshan and
covers various properties types like residential, office and integrated
commercial complexes. As at 31 December 2012, we had a land bank
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 6.23 million sg.m.

For our residential property development, we principally focus on
developing high quality, mass market residential properties with small-
to-medium unit sizes, comfortable living environment and locations
with good public transportation links. For our commercial property
development, we principally focus on developing office properties-
for-sale. Additionally, we provide property management services to
our residential and commercial customers through our own property
management companies.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Nationally, we were awarded as one of the China Top 100 Real
Estate Developers from 2006 to 2012 by the Enterprise Research
Institute of Development Research Centre of the State Council, the
Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University and the China
Index Academy. These agencies also named us as one of the Top 10
Real Estate Developers by Profitability and by Operating Efficiency
in 2012. Leveraging our effective business model focused on rapid
asset turnover, its strong execution capabilities, as well as business
strategies developed in line with government policies on China’s real
estate sector, we are poised to continue our rapid growth and develop
into a renowned nationwide property developer.

Looking forward, under our missions of creating value for our
customers and building “for a better life”, CIFI strives to become a
leading and well-respected real estate enterprise in China.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
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Mr. TAN Wee Seng
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. LIN Zhong
Mr. LIN Feng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LO Tai On

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309
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Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

CIFI Honggiao International

5th Floor, Block 3, Lane 288, Tongxie Road
Changning District

Shanghai

PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 2002-2003, 20th Floor

One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.cifi.com.cn

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
First Shanghai Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

China Construction Bank

Bank of Communications

Hong Kong
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tomatsu

LISTING INFORMATION

The Company's ordinary shares have been listed on listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 23
November 2012

(Stock Code: 00884)
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Dear shareholders:

| am pleased to present to you the business review and outlook of CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

RESULTS

The year 2012 was an encouraging one for the Group.

Despite weak sentiment in Hong Kong's equity fund-raising market,
we completed our initial public offering (“IPO"), raising HK$1,669
million and commenced listing of our shares (the “Shares”) on the
Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 23 November 2012,
representing a new milestone for the Group. We were the first
mainstream PRC property developer to debut in the Hong Kong IPO
market after the PRC government's real estate-related austerity
measures started to impact the market in the first quarter of 2011.

The Group also achieved record highs in terms of sales and profit. In
2012, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB9,544.0 million,
representing a significant increase of 75.5% over the previous
year and surpassing our initial yearly sales target set early in the
year. Recognised revenue was RMB8,143.9 million, representing a
significant increase of 103.2% year-on-year. The Group's net profit
attributable to equity owners increased by 44.9% to RMB1,937.1
million in 2012 from RMB1,336.9 million in 2011. The Group's core net
profit attributable to equity owners (excluding changes in fair value and
non-controlling interests, net of deferred taxes) increased by 88.5% to
RMB920.6 million in 2012 from RMB488.5 million in 2011. Our actual
core net profit achieved in 2012 exceeded our forecast of RMB865
million that we promised during our IPO. Our core net profit margin
was 11.3% in 2012. We delivered a core return on average equity of
18.8% in 2012, achieving our stated target.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommended payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2012. The total final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$230.8 million
(approximately RMB186.9 million), representing a dividend payout ratio
of approximately 20.3% on the core net profit attributable to equity
owners (excluding changes in fair value and non-controlling interests,
net of deferred taxes).

REVIEW IN 2012

Market review and sales performance

In 2012, transaction volumes and prices in China’s property market
stabilised. As homebuyers have already adapted to the regulatory
measures in place, market sentiment has improved since Chinese
New Year anchored by demand driven by first-time purchasers and
first-time home upgraders, as well as a more accommodating credit
environment.

During the year, the Group successfully executed its high asset-
turnover and high sell-through business model to capture the
robust demand for mass market housing from end-users. The
Group decisively realigned its operating strategies two years ago,
restructuring its land bank to focus on two mainstream products:
mass market residential and office-for-sale projects, and enabling the
“two high” operating model. Benefitting from the success of the
realignment of our operating strategies two years ago and the massive
increase in our efficient saleable resources, our contracted sales and
contracted GFA reached RMB9,544.0 million and 1,026,200 sg.m.
respectively in 2012, both representing record highs for the Group.
Over 95% of our contracted sales in 2012 were derived from first- and
second-tier cities.

The Group placed high priority on cash collection from sales proceeds.
Benefitting from our proactive and effective cash recuperation
measures and improved mortgage disbursements from local
PRC banks, our cash collection from property sales amounted
to RMB8,957.9 million, representing a ratio of 93% of our yearly
contracted sales. Our corresponding average asset turnover ratio in
2012 was 47.8%.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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REVIEW IN 2012 (continued)

Market review and sales performance (Continued)

Our contracted sales in 2012 was dispersed among 28 development
projects in 10 cities, of which nine projects were new development
projects which started pre-sale in 2012, including: Shanghai CIF|
Private Mansion, Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International, Shanghai CIFI
Luxury Courtyard, Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard, Hefei CIFI Private
Mansion, Beijing CIFI International Negotiate Garden, Tianjin CIFI
Rosedale, Chongging CIFI Langyuejun and Changsha CIFI Private
Mansion. The remaining 19 projects were subsequent sales launches.

We ranked 38th and 44th nationally in terms of contracted GFA
and contracted sales in 2012 according to the “Top 50 Real Estate
Enterprise Property Developers by Sales in 2012" list jointly compiled
and issued by China Real Estate Information Corporation and China
Real Estate Appraisal Center.

Properties delivered and commencing construction

In 2012, we delivered completed properties with a total GFA
amounting to approximately 735,000 sg.m. (2011: 354,000 sg.m.),
representing a massive increase of 107.6%. Accordingly, we derived
recognized revenue of RMB7,991.5 million from sales of properties
in 2012. Our major completed property projects in 2012 included
Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay, Beijing CIFI Private Mansion, Beijing CIFI
Purple County, Suzhou CIFI Canal County, Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp
Town, Hefei CIFI Central Park, and Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard.

In 2012, we commenced construction of new properties projects
which will amount to a total planned GFA of approximately 1.5 million
sg.m. (2011: 1.1 million sg.m.).
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REVIEW IN 2012 (continued)

Land acquisition

In 2012, we adhered to our strategy-driven, disciplined and systematic
land acquisition approach. During the year, we purchased 12 new
projects in Shanghai, Suzhou and Tianjin with a total planned GFA of
approximately 1,500,000 sg.m. for a total contracted consideration of
RMB3,431.7 million. Based on the contracted land acquisition prices,
the average cost of our land acquisitions in 2012 was approximately
RMB2,300 per sgq.m. Of the 12 newly acquired projects, nine new
projects were acquired at the lowest bidding price. During the year,
our cash outflow for the land acquisition and related payments
amounted to RMB3,157 million.

We strived to evaluate every government land auction opportunity in
cities we follow, to follow disciplined investment-decision procedures,
and to be cautious in bidding. We focused our land acquisition
resources on two main stream products: mass market residential
projects and office-for-sale projects. We placed strong emphasis
on expanding our land bank in the affluent first- and second-tier
cities under our existing operational coverage with the objectives
of maximising our scale and strengthening our operations in these
existing cities.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's overall land bank amounted to
a total GFA of approximately 6.23 million sg.m., of which attributable
GFA amounted to approximately 5.90 million sg.m. The average unit
cost of our overall land bank was approximately RMB2,200 per sg.m.

Cost and expense control

In 2012, the Group's cash outflow of construction and related capital
expenditures amounted to approximately RMB3,743 million, in line
with its planned capital expenditure budget. During the year, we
implemented stringent measures to control our construction costs,
effectively minimizing deviations from our target construction costs.

During the year, the Group implemented a number of initiatives to
control its selling and general administrative expenses to enhance
utilisation and reduce wastage. As a result, our selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of contracted sales in 2012
decreased to0 5.6% (2011: 6.6%).

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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REVIEW IN 2012 (continued)

Financial management

In 2012, we sustained our prudent financial management strategies by
relying on cash-on-hand for new land acquisitions and controlling our
off-balance liabilities.

During the year, we strengthened our equity through the IPO and
enjoyed good operating cash inflow from strong sales of properties. As
at 31 December 2012, we dramatically reduced our net debt-to-equity
ratio to 62.5% (31 December 2011: 141.5%), such net gearing ratio
that is now within a comfortable range for our operations. In addition,
our debt structure improved due to the longer duration and lower
proportion of non-bank borrowings.

Other than balance sheet liabilities, we also paid close attention to our
off-balance sheet liabilities. As at 31 December 2012, we had unpaid
land premiums of approximately RMB1,501.7 million, a low level
compared to our peers in the industry.

Organisational and human resources development

The Group made significant progress in corporate culture, recruitment
and developing its leadership. During the year, we also attracted a
number of mid-to-high level management personnel from leading
real estate companies in China to join us. We also promoted our
management trainee program at various reputable universities in China
and successfully recruited highly talented university graduates. We
invested significant resources in improving our internal management
standards and talent development. Our investments in new talent and
our staff enhancement programs provide a solid talent reserve for the
Group's future growth.

Brand building and customer satisfaction

We strongly believe that a premium brand improves our pricing power
and profitability in times of positive market sentiment and to enhance
our sales rate and turnover in challenging market conditions. A
premium brand also drives customer loyalty and facilitates our efforts
to expand our business.
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REVIEW IN 2012 (continued)

Brand building and customer satisfaction (Continued)

Since 2011, we have engaged a third-party consultancy firm to
research and track our customers’ satisfaction ratings for the purpose
of internal evaluation and improving customer satisfaction. In 2012,
we made significant improvements in customer satisfaction according
to the third-party surveys, showing a sign that our brand recognition
has continued to strengthen.

Social responsibilities

In line with our corporate growth, we strive to fulfill our corporate
social responsibilities. In 2012, we actively participated in various
charitable activities, including funding our own charitable foundation,
sponsoring various primary and secondary schools across the country,
rewarding outstanding teachers, and subsidising underprivileged
students to complete their studies and to fulfill their life-time goals.

OUTLOOK

Driven by three major forces (urbanization, sustainable economic
growth and population growth in first-tier and key second-tier cities),
we believe that the real estate industry in China is still in a long term
growth phase. Despite the market volatility due to government control
measures, high quality properties catering to end-users’ demand will
remain strong for some time. We expect government administrative
policies in the real estate sector to remain in place for the foreseeable
future. Product reversion to livable housing and end-users’ demand as
a result of the current series of government control measures will lead
to a healthier path of development for the industry over the long term.

Looking forward, the Group will strive to achieve sustainable, stable
and high quality growth for the sake of developing our core business.
The Group will concentrate on development projects characterized by
fast turnaround, high sell-through and improving prospects. We will
continue to emphasise and strengthen our asset turnover, return-on-
equity and cash flow management.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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OUTLOOK (Continued)

Regarding our land reserves, we will follow our disciplined investment
criteria and selectively acquire quality sites as and when investment
opportunities arise so as to ensure growth in saleable resources.
The Group will focus on expanding in China's first- and second-
tier cities with large populations, are of substantial market size, and
with sustainable inflow of residents and investment capital. We will
prioritize our resources to fully cover our existing three operating
regions and will enlarge the scale and strengthen our existing cities in
which we have entered with the aim of enhancing our economies of
scale and operational efficiency.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation
to all employees for their hard work and to shareholders for their
support in the challenging but yet rewarding year last year.

CIFl Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
LIN Zhong
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REBE PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
RERR
= ZZ——%  Year-on-Year
2012 2011 Growth
ERHE Contracted sales
ARHEESBARERET) Contracted sales (RMB'million) 9,544 5,437 75.5%
AREEEERE(CFLK) Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 1,026,200 541,000 89.7%
AREEFHEEARET,FHK)  Contracted ASP (RMB/sq.m.) 9,300 10,050
TEHRKER Selected financial information
ERRRANREEET) Recognised revenue (RMB'million) 8,144 4,008 103.2%
EMAR®BEET) Gross profit (RMB'million) 1,926 1,369 40.7%
FRMB(BEEATEYS) Profit for the year (including fair value gains)

(AREBHE&ET) (RMB'million)

— BT ER ~ Including non-controlling interest 2,021 1,462 38.2%

— IR R AR A — Attributable to equity owners 1,937 1,337 44.9%
A FFE (T REATFERS) Core net profit (excluding fair value gains)

(ARE¥BET) (RMB'million)

— BEIHE R R ~ Including non-controlling interest 915 615 48.8%

— B RS A — Attributable to equity owners 921 489 88.5%
BEEANREEET) Total assets (RMB'million) 26,857 19,225 39.7%
BITHEGLERS (PETRERS) Bank balances and cash (including restricted cash)

(ARERET) (RMB'million) 4,613 2,596 77.7%
BITREMETEEARBETET) Total bank and other borrowings (RMB'million) 8,865 7,752 14.4%
BAgRERE(AREESET) Total equity (RMB'million) 6,941 3644 90.5%
PR AR (ARBEEL)  Equity attributable to equity owners (RMB'million) 6,550 3,271 100.2%

1+ JB¥E « EAEE Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion
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b5 fB#E o L[ Beijing CIFI Purple County
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REWE

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS (continuea)

BiEE ZE--F | 2%
Notes 2012 2011

TEHBLLE Selected financial ratios
EFIE Gross profit margin 23.1% 34.2%
AT B Core net profit margin 1 11.3% 12.2%
T8 EFE R Average asset turnover ratio 2 47.8% 39.1%
PR O] R Return on average equity 3 18.8% 19.2%
HE EER AR Net debt-to-equity ratio 4 62.5% 141.5%
FHEHAA Average cost of borrowings 5 8.5% 9.8%
TELEHE Selected operating data
FARTEECGEERE - TAK) Land bank (GFA, sq.m.), end of year

— A&t —Total 6,234,400 5,516,900

— &G — Attributable 5,898,200 5,258,000
FRERMNEEEE(FEAHK) Delivered GFA (sq.m.), during the year

— A&t —Total 734,700 354,100

— &l — Attributable 734,700 354,100
FRFBELIUEERE New land acquisition (GFA, sq.m.),

(EEEETE - oK) during the year

— A&t —Total 1,487,800 2,184,000

— el — Attributable 1,335,100 2,114,400
BIRE - Notes:

1.

T % T 2 T AR 9 AR SR A e PR A AR L T IR (1
BIEAFERR)BFACERRALRETE -

FHEERERREZMRFENAREESHE
BIA(TFHREERBREDE)GE

PR A EIRE TR RS B R IR R
AFME (BB A TERE) B AR RS
B A SRS -

REHEELERE - R ERRAL R YR EER
PREA TS SR ARG H A ERTT IR B (S SRR B IR 7T
%ﬁi - RERERBRSREBAEZEFENTD
HtEtE -

FORRRATIRAN SR AFE(BEXHREER
10) B DA% B B B AR YR B B 765 3 5 2R B0 7 19
RITREAMEREE -

112
1

The calculation of core net profit margin is based on core net profit attributable to equity
owners (excluding fair value gains) over total recognised revenue.

The calculation of average asset turnover ratio is based on contracted sales divided by
(average total asset less investment properties) during each financial year.

The calculation of return on average equity is based on our core net profit attributable to
equity owners (excluding fair value gains) divided by average equity attributable to equity
owners for each financial year.

Net debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by our total bank and other borrowings under IFRS
less bank balances, cash and restricted cash as a percentage of total equity at the end of
each financial year.

Average cost of borrowings is calculated by total interest expenses (expensed and
capitalised) divided by average bank and other borrowings under IFRS during each financial
year.

EE B ¢ BiEAES Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town

JBIEIER (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFH

K2 JB#E « AL Tianjin CIFI Rosedale
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[ b EE B 8%

ERHE
RZZE—ZF AEBEERGREES
¥ 49 A R #59,544,000,000 7T (2 ZBK B
REBEEEBERBAR) R_T——F
AIRIERT5.56% c AEBAERIEESRE
AEERFEHRAEE B MFAT IR
EEXRKE  AEEMNEEREE
MM RZT—ZF  AEEE
A $5 & 49 41,026,200 F KB LM
& BEFEMETR - K=ZA - B
BRAEENEREESHEORARKE
5,627,000,0007T + A R#2,207,000,000
7t M A R #1,710,000,000 7T © 7 Bl A
REBAREEREARBG9% * 23% &
18%

FA - AEEFHEERER(AREE
SREEFHREERREMENEDLL)
RZE——FREFL78%  —FT——
FRIR391% - BEERAEENZ - FH
REBRNETREERAEBE RS AR

g o

K JB¥E ¢ #FEEE Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

In 2012, the Group achieved contracted sales of approximately
RMB9,544 million (all from the Group's operating subsidiaries)
representing a significant growth of 75.5% as compared to 2011.
The significant growth in the Group’s contracted sales was mainly
attributable to the corresponding increase in the Group’s saleable
resources as a result of the Group's reinforced operating strategies
since two years ago. In 2012, the Group contracted sales of
approximately 1,026,200 sg.m. in GFA, representing an increase of
89.7% over the previous year. The contracted sales in Yangtze River
Delta, Pan Bohai Rim and Central Western Region were approximately
RMB5,627 million, RMB2,207 million and RMB1,710 million,
contributing to 59%, 23% and 18% of the Group's total contracted
sales respectively.

During the year, the Group's average asset turnover ratio (contracted
sales as a percentage of average total assets less investment
properties) improved to 47.8% in 2012, versus 39.1% in 2011.
The improved asset turnover ratio was an evidence of the Group's

successful implementation of high asset turnover and high sell-
through strategies.

= JBBES Jiaxing CIFI Square

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EithERR % e PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
ERAEE®) Contracted sales (Continued)
R— ZE-——FLARHEFES Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2012
REBE S By project
EASRME
SEAAN AEHE REHE
BRTERAME ERHEELE % of Total BEEEE FIEE
Primary intended Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
EH Project use of the project sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥T,/
(AR%T ) (EHXK) FHK)
(RMB000) (%) (sq.m)  (RMB/sq.m.)
78 J8IE 0 B Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay FEIEE 941,150 99 64,200 14,660
Residential projects
LB BE«BATEE Shanghai CIFl Private Mansion F=xEHR 367,115 39 26,500 13,853
Residential projects
L5 BB e FiE Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay +=£1BH 889,865 93 89,800 9,909
Residential projects
78 J85E ¢ SRt Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden F2ER 26622 03 3,000 8874
Residential projects
FfF fBIE o EjE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard %8R 334,462 35 21,100 15,851
Residential projects
0 JESE o TSR Shanghai CIFI Honggiao Intenational ~ $5E R 318 B 223,864 24 8,900 25,153
Office-for-sale projects
EF fBIE o HITEIRR Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International ~ $4ERIFgH#1E B 248,650 26 13,500 18419
Office-for-sale projects
b B e TR ES Shanghai CIFI Century Square SHER B HIE 3,154 * 700 4,50
Office-for-sale projects
b B « (REE Shanghai CIF| La Baie D'Evian FEHEE 17,381 02 1500 11,587
Residential projects
1§ B « BAE Shanghai CIF| Pebble Beach FEEE 2,009 * 2,500 804
Residential projects
& 181 « BREED Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town FEIEH 22,140 02 3,400 6,512
Residential projects
FM fBKE o A Suzhou CIFI Canal County FEER 710,398 74 76,400 9,298
Residential projects
BN IR o BAETS Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town F=ER 341,589 38 44,400 7,693
Residential projects
EM J87% o HEE Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard FEIEE 203,107 21 25,000 8124
Residential projects
AL fB¥E o R EE (—H)) Hefei CIFl Central Park (Phase | FEEE 3,701 * 600 6,168
Residential projects
AHE 1858 o R ZE(—H3) Hefei CIFl Central Park (Phase FEIER 106,258 11 14,200 7483
Residential projects
AHE 1858 o HFF(—H) Hefei CIFI Private Mansion (Phase )~ {(¥=238 8 617390 6.5 94,200 6,554
Residential projects
BIE 1BIE o HF(—H) Hefei CIFl Private Mansion (Phase l) {218 B 166,782 18 23,000 7251
Residential projects
ST TBIB e BN Zhenjiang CIFl Times FxIER 220,433 23 24,300 9,071
Residential projects
BB (EE)BRAR | —T——FFHK 19
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)

Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2012 (Continued)

RIEB &P () By project (Continued)
EASRME
SHEAA REHE REHE
BRTERAME REHESHE % of Total BEEE FIEE
Primary intended Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
EH Project use of the project sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥T,/
(AR%T ) (EHK) FHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
=W BEES Jiaxing CIFl Square FEIER 180,546 19 18,000 10,030
Residential projects
bR 18I o BT Beijing CIFI Private Mansion FEHE 1,534,948 16.1 82,000 18,719
Residential projects
bR JBFE ¢ KEL Beijing CIFI Purple County FFIER 8,045 0.1 8,500 946
Residential projects
I B o EHFL Beijing CIFl International Negotiate ~ 44& 7/ 3B B 297,768 31 25,600 11,632
Garden Office-for-sale projects
B33 B o + A FB(ZE8) Langfang CIFl Path Walf (Phase )~ £=EI8 R 41811 04 5,900 7,087
Residential projects
Bsy JBIE o + N =HA) Langfang CIFI Path Walf (Phase ) (F=£IER 46,370 05 4,600 10,080
Residential projects
K2 1058 o BE Tianjin CIFI Rosedale F=EIEH 278,104 29 36,800 71557
Residential projects
BE BE « BAEEN(—H])  Chongging CIFl Ronchamp Town FEIAR 200 * 30 6,667
(Phase ) Residential projects
B B o BAEEN(ZH))  Chongging CIFl Ronchamp Town FEIHER 602 * 80 7525
(Phase Il) Residential projects
BE JBFE o BAAEES(=H)  Chongaing CIFl Ronchamp Town FxIER 33,142 0.4 5790 5,724
(Phase IIl) Residential projects
BE 1852 o BAEEP(IMER)  Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town FEEE 92,638 10 14,200 6,524
[Phase IV) Residential projects
BF fBE o BAEER(THE)  Chongging CIFl Ronchamp Town F=EHE 460,810 48 82,700 5,572
(Phase V) Residential projects
EE BB o BRULE Chongging CIFI Langyuejun FFIER 318,714 33 50,100 6,362
Residential projects
EY 1BIE o A Changsha CIFI Upward Community F=xEH 4,385 0.1 400 10,963
Residential projects
EY BEeERE Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard EFIER 376,477 39 78,300 4,808
Residential projects
KD 1852 o #IFF Changsha CIF| Private Mansion F=EA 423,362 44 76,000 5,571
Residential projects
A Total 9,543,992 100.0 1,026,200 9,300
* L10.1% * less than 0.1%
20 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EiER R ») PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
ARBE ) Contracted sales (Continued)
RIEEEESD By type of project

F=mEA Residential projects 8,770,556 919 977,510 8,972
SHERIIIEE Office-for-sale projects 773,436 8.1 48,700 15,882
&&t Total 9,543,992 100.0 1,026,210 9,300
BT E D By city

i Shanghai 3,076,412 322 235,100 13,086
R Beijing 1,840,761 19.3 116,100 15,855
M Suzhou 1,255,094 13.2 145,800 8,608
A Hefei 894,131 9.4 132,000 6,774
Xz Tianjin 278,104 29 36,800 7,557
BE Chongging 906,106 95 152,900 5,926
£ Changsha 804,224 8.4 154,700 5,199
T Zhenjiang 220,433 23 24,300 9,071
i Jiaxing 180,546 19 18,000 10,030
i Langfang 88,181 0.9 10,500 8,398
A% Total 9,543,992 100.0 1,026,200 9,300

TR (RE)BRARF | T —FFH 21
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Eiﬁéﬁﬁﬁ(%) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
CEEBEE®E) Contracted sales (Continued)
Bt EE D By region
HBERHE
SHEESL EREME ARHE
ERHEESHE % of Total EEmE FIGEE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
ON:S: 54
(AR®T ) (FFHXK) FFK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
E=A Yangtze River Delta 5,626,616 59.0 555,200 10,134
RE Pan Bohai Rim 2,207,046 23.1 163,400 13,507
AR PEER Central Western Region 1,710,330 17.9 307,600 5,560
&&t Total 9,543,992 100.0 1,026,200 9,300
B  —ER=EHTES By first-, second- and third-tier cities
ERERHEE
SHEEIL CRHE ERHE
SRMESHE % of Total EEEE FI9EE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥R,/
(AR®F ) (EHXK) FI5K)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
— i m First-tier cities 4,917,173 51.5 351,200 14,001
TR Second-tier cities 4,137,659 434 622,200 6,650
=il Third-tier cities 489,160 5.1 52,800 9,264
B Total 9,543,992 100.0 1,026,200 9,300
PRE - Notes:
1. A FARIEESIEBIEEEEEN - 1. The above contracted sales data includes sales of carparks.
2. — iR TE B NIE R o 2. First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.
3. i TiEEN - AR K2 EEBREY - 3. Second-tier cities refer to Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin, Chongging and Changsha.
4. SERWTIEET c 2 B EREL - 4. Third-tier cities refer to Zhenjiang, Jiaxing, Langfang and Tangshan.

RZE——F+-_HA=+—8 KEHE
#98 AR #7,400,000,0007CH) 2 22 4918
HARERIEE - AAEECDEREAR
RIRERE T BEEE -

PHEY DB A
TE-HFRNEEEEERBAD
A AR 179915000007 @ IREER
104.2% * B FERUAFEEEI81% - I
—E——F - XEBRXNMNHT734,700F 5
KELEEENYE(EHXREEECENE
NaE)  BFEERI107.5% - REBIHEE
VENBERIAIZN - BB R FEE
AL I —2R -
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As of 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately RMB7.4 billion
contracted but unrecognized sales which formed a solid basis for
Group’s future growth in recognised revenue.

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

Revenue recognised from sales of properties in 2012 was
approximately RMB7,991.5 million up by 104.2% year-on-year,
accounted for 98.1% of total recognised revenue. In 2012, the Group
delivered approximately 734,700 sq.m. of properties in GFA (all from
its operating subsidiaries), up by 107.5% year-on-year. The increase in
Group's revenue recognised from sales of properties was in line with
the increase in GFA delivered.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EihERE )

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

HEMECERWA ) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
RO ZE——FEREYEHBENEHE Table 2: Breakdown of recognised revenue from property sales in
B4 PN EE 2012
REB &S By project
RERERRA
HEFERAAR BERA
Primary intended use ERARA % of Total EXNERERR ERATYIER
EH Project of the project Recognised revenue recognised revenue Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR¥T ) (F7XK) (AR%T/L5HX)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZB-CF | 22— 4% |Z%-CF |ZF——F |ZB--F |ZT——F |=8-=F | =2—F%
2012 201 2012 201 2012 201 2012 201
L& BB e B3 Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay FEEE 1574575 - 197 - 105,400 - 14,939 -
Residential projects
L8 1% « SIABER  Shanghai CIFI Honggiao Intemational  $HE R/ IR R 134,345 826,190 17 211 4,000 31,900 33586 25918
Office-for-sale projects
LB JBI% o 1285 Shanghai CIFI Century Square HERRIIRR 2,79 2742 C 01 600 500 4,657 5,484
Office-for-sale projects
5 JBFE o k2% Shanghai CIFI La Baie D'Evian FEER 17,380 195,228 0.2 50 1,500 15,100 11,587 12,929
Residential projects
7§ JBIE o BAEES  Shanghai CIFl Ronchamp Town FERE 21972 634,447 03 162 4,000 21300 5,493 29786
Residential projects
/5 B2 ¢ 57#EME  Shanghai CIF New Dream FEHE 4,058 3,086 * 01 1,500 1,300 2,105 2374
Residential projects
M J8#8 e LE  Suzhou CIFl Canal County FEEE 901533 - 13 - 95,800 - 941 -
Residential projects
&N BB o BAEEL  Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town FEEE 358,733 - 45 - 43,100 - 8323 -
Residential projects
M BB o EIZHE  Suzhou CIFI California Bay FEHE 4,500 - & - 300 - 15,000 -
Residential projects
AL BB e REE Hefei CIFl Central Park FEHE 691,973 338,281 8.7 86 91,200 45,700 1,587 7402
Residential projects
ST JBIE @ BAEED  Zhenjiang CIFI Ronchamp Town FEEE - 6,595 - 02 - 3,100 - 2127
Residential projects
=E BEES Jiaxing CIFI Square FEHE 134,220 644,379 11 16.5 13,600 53,800 9,869 197
Residential projects
IR B  HIFF Beijing CIFI Private Mansion FEHE 2,153,056 - 269 - 115,300 - 18,674 -
Residential projects
R TBIE ¢ K2 Beijing CIFl Purple County F=B8E 775,290 - 97 - 46,900 - 16,531 -
Residential projects
IR JBIE o B Beijing CIFI Olympic City HERIIRR - 5262 - 01 - 2,100 - 2,506
Office-for-sale projects
5% JBIE o +UsF5  Langfang CIFI Path Walf FEER 204,258 486,790 26 124 22,700 56,000 8998 8693
Residential projects
EfE fBE e BFE  Chongging CIF Ronchamp Town FEEE 319,407 656,415 40 168 45,700 100,200 6,989 6,551
Residential projects
R 1B o B Changsha CIFl Upward Community =278 8 4520 114,269 0.1 29 500 23,100 9,040 4947
Residential projects
KD BB e EjE Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard FEEA 688,851 - 86 - 142,600 _ 4831 _
Residential projects
At Total 1,991,465 3,914,284 100.0 100.0 734,700 354,100 10,877 11,054
* LH0.1% * less than 0.1%

JBIEIER (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFH
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Eﬂi’:éﬁﬁ ﬁ(%) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
HHEMECEIRRAE) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
REBERE D By type of project
EERRBA
BEASL
2320 ON % of Total ERANAEEAR ERATHEE
Recognised revenue recognised revenue Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR¥TT) (FF7K) (AR¥TT/FHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
B | T | ZB-Zf | T——% | ZB--fF | % | ZB-=f | . T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
F=F1EE Residential projects 1,854,326 | 3,079,490 98.3 78.7 730,100 319,600 10,758 9,635
HERRIRIER Office-for-sale projects 137139 834,79 1.7 273 4,600 34,500 29,813 24197
A&t Total 1,991,465 | 3914284 100.0 1000 134,700 354,100 10,877 11,054
R E D By city
EERRBA
BEASL
BRARA % of Total BRAEREER BRATYEE
Recognised revenue recognised revenue Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR F ) (EFK) (AE¥T,/FHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
SRS | ZFF | 2R SF | 25 F | 2F-CF | 2R F | 28-0F | ZFF
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 20M
D! Shanghai 1,755,124 1,662,293 220 425 117,000 70,100 15,001 23,713
it= Beijing 2,928,346 5,262 36.6 0.1 162,200 2,100 18,054 2,506
#M Suzhou 1,264,766 - 158 -| 139200 - 9,086 -
= Hefei 691,973 338,281 8.1 8.6 91,200 45,700 1,581 7,402
BF Chongging 319,407 656,415 4.0 16.8 45,700 100,200 6,989 6,551
E» Changsha 693,371 114,269 8.1 29 143,100 23,100 4,845 4,947
BT Zhenjiang - 6,595 - 0.2 - 3,100 - 2127
=30 Jiaxing 134,220 644,379 1.1 16.5 13,600 53,800 9,869 11,977
J3%) Langfang 204,258 486,790 25 124 22,700 56,000 8,998 8,693
A&t Total 7,991,465 | 3914284 100.0 1000 134,700 354,100 10,877 11,054

g JB#E ¢ fREE Shanghai CIFI La Baie D'Evian
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Eiﬂ},EEﬁ ﬁ(%fgj) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
HEVECERWRA (&) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
Rt EE 5 By region
{EERRBA
BEEAL
BRAKA % of Total BRAEREEE BRATYER
Recognised revenue recognised revenue Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR%Tx) (EHK) (AE¥T,/FHK)
(RMB000) (%) (sq.m) (RMB/sq.m)
B |2 ¥ || F |8z | —F|=8-=F | 2—#
2012 201 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 20m
k=A Yangtze River Delta 3,846,083 | 2,651,548 481 67.7 361,000 172,700 10,654 15,353
RYE Pan Bohai Rim 3,132,604 492,052 39.2 12.6 184,900 58,100 16,942 8,469
FrEs Central Western Region 1,012,778 770,684 12.1 197 188,800 123,300 5,364 6,250
At Total 7,991,465 | 3,914,284 100.0 100.0 734,700 354,100 10,877 11,054
B  —HBR=EHTES By first-, second- and third-tier cities
EEBZBA
BEEAL
] ON % of Total BRAARERR BRATYER
Recognised revenue recognised revenue Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR¥T ) (EHK) (AE¥T,/FHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
2|2 % |ZB-ZF | 2% | ZB--F | -5 | ZF-=fF | _T——F
2012 201 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201
— B m First-tier cities 4,683,470 | 1,667,555 58.6 426 279,200 72,200 16,775 23,096
—igEm Second-tier cities 2,969,517 | 1,108,965 312 28.3 419,200 169,000 7,084 6,562
=W Third-tier cities 338,478 | 1,137,764 4.2 29.1 36,300 112,900 9,324 10,078
A% Total 7,991,465 | 3,914,284 100.0 100.0 734,700 354,100 10,877 11,054
BI5E Notes:
1. LA & RSHESIRBEEEFEN - 1. The above contracted sales data includes sales of carparks.
2. —fEWTE B RAER . 2 First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.
3. TR mEEEMN AR KFE - BEEBRED - 3. Second-tier cities refer to Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin, Chongging and Changsha.
4 TR TIEET c BE - BRI REL - 4 Third-tier cities refer to Zhenjiang, Jiaxing, Langfang and Tangshan.

TERSEYE
RIE——FFE  AEBHAOATKE
BRESE®IEL A1,200,000F 5K (=
T ——F : 600,000 FFK) R_F
——%+-—RA=+—H K~AEEHF161E
ERXWEER  AEEHRRFRE
ST A400,000F /5K °

BAE R HERRBRMYE
RIZE——FFE  AEEFHEIWE
B S EFE X 41,500,000 F K (ZF
——4F 1 1,100,000F J7K) e R T ——
F+-A=1+—H AEBEFIJEM
PR FERRAENYMERE  BEE
ME&4) 45,800,000 F /7K o

JBIEIER (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFH

Completed properties held for sale

During the year 2012, the GFA of newly completed projects of the
Group amounted to approximately 1.2 million sg.m. (2011: 0.6 million
sg.m.). As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 16 completed
properties projects with a total unsold or undelivered GFA of
approximately 0.4 million sgq.m..

Properties under development/held for future development
During the year 2012, the GFA of properties newly commenced
construction by the Group was approximately 1.5 million sg.m.
(2011: 1.1 million sg.m.). As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 33
property projects under development or held for future development
with a total GFA of approximately 5.8 million sgq.m..
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EiERE

HAEWA
AEBR-ZZ—Z—FHHESKABAR
#544,400,0007T * EFHEKR257.7% © 1
753 2 i R 4G T E 52 BB IR 35 Y
BERERESES - HBEESKA
ENFTER

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental income

The Group's rental income in 2012 was RMB44.4 million, up by
257.7% year-on-year. The increase was primarily due to an increase
in rental income from Jiaxing CIFI Square resulting from the
commencement of leasing of its department store and shopping mall
portion.

RS ZE—_FHAEWABHA Table 3: Breakdown of rental income in 2012
- —E2——fF
2012 2011
WA
E#HE (EXitkn BR=E
WAB D WABSE Rental
HEWA % EEAON % income
Rental of Rental Rental of Rental Growth
income income income income rate
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’000 % RMB000 % %
REME Investment properties
= EERES Jiaxing CIFl Square 42,161 95.0 7,869 63.4 4358
Hinix &Y% Other investment properties 960 22 2,484 200 (61.4)
HinFERE W% Other non-investment properties 1,269 28 2,058 16.6 (38.3)
&&t Total 44,390 100.0 12,411 100.0 251.7
REME Investment properties

RNZE——F+_A=+—H8 K&
EECEREYME  LEEEBELOR
174,400 5K - AEBZEREMER
aEYH - IWAREEEEIREA /289,300
KO EMECHB LA - mEBRIH
oo

)5 fB#  [El# Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 5 investment properties with
a total GFA of approximately 174,400 sg.m. Out of such investment
properties portfolio of the Group, 3 investment properties with a total
GFA of approximately 89,300 sg.m. had commenced leasing, while
the remaining were under development.

Y7 fB¥E o + 13 FB Langfang CIFI Path Walf
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2012, the Group's recognised revenue was approximately
RMB8,143.9 million, up 103.2% year-on-year. Out of the Group's
total recognised revenue in 2012, (i) sales of property increased by
104.2% from the previous year to approximately RMB7,991.5 million,
which was in line with the increase in delivered GFA; (ii) rental income
increased by 257.7% from the previous year, which was primarily due
to an increase in rental income from Jiaxing CIFI Square resulting from
the commencement of leasing of its department store and shopping
mall portion; and (iii) property management income increased by
48.5% from the previous year, as additional new property projects
were completed by us and included in our property management
portfolio during the year.

Table 4: Breakdown of recognised revenue in 2012

—E-——F —T——%F
2012 2011
HERRBA B HERA
BERNEDL HERB DL
=520 ON %of Total | THERUA % of Total REBE
Recognised recognised Recognised recognised  Year-on-year
revenue revenue revenue revenue change
AR®T R ARETT
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
MIEHE Sales of properties 7,991,465 98.1 3,914,284 97.7 104.2
HEWA Rental income 44,390 0.6 12,411 0.3 257.7
L EX=R G Property management income 89,204 1.1 60,078 15 485
Rk EiE] Other property related
PRESIZA service income 18,890 0.2 21,557 05 (12.4)
4Bt Total 8,143,949 100.0 4,008,330 100.0 103.2
SHER A Cost of sales

AEER T -—_FHOHERLNE
AR #6,217,900,000 7T - 8 &= & & 40
135.6% ' EEHNC RN AREMER
KGRI - BIEMRHEEKA LT -

JBIEIER (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFH

The Group's cost of sales in 2012 was approximately RMB6,217.9
million, up 135.6% from the previous year. This increase was primarily
due to an increase in cost of property sales as a result of an increase
in total GFA delivered compared to the previous year.
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B #5 [B1 A () FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
HERE(E) Cost of sales (Continued)
RE —E——FHERAEMA Table 5: Breakdown of cost of sales in 2012
—E-=F T
2012 2011
RS E A I SHE A
BENEIL BEHAIL RESE
AR¥T %ofTotal | ARETIT % of Total ~ Year-on-year
RMB’000 cost of sales RMB000 cost of sales change
SIES AP Cost of property sales
FREAETE M AERER AN Construction and related costs 3,115,560 50.1 1,394,227 52.8 123.5%
T B ERE & Land acquisition and
FRRERK A related costs 2,093,626 337 819,963 31.1 155.3%
BB R Capitalised borrowing costs 435,565 7.0 113,795 43 282.8%
BT MESEE AR Sub-Total: Cost of
property sales 5,644,751 90.8 2,328,035 88.2 142.5%
AR ER AR Cost of property rental 2,590 * 852 * 204.0%
YIS IR A Cost of property management 94,941 15 57,286 2.2 65.7%
Hib Y8 Cost of other property
ARAS A A related services 2,862 0.1 5,243 0.2 (45.4)%
TRFAEER Sales related taxes 472,754 16 247,423 9.4 91.1%
Et BN Total: Cost of sales 6,217,898 100.0 2,638,839 100.0 135.6%
D4R R Total GFA delivered (sq.m.)
(FAXK) 735,900 354,100 107.8%
TSR AR Average construction costs
(AR®ET /T HXK) (RMB/sq.m.) 4,234 3,937 7.5%
T4 b U EE T AE M Average land acquisition and
FAMRAN (AR, related costs (RMB/sq.m.)
FHK) 2,845 2315 22.9%
FHE AR E KA Average capitalised borrowing
(AREET /T HXK) costs (RMB/sq.m.) 592 321 84.4%
* 21R0.1% * less than 0.1%
EFMREFRZE Gross profit and gross profit margin
KEBRZZE—Z—FWEFNAARYE  The Group's gross profit in 2012 was RMB1,926.1 million, up 40.6%

1,926,100,0007T * 25 3E N40.6% ° 7

SEEMNERH=

§_f—_¢mm7%v
——FRAEHBEE(ED

Bn=

T——FK34.2% &

FERNAE

i 77 145()\ VRN 1.7 % ) 15 B FERR U ALL

$i§_i——¢(fﬁaﬁ§w%7\
BT

21.3%) B P % -

|8 Y
C NEEESH

SEMWIAR E’U%%'J%ﬁﬂﬂﬁaﬁ%lﬁ S|

R
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year-on-year. Our gross profit margin decreased to 23.7% in 2012
from 34.2% in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to the Group’s
lower proportion of recognised revenue from sales of office projects
in 2012 (1.7% of total recognised revenue) compared to 2011 (21.3%
of total recognised revenue). The Group's office-for-sale projects
generally have higher gross profit margins compared to mass market
residential projects.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Fair value changes

Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties

In 2012, the Group recognised a fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties in the amount of approximately RMB1,205.9
million as a result of the shopping mall portion of Jiaxing CIFI Square,
with an aggregate GFA of around 25,800 sg.m., being leased out
and transferred to investment properties during the year. In 2011,
the Group recognised a fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties in the amount of approximately RMB1,025.4 million in
connection with the basement supermarket and the department
store portion of Jiaxing CIFI Square, with an aggregate GFA of
around 38,500 sg.m., being leased out and transferred to investment
properties during that year.

Initially at the time of construction, the commercial podium of Jiaxing
CIFI Square comprising the basement supermarket, department store
and the shopping mall portions were accounted for as properties under
development. Upon completion, they were accounted for as properties
for sale. Under IFRS, these commercial properties accounted for as
properties for sale could be transferred into investment properties
when it is evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease
to another party. The substantial gains upon transfer to investment
properties relating to the commercial podium of Jiaxing CIFI Square
in 2011 and 2012 represent the difference between the fair value of
the relevant properties after substantial appreciation and their original
book costs.

As at 31 December 2012, the entire commercial podium of Jiaxing
CIFI Square were fully leased out and were fully transferred into
investment properties. As the Group does not have other properties
completed or under construction which are expected to be transferred
to investment properties in the near future, the Group does not expect
the substantial fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties
recorded in 2012 will be repeated in 2013. Without such fair value gain
upon transfer to investment properties, the Group expects its profits
including fair value gains in 2013 may be negatively affected, but it will
have no impact on its core net profits excluding fair value gains.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Fair value changes (Continued)

Change in fair value of investment properties

In 2012, the Group recognised a fair value gain on investment
properties in 2012 of approximately RMB233.5 million as compared
to a fair value gain on investment properties in 2011 of approximately
RMB123.5 million. The increase in fair value gain on investment
properties was due to the appreciation of the overall capital value
and/or rental values of the Group’s investment properties portfolio
including completed and under development projects.

Change in fair value of trust loans related derivatives

In 2012, the Group recognised a fair value gain on trust loans related
derivatives of approximately RMB26.5 million as compared to a fair
value loss on trust loans related derivatives in 2011 of approximately
RMB15.0 million. Such fair value gain reflected the change in fair value
of the embedded financial derivatives relating to certain trust financing
arrangements of the Group's properties projects during the year.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses increased by 74.4% to
approximately RMB245.8 million in 2012 from RMB140.9 million in
2011. This increase was primarily due to the Group's new launch of
more property projects for pre-sale in 2012. The Group placed great
emphasis on the effectiveness and appropriateness of sales strategies
and successfully controlled its selling expenses at 2.6% of total
contracted sales in 2012, compared to 2.6% in 2011.

Administrative and other expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by 31.6% to
approximately RMB285.2 million in 2012 from RMB216.7 million
in 2011. This increase was primarily attributable to increase in staff
costs and other administrative expenses resulting from the Group’s
business expansion. Due to implementation of stringent cost control,
the Group successfully controlled its administrative expenses at 3.0%
of total contracted sales in 2012, compared to 4.0% in 2011.

In addition, the Group incurred other expenses of approximately
RMB18.3 million in 2012, compared to RMB4.6 million in 2011. Other
expenses in 2012 and 2011 were professional fees and expenses
related to our IPO.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Finance costs

The Group’'s finance costs expensed increased by 22.0% to
approximately RMB43.3 million in 2012 from RMB35.5 million in 2011.
This increase in finance costs expensed was primarily attributable
to an increase in the total finance costs incurred, net of the portion
being capitalised in properties under development during the year.
Total finance costs expensed and capitalised increased by 22.1% to
approximately RMB704.1 million in 2012 from RMB576.6 million in
2011. Total finance costs expensed and capitalised represented 8.5%
of our average bank and other borrowings under IFRS during 2012,
compared to 9.8% during 2011. The Group's total finance costs as a
percentage of financial indebtedness decreased during the year. The
decrease in total finance costs expensed and capitalised in 2012 was
primarily attributable to decrease in the average proportion of non-
bank borrowings (mainly trust financings) to total borrowings during
the year. These non-bank borrowings generally had higher interest
costs during the year.

Income tax expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 10.3% to
approximately RMB818.8 million in 2012 from RMB742.4 million
in 2011. The Group’'s income tax expense included payments
and provisions made for enterprise income tax (“EIT") and land
appreciation tax (“LAT") during the year. The Group's effective income
tax rate decreased to 28.8% in 2012 from 33.7% in 2011, as a higher
proportion of the Group's profit before taxation was derived from the
increase in fair value gains relating to investment properties in 2012,
for which no provision for LAT was required.

The Group made LAT provisions of approximately RMB164.5 million in
2012, versus RMB195.0 million in 2011. The Group made actual LAT
payments of RMB181.7 million in 2012, versus RMB138.5 million in
2011. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had accumulated unpaid
LAT provisions of RMB288.2 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit for the year

As a result of the factors described above, the Group's profit before
taxation increased by 28.8% to approximately RMB2,839.6 million
in 2012 from RMB2,204.5 million in 2011. The Group's profit and
total comprehensive income for the year increased by 38.2% to
approximately RMB2,020.8 million in 2012 from RMB1,462.1 million
in 2011. The Group's net profit attributable to equity owners increased
by 44.9% to approximately RMB1,937.1 million in 2012 from
RMB1,336.9 million in 2011.

The Group's core net profit attributable to equity owners (excluding
change in fair value changes and non-controlling interests, net of
deferred taxes) increased by 88.5% to approximately RMB920.6
million in 2012 from RMB488.5 million in 2011. The corresponding
core net profit margin was 11.3% in 2012 and 12.2% in 2011. The
change in core net profit margin in 2012 was primarily due to the
Group's lower proportion of recognised revenue from sales of office
projects (which generally had higher profit margin compared to mass
market residential project) which in 2012 compared to 2011.

Benefited from the implementation of the Group's stated high asset
turnover and high sell-through business strategies, the Group achieved
a return on average equity (“ROE") of 18.8% in 2012 versus 19.2% in
2011.

&I JIB3E o £IAEL Suzhou CIFI Canal County
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LAND BANK

As at 31 December 2012, the total GFA of the Group's land bank
was approximately 6.2 million sq.m., and the attributable GFA of
the Group's land bank was approximately 5.9 million sq.m. As at 31
December 2012, average acquisition cost of the Group’s overall land
bank was approximately RMB2,200 per sg.m.

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December

=t+—HAM L FERH 2012
REBE S By project
iei K E Y
AHEAHE A&
BHEXEREARE BEER LR
Primary Saleable/Rentable Interest
intended use GFA remaining attributable
EH Project of the project unsold tous
(EHXK)
(sq.m.) (%)
BRI Completed properties
k=54 Yangtze River Delta
5 BB « IRE Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay £ Residential 24,200 100.0
B8 JBIE o I BRI Shanghai CIFI Honggiao International  $%5 4 &) ### Office-for-sale 15,500 100.0
B JBIE e tH42 [R5 Shanghai CIFI Century Square SHE A T Office-for-sale 14,900 100.0
5 B e (kEE Shanghai CIFI La Baie D'Evian £ = Residential 1,000 100.0
& fBIE ¢ BAEED Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town = Residential 1,800 100.0
BN JBIE e IAER Suzhou CIFI Canal County = Residential 19,300 100.0
BRI JEIE « BARED Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town ¥ Residential 31,800 100.0
BN TBIE e EEIREEE Suzhou CIFI California Bay £ Residential 300 100.0
AL B e FRER Hefei CIFl Central Park Phase | & Il {£5 Residential 36,900 100.0
—H K — 8
=8 BEES(EE) Jiaxing CIFI Square (Residential) {£ 5 Residential 45,000 100.0
=0 AEES(EE) Jiaxing CIFI Square (Commercial) & Y Investment properties 82,600 100.0

B (KRB AR AR | —T——FF)
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Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2012 (Continued)

RIEE &S (8 By project (Continued)
ia K Y
AEHE A rEE
BHEXEREAR BEEEE LR
Primary Saleable/Rentable Interest
intended use GFA remaining attributable
HH Project of the project unsold tous
(EHXK)
(sq.m.) (%)
B4 Pan Bohai Rim
b3 TR o £ Beijing CIFI Private Mansion £ = Residential 27,500 100.0
bR JBIE e 5Ef Beijing CIFI Purple County T Residential 1,100 100.0
b3 fB¥E « BEEEEAL  Beijing CIFl Wangxin Commercial &RV 1R A% 7,100 100.0
Centre Office-for-sale/Investment
properties
b fBHE o BLE] Beijing CIFI Olympic City $HE R pg 3% Office-for-sale 7,200 100.0
LR TR e FigbEE Beijing CIFI Shanghai Salon {£ = Residential 9,300 100.0
ERYy TB¥E o + i Langfang CIFI Path Walf {£ = Residential 53,300 100.0
—Hi - ZHAR = Hf Phase I, Il &Il
g Central Western Region
EHE JBIE « BARE Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town £ Residential 37,500 100.0
—Hj - B —HfRRPOER Phase I, II, Il & IV
Y JBIE o FED Changsha CIFI Upward Community  {£=F Residential 5,400 100.0
Y 01 o 2 Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard £ Residential 17,100 100.0
At Other
BN JBIE e B Fuzhou CIFI Riverside {£=¢ Residential 3,700 100.0
442 500
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LAND BANK (continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2012 (Continued)

BRIEBE S () By project (Continued)
FRBRE
FRERN
BREER
ERIE .94 Total GFA under AEH
RERME fEEAT A development bR
Primary Actual/ and held Interest
intended use Estimated HER for future FE  attibutable
ER Project of the project Completion date SiteArea  development Pre-sold tous
(FRK) (FRK) (PR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BRORSERRERENE  Properties under development and
held for future development
RZH Yangtze River Delta
L5 BB BAEE Shanghai CIFI Privte Mansion frx “E-CEENE 40,000 69,500 26,50 1000
Residential 402013
LE BE e e Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay e I 64,400 136,400 106,000 1000
Residential —I-MEENE
202013/402014
15 BB e Al Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden =z “T-CHECE 36,500 73,600 3700 1000
Residential 202013
izl T Shanghai CIFI Lusury Courtyard % “E-ZEERE 26,400 66,000 21100 1000
Residential 402013
HEBIRETRER Shanghai Baoshan District Panjing Road Project (£ “E-nEE-5 99,100 204,200 - 1000
Residential 102015
DEEREFHIER Shanghai Jiading Liv Jiahe Site Project frx —E-MEENE 37,600 103900 . 1000
Residential 402014
DESEEMEMI0EEE  Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang HER “E-NEENE 10,600 32600 - 1000
37-01 Site Project Office-for-sale 402014
FEETEEIMEER  Shanghai Jiading Distrct Nanxiang R —E-MEENE 10800 3200 - 1000
37-02 Site Project Office-for-sale 402014
FBSTRESMRER  Shanghai Hongaiao Xianfeng Village iz —Z-MEENE 3200 7000 - 1000
No 4 Site Project Residential 402014
LERIRAR Shanghai Zhabei Site Project HEHEH “E-RE 31,400 112,100 - 00
Office-for-sale 2015
b 168 mIER Shanghai CIF Pujiang Intemational HER S “E-IEE-% 72400 188,400 13500 1000
Office-for-sale 102014
LS BB BEEERES Shanghai CIF| Yangpu Commercial Square HERITH “E-MEENE 20600 - 530
Office-for-sale 402014
LS BB BEEERES Shanghai CIF| Yangpu Commercial Square RENE “E-MEERFE 1830 15400 - 530
Investment properties 402014
R RRIER Shanghai Jiading New Town Yumin Road Project & %1% “Z-MEENE 19900 39,700 - 1000
Investment properties 402014
LB 0B« kEE Shanghai CIF La Baie D'Fuian frx “EMEECE 189,800 24500 - 1000
Residential 202014
15 RS Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion frx BRBR-F—=FZF 26,000 220 - 755
Residential -
By phases from 2013 to 2014
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TG ) LAND BANK (continued)
RN XEEBR=ZZF—=-F+ =8 Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+—BHtEERAE) 2012 (Continued)
RIEEHEID (&) By project (Continued)
HRAREE
ARBEN
BEEER
EREE BB/ Total GFA under FEE
RERR EHATES development EibiER
Primary Actual/ and held Interest
intended use Estimated AR for future BE  attibutable
&R Project of the project Completion date SiteArea  development Pre-sold tous
(B5K) (ERK (FRK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
L5 g ERE Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach frz FERR-T-—£Z2 145,500 149,300 1400 970
Residental “T-|mE
By phases from 2013 to 2014
B BB e DA Suzhou CIFI Canal County f%E “E-CEECE 176,900 58,700 11,900 1000
Residential 202013
B BB e R Suzhou CIF| Luxury Courtyard frx “E-MEENE 110,200 322400 25,000 1000
Residential 402014
Scout IR Suzhou 684 Site Project iz “E-nEENE 290 125300 - 1000
Residential 402015
Es e Suzhou 688 Site Project fiz “E-nEENE 55,600 124,700 - 1000
Residential 402015
o104t RIE R Suzhou G104 Site Project iz “Z-1%/ 93,900 305,200 - 1000
Residental “E5F
2015/2016
A 1818 « i Hefei CIFI Private Mansion =z “E-CEENE/ 107,200 442400 117,600 1000
—H ZHER=H Phase |, I & Residential “E-MEENE
402013/402014
BT 1B o B Zhenjiang CIFI Times frx “5-ZFE-% 32,700 163,200 37,700 1000
Residential 202013
RI% Pan Bohai Rim
IR B o £5R Beijing CIF Private Villa Riverside Garden iz “E-REERF 76,400 169,000 - 800
Residential 402014
LR B e EEEL Beiling CIF Intemational Negotiate Garden HER “I-mEEZF 34,600 120500 25,600 1000
(ffice-for-sale 202014
B3 TBIE o TR ER=H Langfang CIFl Path Walf Phase | & I £ “E-CEERE/ 140,600 290,600 5,600 1000
Residential “I-mEERF
402013/402014
Bl 1818 o Sl Tangshan CIF|English Village iz “TPEENE 346,200 379,800 - 800
Residential 402014
Rt JBB o BE SR  Tianjin CIFl Rosedale Phase | &I fiz “E-NEE-F 120700 320,00 36900 1000
Residential “Z-REENE
202014402015
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T i EE ) LAND BANK (continued)
RN BZEBR=-_ZF—=-%+=H Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+ —HH T EEREMAE) 2012 (Continued)
RIBEBE S (&) By project (Continued)
BB RKEE
FREREH
EREER
ERZE .94 Total GFA under ER
RERR EHATES development EibiER
Primary Actual/ and held Interest
intended use Estimated EHER for future BE  attibutable
&R Project of the project Completion date SiteArea  development Pre-sold tous
(FEK) (FEK) (FAX)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
RiE 108 o kS Tianjin CIFI Century Waterside frx “E-nEERE 6,500 185,600 - 510
Residential 402015
REEETEMNER—H Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase |~ T £EH A ~F-R%& 262300 207,700 _ 1000
Industrial office park 2015
REEETEHNEA-®  Tianjin Binhai Industrial Offce Project Phase ||~ TEEHAE “E-AE 168,500 168500 _ 1000
Industrial office park 2016
HFH Central Wester Region
EF BE o« BB RERE  Chongging CIF Ronchamp Town Phase V&I (5 E-CEENE/ 47200 263,200 149900 1000
Residental “E-REERE
402013/402014
BE BB BIHE Chongging CIFI Langyuejun =z “T--EERE 71900 173,700 50,100 1000
Residential 402013
BE BB 2H Chongging CIFI Purple City HER —E-MEENE 44400 178,400 - 1000
Office-for-sale 402014
Y 188 o A1 Changsha CIFl Pivate Mansion =z “T-CEENE/ 97500 344200 76,000 1000
Residental “T-PEFENF
402013/402014
2927100 5,791,900 708,500
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T & o) LAND BANK (continued)
RN BZEBR=-_ZF—=-%+=H Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+t— B L hREEEMAE) 2012 (Continued)
RLEE D By region
i FEEE DT
% of Land Bank
(%)
r=A Yangtze River Delta 51
R Pan Bohai Rim 33
REEEp Central Western Region 16
100
REBERE D By type of project
hLifEEE S
% of Land Bank
(%)
FEERB (BPEE—RDM20FTK) Residential projects with typical unit size <120 sq.m. 58
HERIEHIER Office-for-sale projects 19
FEEE (BFPEBE—BARI20FHK) Residential projects with typical unit size >120 sq.m. 20
HEMERHM Investment properties and others 3
100

MN-T——FHM AEBEEZAH£12  During the year 2012, the Group purchased a total of 12 new projects,
EzEE - 1 1{EEE JVEBBTE  out of which 11 projects were acquired through government-held
PWEAFIRIE - B EEWEE - public tenders, auctions or listing-for-sale and another 1 property
WimB B AEZREE S —EWE  project was acquired through acquisition of equity interest.

BE -

AREBTWE T HIEE AR EEE  Total planned GFA of the Group's newly acquired land projects
ERE#49/51,500,000°F 53K - MAREE  amounted to approximately 1.5 million sg.m. and total consideration
FEAAR#3,431,700,0007T © #ZERUEE  involved amounted to approximately RMB3,431.7 million. Based
BRI THER  KEBR-_Z=— -4 on the contracted land acquisition prices, the Group's average land
T+ BEE AR AL BEF KA acquisition cost in 2012 was approximately RMB2,300 per sg.m..
FR#2,3007T °
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ii&{%{ﬁ(,@g) LAND BANK (Continued)
&t  REBR=-E——EWN 1L HUkEE Table 7: The Group’s land acquisition in 2012
#al
BERR
(Faf
rEM £E5) ¥4
TZRE RAER Planned Efh TH A
A& Group’s GFA EBZ@EE RE Average
Wi EH Primary equity  {53EE®  excluding Atributable  Consider- land
City Project intended use interest Site area carpark GFA ation cost
(AE%T,/
(Frx)  (EBK)  (FHEK) (AR¥m)  ¥£5K)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB)  (RMB/sg.m.)
ZE-CENIKE
Land acquisition in 2012
s} BIEETRIER F=x 1000 99,100 185,600 185,600 520,100,000 2803
Shanghai Baoshan District Panjing Road Project Residential
s} REEZMRIER F=x 1000 37,600 88,100 88,100 2825520,000 3207
Shanghai Jiading Liu Jiahe Site Project Residential
s} EEREMI0RER HEREH 1000 10,600 26,700 26700 93,000,000 3708
Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang 37-01 Site Project Office-for-sale
s} REEREMI-RER HEREH 1000 10,800 21,200 21200 73,070,000 2686
Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang 37-02 Site Project Office-for-sale
g B RSt RIE R fix= 1000 3,200 5,200 5200 67,400,000 12,962
Shanghai Hongaiao Xianfeng Village No.4 Site Project Residential
! FILHRIER EEREH 200 31,400 90,600 18,120 703,800,000 7,768
Shanghai Zhabei Site Project Office-for-sale
&M GBI SR F=x 1000 42,900 94,300 94300 430,000,000 4,560
Suzhou (384 Site Project Residential
&M GBIt RIEE F=x 1000 55,600 94,300 94300 193,000,000 2047
Suzhou (388 Site Project Residential
&M GI0MtIEE =z 1000 93,900 235,900 235,900 710,000,000 3010
Suzhou (3104 Site Project Residential
RE BEIFMAER—H THERNE 1000 262,300 307,700 307,700 85,600,000 278
Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase | Industrial office park
RE BEIEMAER = THERNE 1000 168,500 168,500 168500 55,000,000 3%
Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase Il Industrial office park
RE RE B8 o HkF iz 510 65,500 163,700 83480 212,224510 1,29
Tianjin Tianjin CIFI Century Waterside Residential
ZE-CETZAST-BR(RBEXRANE AL NI EYE
Land acquisition subsequent to 31 December 2012 (and up to the date of the results announcement)
i) RITBEENRER HEREH 50.0 14,800 29,600 14800 182,200,000 6,155
Shanghai Minxing District Huacao 20-02 Site Project Office-for-sale
RE FEEPILHEGTIRER F=x 1000 165,200 332,100 332,100 1,340,000,000 403
Tianjin Xiqing District Zhongbei Zhen No.6 Site Project Residential
G AILReR3MRIE B HEREH 1000 24,200 60,400 60400 107,000,000 1672
Chongging Yubei District G53 Site Project Office-for-sale
JEEER(EB)BR AR | —ZT—ZFF® 39
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REBES  BERELRER
WEART
AEBR_ZE—ZF+A=+—
HEEBREABRITEHROARE
4,590,700,000 L (ZFE——F | AR
2,5673,900,0007T) EZBRHIHE AR
#21,800,000t(—ZF——F : ARK
21,800,0007T) °

RITRHEAMER
AEBR-_ZTE—Z—ZF+ZH=+—
HEERTRAMERDODARR
8,865,400,0007L (=T ——4F | ARM
7,751,600,0007T) c AEBR T —=
F+-A=+—BNMBEEELEFIAH
PTET A AR®85,000,000( —ZF——
& 1 AR¥82,000,0007T) c AT ——
F+-A=+—08 AEBHEAERD
SR TRIE AREE1,472,200,00070(=
= ——44 . AR¥1,256,900,0007T) °

®\ RITREAERAHA

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash position

The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately RMB4,590.7
million (2011: RMB2,573.9 million) and restricted cash of RMB21.8
million (2011: RMB21.8 million) as at 31 December 2012.

Bank and other borrowings

The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB8,865.4 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB7,751.6 million). The Group also had trust loans related derivatives
of RMB85.0 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB82.0 million).
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had un-utilised banking facilities
of RMB1,472.2 million (2011: RMB1,256.9 million).

Table 8: Breakdown of bank and other borrowings

BERERE D By type of borrowings
e —F——F
+=B=+—-8| +=ZA=+—H
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000
BEBETER Bank loans, secured 5,788,391 4,859,856
EIFBITER Bank loans, unsecured 31,500 -
BHBETER Trust loans, secured
—BHER — Conventional loans 930,000 1,716,000
— MRS AR E AR ER — Loans with obligation to repurchase equity interest 959,721 1,076,266
HimEHEtER Other trust loans, unsecured 246,300 99,430
HiBHEAER Other loans, secured 909,496 -
8,865,408 7,751,552
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REES > BEREXRER@) LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)
SBITREMER(E Bank and other borrowings (Continued)
EINE Y &Eﬂ_’g{ﬂ REBHAH (45 Table 8: Breakdown of bank and other borrowings (Continued)
REBERE D By maturity
. —F——F
+=A=+—-B | +t=ZA=+—H
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ARBTT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FRHIRENR Within one year or on demand 3,372,220 1,922,656
—FL L BTEBBME More than one year, but not exceeding two years 3,356,287 2,763,390
MFEE - BTBB=F More than two years, but not exceeding three years 1,229,878 2,536,506
=ZFU L BEBBEF More than three years, but not exceeding four years 262,000 334,000
HEME - BETBART More than four years, but not exceeding five years 12,000 159,000
RFENE More than five years 633,023 36,000
8,865,408 7,751,552
B RBBEE TR —FA Less: Amount due within one year shown under
E|fe R current liabilities (3,372,220) (1,922,656)
—FREHeE Amount due after one year 5,493,188 5,828,896
RE¥ERE Y By currency denomination
—F—=F —F——F
+=A=+—-B | +=ZA=+—H
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ARBT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
INEEE D RIERDT Analysis of borrowings by currency
— AR E — Denominated in RMB 8,489,568 7,281,752
—NBTTEHE — Denominated in HKD 375,840 469,800
8,865,408 7,751,552
REERZEFEES By fixed or variable interest rates
—F—=F —F——F
+=A=+—-B | +t=ZA=+—H
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ARBTT ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
& 7E F = Fixed interest rates 2,785,670 2,268,047
FENFR Variable interest rates 6,079,738 5,483,505
8,865,408 7,751,552
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HREBES BEREXRER#®)

CENDRN
AEERR T _FVHEFRAN(RE
58 HA PRI AR % B R o 65 o o 2 B DA P S8
RE AR F) B 5 AR ER B DA F 19 RTT
REMERAE) R85% » —T——F4
739.8% o

SN BB R B By
RAEEFENARBKELER  ~&H
o LAB T RETAENRITERER
T —F+-A=1+—HHKEEE
TR £ 542464,000,00078 725 H ER SN E
P =R @ far o AN 6 B0 M G OB SR
oM AEBEERERIINER K&
i (RIBANKINEERME) ZER
FRANE RHNE £ BUR o

BEER
REBERBATRENBRITRARNEER S
REMZBERAFRMRITIRMIE
BER - AEEMRBERE R LAH
RIEEFHBRELRN)VESHEEE
ERAERIREENENEMERES
RN TRB\BIRIT - H()IRBRITER
SERFAERBERF(UREER
EVRB RN —_EBE——FE+-_A=+—
H AKBERFEMRITRALAEEER
FPRHEBEFRBELZBERARKE
1,667,300,0007C(tkBR = F——F+=H
=+—H : AR®496,800,0007T) °

ST JBYE o BEIK Zhenjiang CIFI Times
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

Cost of borrowings

The Group's average cost of borrowings (calculated by dividing total
interest expenses expensed and capitalised by average bank and other
borrowings under IFRS during the relevant period) was 8.5% in 2012,
versus 9.8% in 2011.

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange rate risk on the portion of our bank
deposits that it maintains in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars as well as
on its outstanding principal loan balance of HK$464.0 million as at 31
December 2012. The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign exchange exposure
closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of foreign
currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.

Financial guarantees

The Group has provided mortgage guarantees to PRC banks in respect
of the mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group's
customers. The Group's mortgage guarantees are issued from the
dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon
the earlier of (i) the relevant property ownership certificates being
obtained and the certificates of other interests with respect to the
relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagee banks, or (ii) the
settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagee banks and the
Group's customers. As at 31 December 2012, the Group provided
mortgage guarantees in respect of mortgage loans provided by the
PRC banks to the Group's customers amounting to RMB1,667.3
million (versus 31 December 2011: RMB496.8 million).

v i

B fB3E o s = E Hefei CIFI Central Park
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RBES UERELAER®)
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Gearing ratio

The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio (total bank and other borrowings
net of bank balances and cash and restricted cash divided by total
equity) was 62.5% as at 31 December 2012 versus 141.5% as at 31
December 2011. The Group’s debt-to-asset ratio (total bank and other
borrowings divided by total assets) was 33.0% as at 31 December
2012 versus 40.3% as at 31 December 2011. The Group’s current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.7 times as at
31 December 2012 versus 1.8 times as at 31 December 2011.

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 3,123 full-time
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong, out of them 1,279 employees
worked for the property development business and 1,844 in the
property investment, property management and other businesses.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total
remuneration of the employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus
and share-based incentives.
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YANGTZE RIVER DELTA

Shanghai CIFl Rose Bay

Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay is a residential project located in the Qingpu
district, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay occupies a total site area of
approximately 73,200 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
144,500 sg.m. Shanghai CIFlI Rose Bay consists of low-rise garden
apartments, mid-rise apartments, retail outlets and car parking spaces.
As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of approximately 24,200
sg.m. was still held unsold.

Shanghai CIFl Honggiao International

Shanghai CIFI Honggiao International is an office-for-sale project
located on Tongxie Road and near Xiehe Road in the Honggiao
Linkong Economic Zone in Changning district, Shanghai. The project
is conveniently located near the Shanghai Honggiao Airport and the
Shanghai Honggiao Transportation Hub. Shanghai CIFI Honggiao
International occupies a total site area of approximately 22,900 sqg.m.
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 59,500 sg.m. Shanghai
CIFI Honggiao International consists of office buildings, a retail and
commercial arcade and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012,
remaining GFA of approximately 15,500 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town

Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town is a residential project located on Huaji
Road and near Longwu Road in the Binjiang area of Xuhui district,
Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town occupies a total site area of
approximately 14,500 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
26,500 sg.m. Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town consists of low-rise
garden apartments and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012,
remaining GFA of approximately 1,800 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Shanghai CIFI Century Square

Shanghai CIFI Century Square is an office-for-sale project located
on Danba Road in Changfeng Commercial Area in Putuo district,
Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Century Square occupies a total site area of
approximately 45,800 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
130,500 sgq.m. Shanghai CIFI Century Square consists of office
buildings, street-level retail outlets and car parking spaces. As at 31
December 2012, remaining GFA of approximately 14,900 sg.m. was
still held unsold.
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YANGTZE RIVER DELTA (Continued)

Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion

Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion is a residential project located adjacent
to Shanghai CIFI Rose Bay. Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion will occupy
a total site area of approximately 40,000 sg.m. with an aggregate
GFA of approximately 69,500 sq.m. Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion
is expected to comprise townhouses, mid-rise apartments and car
parking spaces.

Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay

Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay is a residential project
located in Luojing Town of Baoshan district, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI
Comfortable Joyous Bay will occupy a total site area of approximately
64,400 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately 136,400 sg.m.
Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay is expected to comprise mid-
rise apartments, low-rise garden apartments, commercial areas and
car parking spaces.

Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden

Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden is a residential project located in
Liantang Town of Qingpu district, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Pleasant
Garden will occupy a total site area of approximately 36,500 sg.m.
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 73,600 sg.m. Shanghai CIFI
Pleasant Garden is expected to comprise mid-rise apartments, low-
rise garden apartments, commercial areas and car parking spaces.

Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard

Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard is a residential and commercial
property project located north of Gaotai Road and near Yungu Road
in Jiading New Town, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard
will occupy a total site area of approximately 26,400 sg.m. with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 66,000 sgq.m. Shanghai CIFI Luxury
Courtyard is expected to comprise mid-rise apartments, office/
commercial areas and car parking spaces.

Shanghai Baoshan District Panjing Road Project

Shanghai Baoshan District Panjing Road Project is a residential project
located on Panjing Road in Baoshan district, Shanghai, near Shanghai
CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay. The project will occupy a total site
area of approximately 99,100 sg.m. with an aggregate planned GFA
of approximately 204,200 sg.m. The project is expected to comprise
mainly residential apartments, commercial areas and car parking
spaces.
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Shanghai Jiading Liu Jiahe Site Project

Shanghai Jiading Liu Jiahe Site Project is a residential project located
at the north of Liu Jiahe in Jiading district, Shanghai. The project
will occupy a total site area of approximately 37,600 sg.m. with an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 103,900 sg.m. The project is
expected to comprise mainly residential apartments, commercial areas
and car parking spaces.

Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang 37-01 Site Project

Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang 37-01 Site Project is an office-
for-sale project located at the east of Baoxiang Road and south of
Mianbaibin in Jiading district Nanxiang Town, Shanghai. The project
will occupy a total site area of approximately 10,600 sg.m. with an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 32,600 sqg.m. The project is
expected to comprise mainly office buildings, commercial areas and
car parking spaces.

Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang 37-02 Site Project

Shanghai Jiading District Nanxiang 37-02 Site Project is an office-
for-sale project located at the east of Baoxiang Road and south of
Mianbaibin in Jiading district, Nanxiang Town, Shanghai. The project
will occupy a total site area of approximately 10,800 sg.m. with an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 33,200 sg.m. The project is
expected to comprise mainly office buildings, commercial areas and
car parking spaces.

Shanghai Honggiao Xianfeng Village No.4 Site Project

Shanghai Honggiao Xianfeng Village No.4 Site Project is a residential
project located in Longbai Area, Minxing district, Shanghai. The project
will occupy a total site area of approximately 3,200 sg.m. with an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 7,000 sgq.m. The project is
expected to comprise mainly residential apartments and car parking
spaces.

Shanghai CIFI La Baie D’Evian

Shanghai CIFI La Baie D'Evian is a residential project located on
Gubei Road in Baoshan district, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI La Baie
D’Evian occupies a total site area of approximately 189,800 sg.m. and
is divided into completed portion and under development portion.
The completed portion of Shanghai CIFI La Baie D'Evian consists of
mid-rise apartments, townhouses and car parking spaces with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 197,100 sg.m. As at 31 December
2012, remaining GFA of approximately 1,000 sq.m. was still held
unsold. The under development portion of Shanghai CIFI La Baie
D’Evian is expected to comprise townhouses with an aggregate GFA
of approximately 24,500 sqg.m.
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Shanghai CIFl Jiangwan Mansion

Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion is a residential project located on
Xin Jiang Wan Cheng Road in the Wujiaochang Town of Yangpu
district, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion will occupy a
total site area of approximately 26,000 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA
of approximately 42,200 sg.m. Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion is
expected to comprise low-rise garden apartments, townhouses and
car parking spaces.

Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach

Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach is a residential project located on
Haima Road in the Haiwan Tourist Area of Fengxian district,
Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach will occupy a total site area of
approximately 145,500 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
149,300 sg.m. Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach is expected to comprise
courtyard townhouses, an ancillary hotel and a clubhouse.

Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International

Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International is an office-for-sale project located
in Pujiang Town of Minhang district, Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Pujiang
International will occupy a total site area of approximately 72,400 sq.m.
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 188,400 sq.m. Shanghai CIFI
Pujiang International is expected to comprise office buildings, a retail
and commercial arcade and car parking spaces.

Shanghai CIFI Yangpu Commercial Square

Shanghai CIFI Yangpu Commercial Square is an office and commercial
property project located on Kongjiang Road in Yangpu district,
Shanghai. Shanghai CIFI Yangpu Commercial Square will occupy a
total site area of approximately 18,300 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 66,000 sq.m. Shanghai CIFI Yangpu Commercial Square
is expected to comprise office buildings, a retail and commercial
arcade and car parking spaces. The office units are primarily intended
for sale, while the retail and commercial arcade and the car parking
spaces with an aggregate rentable GFA of approximately 45,400 sg.m.
will be retained by our Group for investment purpose.
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Shanghai Jiading New Town Yumin Road Project

Shanghai Jiading New Town Yumin Road Project is a commercial
property project located north of Gaotai Road and near Yumin Road
in Jiading New Town, Shanghai. The project will occupy a total site
area of approximately 19,900 sg.m. with an aggregate planned GFA
of approximately 39,700 sg.m. The project is expected to comprise
a retail and commercial arcade and will be retained by our Group for
investment purpose.

Shanghai Zhabei Site Project

Shanghai Zhabei Site Project is an office-for-sale project located in
Zhabei district, Shanghai. The project will occupy a total site area
of approximately 31,400 sq.m. with an aggregate planned GFA of
approximately 112,140 sq.m. The project is expected to comprise
mainly office buildings, commercial areas and car parking spaces.

Suzhou CIFI Canal County

Suzhou CIFI Canal County is a residential project located south of
Xingxian Road and east of Wenchang Road in Gaoxin district, Suzhou.
Suzhou CIFI Canal County occupies a total site area of approximately
176,900 sg.m. and is divided into completed portion and under
development portion. The completed portion of Suzhou CIFI Canal
County consists of townhouses, mid-rise apartments, serviced
apartments, street-level retail outlets and car parking spaces with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 236,100 sg.m. As at 31 December
2012, remaining GFA of approximately 19,300 sg.m. was still held
unsold. The under development portion is expected to comprise mid-
rise apartments, serviced apartments, street-level retail outlets and car
parking spaces with an aggregate GFA of approximately 58,700 sg.m.

Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town

Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town is a residential project located
north of Daxinhe Road and east of Xinyu Road in Gaoxin district,
Suzhou. Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town occupies a total site area of
approximately 57,000 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
110,700 sg.m. Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town consists of mid-rise
apartments, low-rise garden apartments and car parking spaces. As
at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of approximately 31,800 sg.m.
was still held unsold.
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Suzhou CIFI California Bay

Suzhou CIFI California Bay is a residential project located on Qingjian
Road in Industrial Park district, Suzhou. Suzhou CIFI California Bay
occupies a total site area of approximately 82,300 sq.m. with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 64,200 sg.m. The project consists
of townhouses. As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of
approximately 300 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Suzhou CIFl Luxury Courtyard

Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard is a residential project located at China
National Highway 312 East, Guanshan River South, Gaoxin district,
Hushuguan Developing Zone, Suzhou. Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard
will occupy a total site area of approximately 110,200 sg.m. with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 322,400 sqg.m. Suzhou CIFI Luxury
Courtyard is divided into two phases and is expected to comprise
high-rise apartments and car parking spaces.

Suzhou G84 Site Project

Suzhou G84 Site Project is a residential project located at south of
Mayuan Road and east of Changjiang Road, Fenggiao Street in Gaoxin
district, Suzhou. The project will occupy a total site of approximately
42,900 sg.m. with an aggregate planned GFA of approximately
125,300 sg.m. The project is expected to comprise mainly residential
apartments, commercial areas and car parking spaces.

Suzhou G88 Site Project

Suzhou G88 Site Project is a residential project located at east of
Xingfeng Road and north of Daxinhe Luhuade, Hushuguan, in Gaoxin
district Suzhou. The project will occupy a total site of approximately
55,600 sg.m. with an aggregate planned GFA of approximately
124,700 sg.m. The project is expected to comprise mainly residential
apartments, commercial areas and car parking spaces.

Suzhou G104 Site Project

Suzhou G104 Site Project is a residential project located in Wuzhong
district, Suzhou. The project will occupy a total site of approximately
93,900 sg.m. with an aggregate planned GFA of approximately
305,200 sg.m. The project is expected to comprise mainly residential
apartments, a retail and commercial arcade and car parking spaces.

49



ERYEHHBE

Description of Major Property Projects

R=Aw)

AL B e hREE

BIE JBIE « RATE AN E BB
EHERNETEEE - 6 BE e AR
SEGHATEIEAS1,700F FK - @
SEMEIE#I183,0005F K - B HE JBIE o
FRAEES AWM BESEEE - B
HEE - wETERH - BUE - A
BEBREEMN RZT—ZF+=A
=+—H ' % EEEEL36,900F 5
KIEBRFE -

EIE fEXE o fHAT

BB MBI « HMIT AR EIRERIER
FEAREHEAEEIIEETAERNTE
THE - 5/ fBIE o T h b R E R R4
107,200 5K » 48R & 49442,400
K - BHE NBIE e HATIG D B=E -
EHeESEEE HHE=E AT
SR ROEREEM -

BT JBIE o BEHH

T IR e BRI ANNEIRAEXR
BEUBEMNBMESE - HEHT BB
e (U1 b 4R T 78 7 4932, 700 F 75 K -
HBEEMIE4163,200F 5K - FBHISE
I BB e RREMBESEETE - WA
12 AT ERHEREEAL

EEIBEES

5 E BB E S AR 52 E A L BE LAY
WiREE - =EHEBESGHAmE
#740,900F 772K - #872EMEFEXI199,000
EHK e ZEHBEBEESRREREEE
TEBERLREBMN - TEFEFRL
By A] 7 48 S SR T 15 4982,600F 75 K -
ABAEERBERERSE - RZT—=
F+ZA=+—H HBTEEERREY
45,000 F R DIFBFE ©

50

YANGTZE RIVER DELTA (Continued)

Hefei CIFI Central Park

Hefei CIFI Central Park is a residential project located in New
Municipal and Cultural District Development, Hefei. Hefei CIFI Central
Park occupies a total site area of approximately 51,700 sg.m. with
an aggregate GFA of approximately 183,000 sg.m. Hefei CIFI Central
Park is divided into two phases and consists of high-rise apartments,
Townhouses, street-level retail outlets, storage rooms and multi-
purposes rooms and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012,
remaining GFA of approximately 36,900 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Hefei CIFI Private Mansion

Hefei CIFI Private Mansion is a residential project located southwest
of the intersection of Fangxing Boulevard and Xizang Road in Binhu
New Town, Hefei. Hefei CIFI Private Mansion will occupy a total
site area of approximately 107,200 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA
of approximately 442,400 sq.m. Hefei CIFI Private Mansion will be
divided into three phases and is expected to comprise high-rise
apartments, townhouses, street-level retail outlets, storage rooms and
car parking spaces.

Zhenjiang CIFI Times

Zhenjiang CIFI Times is an integrated city complex located south of
Tiangiao Road in Jingkou district, Zhenjiang. Zhenjiang CIFI Times
will occupy a total site area of approximately 32,700 sg.m. with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 163,200 sq.m. Zhenjiang CIFI Times
is expected to comprise high-rise apartments, office buildings, street-
level retail outlets and car parking spaces.

Jiaxing CIFI Square

Jiaxing CIFI Square is an integrated city complex located east of
Zhongshan Road, Jiaxing. Jiaxing CIFI Square occupies a total
site area of approximately 40,900 sq.m. with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 199,000 sqg.m. Jiaxing CIFI Square consists of high-rise
apartments, a retail and commercial arcade and car parking spaces.
The retail and commercial arcade with an aggregate rentable GFA of
approximately 82,600 sg.m. is retained by our Group for investment
purpose. As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of approximately
45,000 sg.m. was still held unsold.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



ERYEHHBE

Description of Major Property Projects

bR fBHE « fHAT

bR JBIE o ST AR I K H @ A E
FIHE o bR JBIE o T ARETEL
63,600F 5K + B EEMETEL)150,700F
FoK e bR JBIE & BT BIEIERIFES -
SEFE BERREBEAM RZF
——F%+-A=1+—8 B TE£E&E
#927,500F 5 K INIFBFE o

bR fBHE ¢ RE

bR JBIE ¢ SEEF A ML A H @ A E
FIHE o bR JBIE ¢ KEMEMAREIEL
26,300°F J5 K - B EEHE 5 4)48,300F
FoK e dbR JBIE « KEBBIFIEEIFHE
MEBEA RZTE——F+=A=+—
H - TN EEEBEN,100F 5 KNEE
HE -

bR JBIE e 158

b BIE e 87 AN AL RN &/ (E
FEIHE o bR BB o MHIR(h A EER
#976,400F 52K - 4B ZEMFE49169,000
FHK bR JBE e IS A=H - T8
HEREIEEFE - BFERIEEN -

bR fBIE & Z=HE A
R JBIE o =B L RMLNIL RIEE

& B R AAE O SH E R R P IR A o
LR TEEE & =B PR UMM A EIE L
34,600 F 77K - 48 EEE 15 49120,500F
J7K o FAEE S JBEE o =R L BIEM
NE - BBEREEA -

JBIEIER (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFH

PAN BOHAI RIM

Beijing CIFI Private Mansion

Beijing CIFI Private Mansion is a residential project located in Daxing
district, Beijing. Beijing CIFI Private Mansion occupies a total site
area of approximately 63,600 sqg.m. with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 150,700 sg.m. Beijing CIFI Private Mansion consists of
low-rise garden apartments, high-rise apartments, commercial areas
and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of
approximately 27,500 sgq.m. was still held unsold.

Beijing CIFl Purple County

Beijing CIFI Purple County is a residential project located in Daxing
district, Beijing. Beijing CIFI Purple County occupies a total site area of
approximately 26,300 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
48,300 sg.m. Beijing CIFI Purple County consists of low-rise garden
apartments and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012,
remaining GFA of approximately 1,100 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden

Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden is a residential project
located in Tongzhou district, Beijing. Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside
Garden will occupy a total site area of approximately 76,400 sg.m.
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 169,000 sg.m. Beijing CIFI
Private Villa Riverside Garden is divided into three phases and is
expected to comprise low-rise garden apartments, commercial areas
and car parking spaces.

Beijing CIFl International Negotiate Garden

Beijing CIFI International Negotiate Garden is an office-for-sale
project located at the north of Shunpingnanfu Road, Shunyi District,
Beijing. Beijing CIFIl International Negotiate Garden will occupy a
total site area of approximately 34,600 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA
of approximately 120,500 sg.m. Beijing CIFI International Negotiate
Garden is expected to comprise office buildings, commercial areas
and car parking spaces.
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Beijing CIFIl Wangxin Commercial Centre

Beijing CIFI Wangxin Commercial Centre is an office-for-sale project
located in Wangjing Area in Chaoyang district, Beijing. Beijing
CIFI Wangxin Commercial Centre occupies a total site area of
approximately 6,900 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately
22,400 sqg.m. Beijing CIFI Wangxin Commercial Centre consists of a
retail and commercial arcade and car parking spaces. The retail and
commercial arcade with an aggregate rentable GFA of approximately
4,900 sg.m. is retained by our Group for investment purpose. As at
31 December 2012, remaining GFA of approximately 2,200 sg.m. was
still held unsold.

Beijing CIFI Olympic City

Beijing CIFI Olympic City is an office-for-sale project located on
Beiyuan Road in Chaoyang district, Beijing. Beijing CIFI Olympic City
occupies a total site area of approximately 49,500 sq.m. with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 214,400 sg.m. Beijing CIFI Olympic
City consists of office buildings, street-level retail outlets, storage
rooms and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012, remaining
GFA of approximately 7,200 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Beijing CIFI Shanghai Salon

Beijing CIFI Shanghai Salon is a residential project located on Tianbao
South Street in Economic and Technology Development Area, Beijing.
Beijing CIFI Shanghai Salon occupies a total site area of approximately
141,500 sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately 235,100 sg.m.
Beijing CIFI Shanghai Salon consists of high-rise apartments, street-
level retail outlets and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012,
remaining GFA of approximately 9,300 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Tianjin CIFI Rosedale

Tianjin CIFI Rosedale is a residential project located east of Haixing
Road and north of Tengfei Avenue in Tanggu District, Tianjin. Tianjin
CIFI Rosedale will occupy a total site area of approximately 120,700
sg.m. with an aggregate GFA of approximately 320,200 sqg.m. Tianjin
CIFI Rosedale is divided into two phases and is expected to comprise
residential units, street-level retail outlets and car parking spaces.
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PAN BOHAI RIM (continued)

Tianjin CIFlI Century Waterside

Tianjin CIFI Century Waterside is a residential project located in
Chadian Town, Hangu district, Tianjin. The project will occupy a total
site area of approximately 65,500 sq.m. with an aggregate planned
GFA of approximately 185,600 sq.m. The project is expected to
comprise mainly residential units.

Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase |

Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase | is an industrial office
park project located in Tianjin Binhai Tourism Zone in Tianjin. The
project will occupy a total site area of approximately 262,300 sg.m.
with an aggregate planned aboveground GFA of approximately
307,700 sg.m. The project is expected to comprise mainly industrial
park office properties.

Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase Il

Tianjin Binhai Industrial Office Project Phase Il is an industrial office
park project located in Tianjin Binhai Tourism Zone in Tianjin. The
project will occupy a total site area of approximately 168,500 sg.m.
with an aggregate planned aboveground GFA of not less than
approximately 168,500 sqg.m. The project is expected to comprise
mainly industrial park office properties.

Langfang CIFI Path Walf

Langfang CIFI Path Walf is a residential project located in Langfang
Economic and Technology Development Zone, Langfang. Langfang
CIFI Path Walf occupies a total site area of approximately 226,500
sg.m. and divided into three phases. Phase | consists of townhouses
and clubhouse with an aggregate GFA of approximately 75,900 sg.m.
As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of approximately 7,200
sg.m. was still held unsold. Phase Il consists of high-rise apartments,
townhouses, street-level retail outlets, storage rooms and car parking
spaces with an aggregate GFA of approximately 99,400 sg.m. for
the completed portion and with an aggregate GFA of approximately
155,300 sg.m. for the under development portion. As at 31 December
2012, remaining GFA of approximately 31,900 sg.m. was still held
unsold for the completed portion. Phase |ll consists of high-rise
apartments, townhouses and car parking spaces with an aggregate
GFA of approximately 26,000 sg.m. for the completed portion and
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 135,300 sg.m. for the under
development portion. As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA of
approximately 14,200 sg.m. was still held unsold for the completed
portion.
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PAN BOHAI RIM (continued)

Tangshan CIFI English Village

Tangshan CIFI English Village is a residential and commercial property
project located in Caofeidian New District, Tangshan. The project
will occupy a total site area of approximately 346,200 sg.m. with
an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 379,800 sq.m. The
project is expected to comprise mid-rise apartments, low-rise garden
apartments, townhouses, a retail and commercial arcade and car
parking spaces.

CENTRAL WESTERN REGION

Chongqing CIFI Ronchamp Town

Chongqing CIFI Ronchamp Town is a residential project located
in Yubei district, Chongging. Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town
occupies a total site area of approximately 184,900 sg.m. and is
divided into six phases. Phase | consists of residential units, street-
level retail outlets and car parking spaces with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 46,600 sg.m. As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA
of approximately 3,500 sg.m. was still held unsold. Phase Il consists
of residential units and car parking spaces with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 49,700 sq.m. As at 31 December 2012, remaining GFA
of approximately 700 sg.m. was still held unsold. Phase |ll consists
of residential units and car parking spaces with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 126,400 sg.m. As at 31 December 2012, remaining
GFA of approximately 19,700 sq.m. was still held unsold. Phase IV
consists of residential units and car parking spaces with an aggregate
GFA of approximately 50,400 sg.m. As at 31 December 2012,
remaining GFA of approximately 13,600 sq.m. was still held unsold.
Phase V is expected to comprise high-rise garden apartments, street-
level retail outlets and car parking spaces with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 198,800 sg.m. Phase VI is expected to comprise high-
rise garden apartments, an ancillary hotel and car parking spaces with
an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 64,400 sqg.m.
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CENTRAL WESTERN REGION (continued)

Chongqing CIFl Langyuejun and Purple City

Chongging CIFI Langyuejun and Purple City is an integrated city
complex located in Caijia Town, Beibei district in Liangjiang New Area,
Chongging. The project will be divided into Chongging CIFI Langyuejun
and Purple City. Chongqging CIFI Langyuejun will occupy a total
site area of approximately 71,900 sq.m. with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 173,700 sg.m. Chongging CIFI Langyuejun is expected
to comprise mid-rise apartments, low-rise garden apartments, a retail
and commercial arcade and car parking spaces. Chongging CIFI Purple
City will occupy a total site area of approximately 44,400 sg.m. with
an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 178,400 sgq.m. Chongging
CIFI Purple City is expected to comprise office buildings, a retail and
commercial arcade, an ancillary hotel and car parking spaces.

Changsha CIFl Upward Community

Changsha CIFI Upward Community is a residential project located on
Chazishan Road in Yuelu district, Changsha. Changsha CIFI Upward
Community occupies a total site area of approximately 23,300 sqg.m.
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 131,200 sg.m. Changsha CIFI
Upward Community consists of high-rise apartments, street-level retail
outlets and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012, remaining
GFA of approximately 5,400 sgq.m. was still held unsold.

Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard

Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard is a residential project located south
of Panpan Road in Changsha County, Changsha. Changsha CIFI Luxury
Courtyard occupies a total site area of approximately 33,700 sg.m.
with an aggregate GFA of approximately 160,600 sg.m. Changsha CIFI
Luxury Courtyard consists of high-rise apartments, street-level retail
outlets and car parking spaces. As at 31 December 2012, remaining
GFA of approximately 17,100 sg.m. was still held unsold.

Changsha CIFI Private Mansion

Changsha CIFI Private Mansion is a residential project located in
Yuelu district, Changsha. Changsha CIFI Private Mansion will occupy
a total site area of approximately 97,500 sg.m. with an aggregate
GFA of approximately 344,200 sg.m. Changsha CIF| Private Mansion
is expected to comprise high-rise apartments, townhouses, serviced
apartments, street-level retail outlets and car parking spaces.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Zhong, aged 44, our founder, is the executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Lin Zhong has about 22 years of
experience in the real estate business. He was appointed as Director
on 20 May 2011 and is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lin Zhong has
been elected as the “2006 Top 100 of the New Oriental Entrepreneur”
of the New Oriental Entrepreneur Century Forum, the “2006 Devoting
Person of the China Real Estate Brand” of the China Real Estate Top
10 Research, and has been commended as the “Top 100 Leader of
City Construction of the China Real Estate in Year 2007" by China
Association of Real Estate Developers, U.N. Renju Environment
Development Promotion, China Real Estate Brand Name Research
Centre and China Real Estate Annual Association. He was also
awarded “2010 Star of Real Estates” by China & Oversea Pictorial,
Shanghai Association of International Urban Ecological Economy and
Fudan University Real Estate Research Center. He was appointed
as the Council Member of the Board of Council of the Real Estate
Comprehensive Development Committee of the China Real Estate and
Residence Research Institute in 2006, the Standing Council Member
of the “Residential Property” Magazine Board Unit of The Centre For
Housing Industrialisation in 2006, the Member of the 3rd Board of
Directors of the Oriental Real Estate Institute in 2011, and the Council
Member of the 6th Board of Council of Shanghai Land Institute in
2011. Mr. Lin Zhong graduated from the Xiamen University with a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics. He further pursued and obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Lin Zhong is a brother of Mr.
Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng.

Mr. LIN Wei, aged 40, is the executive Director and Vice-Chairman
of the Company. Mr. Lin Wei has about 17 years of experience in the
real estate business. He laid the foundation of our Group with Mr. Lin
Zhong in 1995. He was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011. Mr. Lin
Wei was awarded 2007 Beijing Real Estate Top 10 Driving Force by
Beijing Daily and Beijing Evening News and 2009 Beijing Outstanding
Entrepreneurs. Mr. Lin Wei is a brother of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin
Feng.
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Mr. LIN Feng, aged 37, is the executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Lin Feng has about 13 years
of experience in the real estate business. He joined our Group in
2001. He was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011. Mr. Lin Feng
graduated from the Xiamen University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Economics and further obtained a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of Dundee. Mr. Lin Feng is a brother of
Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Wei.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GU Yunchang, aged 68, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Gu has been the vice
president of the China Real Estate Research Association since 2006
and had also been the vice president and secretary-general of the
China Real Estate Association from 1998 to 2006.

Mr. Gu formerly served at different positions in the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC, including the deputy director at Policy
Research Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1988 to 1998;
the person-in-charge of the City and Township Residence Research
Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1986 to 1988; and the Deputy
Division Head and Division Head at Urban Residence Bureau of
Ministry of Construction from 1979 to 1986.
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Mr. Gu engaged in theory and policy research, market research
and analysis concerning China real estate industry. In the 1980s,
he participated in the policy research and formulation of China's
city and village residential construction techniques, carrying on a
State key project “2000 China”, and won the First Class National
Science Technology Advance Award in China twice. After joining
the China Real Estate Association in 1998, he has been involved in
promoting the development of the China real estate industry as well
as undertaking the research and analysis of the national real estate
market. He is also the main organiser and writer of the China Real
Estate Market Report, an annual analysis report issued by the China
Real Estate Association. Mr. Gu was an independent non-executive
director of Shimao Property Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 813)
from April 2006 to May 2011. Mr. Gu has been the independent non-
executive director of Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited (SEHK stock
code: 3377) and of E-House (China) Holdings Limited (NYSE: EJ) since
2007 and 2008, respectively. Mr. Gu has also been the independent
director of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code:
000031) since April 2012. Mr. Gu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Urban Planning from Tongji University in July 1966.

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, aged 58, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in Economics from East China Normal University where he taught
since his graduation and he had become a Professor of Enterprise
Management at the same university since 1998. He is currently a
professor at the Faculty of Business of East China Normal University,
and the Dean of Shanghai E-house China R&D Institute, concurrently
as the vice president of the China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers
and Agents, Shanghai Economist Association, Shanghai Real Estate
Economy Society, as well as Council Member of China Real Estate
Association. Mr. Zhang has been the independent director of Shanghai
Wanye Enterprises Co. Ltd. (SSE Stock Code: 600641) since May
2010.
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Mr. TAN Wee Seng, aged 57, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is the chairman of our
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Tan has over 30 years of business, financial, operation and
strategy management experience and has also held various senior
management positions in a number of multinational and Chinese
corporations.

Mr. Tan has been an independent director of ReneSola Ltd. and 7 Days
Group Holdings Limited since 2009, the shares of both companies
are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He has also been a non-
executive director of Xtep International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock
code: 1368) and of Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock
code: 178) since 2010 and the independent non-executive director
of Biostime International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 1112)
since 2010. In June 2012, Mr. Tan has been re-designated from a non-
executive director to an independent non-executive director of Sa Sa
International Holdings Limited. In 1999, he served as a senior vice
president of Reuters and the head of Information and Trading System
for the China, Mongolia and North Korea regions. From 2003 to 2008,
he served as an executive director, chief financial officer and company
secretary of Li Ning Company Limited (SEHK stock code: 2331).

Mr. Tan is a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since 2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAU Sze Ka (Albert), aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. Mr. Yau has over 18 years of experience in capital
markets and corporate management. He joined the Group in July
2011. From December 2005 to June 2011, Mr. Yau was the director
of corporate affairs of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited, where
he was responsible for corporate finance, business development and
investor relationships. From January 2003 to December 2005, he
was a director of DBS Asia Capital Limited. From September 1999 to
January 2003, he worked for ICEA Capital Limited and his last position
held was executive director (investment banking division). During his
employment with DBS Asia Capital Limited and ICEA Capital Limited,
Mr. Yau executed a wide variety of capital markets and corporate
finance transactions, including initial public offerings, equity fund
raisings, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate restructuring. Mr.
Yau graduated from the University of California at Berkeley with a
Bachelor of Science Degree. He is also a holder of Chartered Financial
Analyst.

Mr. LIU Qingquan, aged 64, is the Vice President and Finance
Director of the Group. Mr. Liu is experienced in financial management.
He joined our Group in May 2005. He qualified as senior accountant (5
H&=HEM) in the PRC in December 1994,

Mr. ZHU Yu, aged 50, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Zhu
joined our Group in March 2006. Prior to joining our Group, he was
the secretary of the board and deputy general manager of Jiangsu
Xiake Color Spinning Co., Ltd, a listed company in the PRC. Mr.
Zhu graduated from Nanjin Normal University (F A& AER) with a
Bachelor's Degree in Mathematics. He also obtained the qualification
of associate professor in the PRC.

Mr. SHEN Zhenyu, aged 58, is the Director of Legal Affairs of the
Group. Mr. Shen has various experience in legal work. Mr. Shen joined
the Group in May 2005. Prior to joining the Group, he obtained the
senior judge certificate (Grade 4) in the PRC and served in the judiciary
in the PRC.
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Mr. PAN Taoyuan, aged 44, is the President Assistant and General
Manager of Sales Marketing Management Centre of the Group. Mr.
Pan joined the Group in February 2008. Before joining our Group, Mr.
Pan worked in Shanghai P & R Real Estate Consultant Co., Ltd as the
deputy general manager from October 2004 to January 2007. Mr. Pan
graduated from the National Taichung Institute of Technology majoring
in Japanese language.

Mr. ZHANG Liang, aged 38, is the Vice President and the Chief
Human Resources Officer of the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in
February 2012. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked in SPH Ke
Yuan Xinhai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (formerly known as CITIC Pharma
Co., Ltd.) as the Chief Human Resources Officer from July 2010 to
January 2012. He also worked in Tianjin Tasly Group Co., Ltd. as the
President Assistant and the Director of the Human Resources Centre
from April 2005 to July 2010. Mr. Zhang had worked in Motorola (China)
Electronics Limited from December 1995 to April 2005, as the Human
Resources Manager of semi-conductor department and the Asia
Pacific Representative of Global Performance Management Project.
Mr. Zhang graduated from the China Europe International Business
School with a MBA Degree, and Tianjin Foreign Studies University
with a Bachelor of Arts Degree.

Mr. ZHANG Weifeng, aged 43, is the President Assistant and the
Director of Business Development of the Group. Mr. Zhang joined our
Group in February 2009. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang held
managerial positions and had worked as the chief sales manager at
Shanghai Jingrui Properties (Group) Co. Ltd. between 2000 and 2008.
He had also worked in Procter & Gamble PRC as a Senior Manager in
the China Research and Development Centre from July 1994 to June
2000. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Nanjing University with a Master
of Science Degree.
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Mr. DING Yuangang, aged 46, is the Director of Operations
Management of the Group. Mr. Ding joined the Group in June
2010. He had various experience in information technology. Prior
to joining the Group, he worked as Group Chief Information Officer
for Chongging Longhu Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Ding graduated
from the Harbin Institute of Technology University with a Bachelor
Degree in Computer Software. He further completed the Mini-EMBA
programme at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Ding
also obtained the qualification of senior engineer in the PRC. He has
been awarded the Excellent Chief Information Officer Awards 2009.

Mr. YANG Xin, aged 39, is the Director of Treasury of the Group. Mr.
Yang joined the Group in July 2010. He has experience in banking and
finance. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in various management
positions at Agricultural Bank of China Limited. Mr. Yang graduated
from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a Bachelor's Degree
in International Finance and further obtained a Master of Business
Administration Degree. He also holds the Senior International Finance
Manager qualification issued by International Financial Management
Association.

Mr. WU Xue, aged 45, is the Director of Engineering of our Group. Mr.
Wau joined our Group in July 2012. He has over a decade of experience
in engineering, project management and business development. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Wu had worked in various group companies
of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (B&l£E) in Shanghai, Southern Jiangsu
from 2001 to 2012 where he had held managerial positions in project
management, engineering and business development since August
2004. Prior to that, Mr. Wu worked in China Construction Fifth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd (FEZEEFER TR BAER A ). Mr. Wu
graduated from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology
(FEFRRHEAE, formerly known as ZEAFIET KE) with a Bachelor
of Engineering degree majoring in Industrial and Civil Construction
Engineering. Mr. Wu obtained the qualification of engineer in the PRC.
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Mr. GU Shiquan, aged 48, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. Mr.
Gu joined our Group in May 2008. He is experienced in engineering
and project management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Gu had
worked for China National Real Estate Development Bengbu Company
(FREEMERZEEIEAF]). Mr. Gu graduated from the Anhui
University of Architecture (Z&#% T % 2505%), majoring in Industrial
and Civil Engineering. Mr. Gu obtained the qualifications of Class 2
Registered Architect (PRC) (B — £ M3EEERM) from The National
Administration Board of Architect Registration (2 LR EEem &I
Z 89) and Senior Engineer (4 LF2AM) from The Anhui Province
Construction Engineering Professional Senior Engineer Review Board
(RHERRIEEXSNITIZATEZES), and Class 1 Registered
Structural Engineer (PRC) (BIZX — #7451 Ti2EM) from The National
Administration Board of Engineering Registration (Structural) PRC (&

BEM IR EIRERE S () ).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Tai On, aged 58, was appointed as our Company Secretary
in October 2012. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 25 years of experience
in the field of company secretarial services and is now a director of
Fair Wind Secretarial Services Ltd., a secretarial company rendering
secretarial services. Mr. Lo is also the company secretary of AAC
Technologies Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2018), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (SEHK stock code: 239), and Good Friend
International Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2398), all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the period from 23 November 2012, the date the
shares of the Company commenced trading on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), to 31 December 2012
(the “Relevant Period”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain
better results and improve its corporate image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

The shares of the Company commenced trading on the Stock
Exchange on 23 November 2012 (the “Listing Date"”). Since listing,
the Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™).

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 December 2012, our Board consisted of six Directors
including Mr. Lin Zhong (chairman), Mr. Lin Wei (vice-chairman),
Mr. Lin Feng (chief executive officer) as the Executive Directors and
Mr. Gu Yunchang, Mr. Zhang Yongyue and Mr. Tan Wee Seng as
the Independent Non-Executive Directors. The overall management
and supervision of the Company's operation and the function of
formulating overall business strategies were vested in the Board.

Save as Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng is the brother of Mr. Lin Zhong,
there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

During the Relevant Period, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors represent half of
the Board, the proportion of which is higher than what is required by
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the
board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence element in
the Board to safeguard the interest of shareholders.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors have
to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. As at
31 December 2012, the Board comprised six Directors, including three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Their name and biographical details are set in the section entitled
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management officers of the
Company was maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing
their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of Executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back, and
will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon specific enquiries of
all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the Relevant
Period.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them
to deal in securities of the Company at any time when he possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees
was noted by the Company.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external auditors on
the financial statements of the Group are set out in the “Independent
Auditor's Report” in this annual report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. They bring an impartial view
on issues of the Company's strategies, performance and control.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors possess extensive academic,

professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

The Board also considers that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors can provide independent advice on the Company’s business
strategies, results and management so as to safeguard the interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed on 9 October
2012 for a term of three years. Apart from Mr. Zhang Yongyue who is
an independent director of CIFI Group Co., Ltd (JBIEEE XD R A 7)),
the main operating subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the
People’'s Republic of China, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors held any other offices in the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of
the Company. For the Relevant Period, all Independent Non-Executive
Directors have confirmed their independence to the Company
in accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his re-
election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM") upon
retirement. The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional member
of the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
members of Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM of the Company, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings
convened and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director
by ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period
of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director and may by
ordinary resolution elect another person in his stead.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times a
year. No board meeting was held since the Company was listed on
the Stock Exchange on 23 November 2012 up to 31 December 2012.
However, subsequent to the end of Relevant Period and up to the
date of this report, a Board meeting of the Company was held on 7
February 2013 to approve the Group's final results for the year ended
31 December 2012.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training
received by Directors during the Relevant Period according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:

BHEER -
EERRER

H A AHBA = REE I
Training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development

EENE Name of Directors and other relevant topics
HITEE Executive Directors

MRS A Mr. LIN Zhong v/
ME A Mr. LIN Wei v/
RIS A Mr. LIN Feng v
BB TESE Independent Non-Executive Directors

BEEENRE Mr. GU Yunchang v
RKERE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue v/
PRIERK S Mr. TAN Wee Seng v
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) toreview the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the Relevant Period, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. Lin Zhong, and Chief Executive Officer was held
by Mr. Lin Feng. The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage and provide leadership for the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer's responsibility to manage the Company’s
business.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders on the Company’s website.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 9 October 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
provide the Board with an independent review of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tan Wee Seng (being the chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Gu Yunchang and Mr. Zhang Yongyue. In compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit
Committee possesses the appropriate professional and accounting
qualifications.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 23 November
2012, no Audit Committee meeting was held during the Relevant
Period. However, subsequent to the end of the Relevant Period and
up to the date of this report, a meeting of the Audit Committee was
held on 7 February 2013 to review the Group's financial result for the
year ended 31 December 2012 before submission to the Board for
approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 9 October
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1
of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but not limitation):
(a) making recommendations to our Directors on our policy and
structure for all remuneration of our Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (b) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of our Directors and senior
management; and (c) reviewing and approving performance — based
remuneration be reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by our Directors from time to time.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, of whom
two are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The three members
are Mr. Zhang Yongyue (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Lin Zhong, our Executive Director and Chairman and
Mr. Tan Wee Seng.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 23 November
2012, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the
Relevant Period. However, subsequent to the end of the Relevant
Period and up to the date of this report, a meeting of Remuneration
Committee was held on 7 February 2013 to review and make
recommendation on the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management and director’s fee of Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 October
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and
senior management.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, of whom two
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The three members are
Mr. Lin Zhong (being the chairman of the Nomination Committee), the
Executive Director and Chairman, Mr. Gu Yunchang and Mr. Zhang
Yongyue.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 23 November
2012, no Nomination Committee meeting was held during the
Relevant Period. However, subsequent to the end of the Relevant
Period and up to the date of this report, a meeting of Nomination
Committee was held on 7 February 2013 to assess the independence
of Independent Non-Executive Directors and review the re-
appointment of Directors at the AGM.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
In preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to
code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informal assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor, are set out on page 90 of
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual report.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit services and non-
audit services are approximately RMB2,100,000 and RMB200,000,
respectively. The amount for 2012 non-audit services comprised
mainly the tax-related services fee. The Audit Committee was satisfied
that the non-audit services in 2012 did not affect the independence of
the auditor.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publications and the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company engaged Ernst & Young to conduct an assessment on
the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group for the IPO
exercise in 2012. Result of the assessment was positive.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis

by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed
at least once each year by the Board.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. Lo Tai On as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the year under review, he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
biography of Mr. Lo is set out on page 63 of this annual report. Mr.
Lo is not an employee of our Group and Mr. Yau Sze Ka (Albert), our
Chief Financial Officer, is the person whom Mr. Lo can contact for the
purpose of Code F.1.1 of Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ rights

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow article 12.3 of the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does
not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ rights (Continued)

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings (Continued)

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she
should give to the secretary of the Company notice in writing of the
intention to propose a person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected, no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed
for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s Principal
Place of Business in Hong Kong at Suites 2002-2003, One Pacific
Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong (email: ir@cifi.com.cn).

(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and
proper investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’
value, enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent
internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely
disclosure of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant
laws and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access
to information. In addition, since its listing on 23 November 2012, the
Company has proactively taken the following measures to ensure
effective shareholders’ communication and transparency:

o maintained frequent contacts with shareholders and investors
through various channels such as meetings, telephone and
emails;

° regularly update the Company’s news and developments through
the investor relations section of the Company's website;

° arranged on-site visits to the Group's projects for investors and
research analysts.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Through the above measures, the Company endeavours to

communicate with the investment community and provide them with

the latest development of the Group and the PRC real estate industry.

Information disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
shareholders, investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions.

Constitutional documents

During the Relevant Period, there is no change in the Company's
constitutional documents.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development, property investment
and property management. The activities and particulars of the
Company's subsidiaries are shown under note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s turnover and operating
profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note

6 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 92 of the annual report.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for 2012 of
HK4 cents per Share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”). Subject to the
approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 27 March 2013
(the "2013 AGM"), it is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will
be paid on or around 15 April 2013 to the shareholders whose names
appear in the register of members of the Company on 9 April 2013,
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2013 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 21 March 2013 to Wednesday, 27 March 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 March
2013.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The register of members will be closed from Monday, 8 April 2013
to Tuesday, 9 April 2013, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
Proposed Final Dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 April
2013.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out on pages 95 and 172 of this
report.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Relevant
Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholder.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Relevant Period and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang
(Appointed on 9 October 2012)
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue
(Appointed on 9 October 2012)
Mr. TAN Wee Seng
(Appointed on 9 October 2012)

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at AGM and be eligible
for re-election. Further, the Company's articles of association requires
that any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until
the following AGM and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. Lin Wei, being one of the Executive Directors out of
three, Mr. Gu Yunchang, Mr. Zhang Yongyue and Mr. Tan Wee Seng,
being all the Independent Non-Executive Directors appointed by the
Board on 9 October 2012, shall retire from office at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company and each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company. The
appointment of all the Director is for a period of three years and shall
continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving not
less than six months’ (in case of Executive Directors) or three months’
(in case of Independent Non-Executive Directors) prior written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent company was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors nor the management
shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or might compete with the business of the Group. Mr. Lin
Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng, being the Executive Directors
and the controlling shareholders of the Company declared that they
have complied with the undertakings given under the Deed of Non-
competition as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 13
November 2012 (the “Prospectus”). The Independent Non-executive
Directors have also reviewed the relevant undertakings and have not
noticed any non-compliance incident.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed "“Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

As disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus, during the term of the loan facility
granted by Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited to the
Company, Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng, their family
trust and the companies beneficially owned by them are required to
maintain beneficial shareholding of not less than 51% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company. The loan facility is in the total
sum of HK$580 million and for a term of 24 months commencing from
14 September 2011, being the date of the facility agreement. As at 31
December 2012, HK$290 million was repaid.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012, the Directors may invite
participants to take up options at a price determined by the Board
provided that it shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an offer is made by our Company to the grantee
(which date must be a business day, “Offer Date"”); (b) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of this annual report unless the Company
obtains a fresh approval from the Shareholders to refresh the limit.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total
number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders at a general meeting
of the Company.

The option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may
be determined and notified by the board of Directors to the grantee at
the time of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the grant date. As at the date of this annual report, no options
have been granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme.
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PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO share award scheme in December 2010
(amended in August 2011)(the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”) so
as to build up medium and long term incentive mechanism, retain
and cultivate talent, maintain the stability of the management team
and corporate business and to align the interests of the management
team with those of the shareholders. Initially, a total of 106 employees
(the "Selected Employees”) were awarded shares of the Company
which are held by Full Happiness International (PTC) Limited (“Full
Happiness”) as trustee for the benefits of the Selected Employees
under the Full Happiness Trust. The total number of the shares of
the Company held by Full Happiness was 136,500,000, representing
approximately 2.37% of the total issued share capital of the Company
(the "Awarded Shares”) as at the date of this annual report. No further
shares will be issued by the Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme.

The Selected Employees are not entitled to exercise or enjoy the
rights to the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of the Awarded
Shares in accordance with the applicable vesting period. Vesting
period is four years during which the Awarded Shares granted to any
particular Selected Employee will vest on each anniversary of the
first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date for all the
relevant Selected Employees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
is 1 January 2013. Prior to vesting, the Selected Employees are not
entitled to the rights to and interests in the Awarded Shares, including
voting and distribution rights.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

RIRARAEERONEE : Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares:
LN
EBRITRAEN
BHABESI
Approximate
M3 #E  percentage
RIPEE  of the issued
Number share capital
EEERE of Shares/ of the
Name of B3/ RmtE underlying Company
ESEB Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest Shares (%)
M A Mr. LIN Zhong ZA/NE] PREEFERRILA (PIEE) 1,154,739,670 20.01%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
NS RN HRAIA (M) 2,056,385,975 35.64%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
NESa Mr. LIN Wei PA/NC] AR R (P EE3) 613,765,775 10.64%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
NS RN HRAIA (M) 2,056,385,975 35.64%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
NS Mr. LIN Feng ZA/NS] ZREEFEMEILA (FTzE4) 204,588,580 3.55%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 4)
NS RGN HREIA (M) 2,056,385,975 35.64%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
JEEER(EB)BR AR | —ZT—ZFF® 83
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares: (Continued)
Notes:

1. These shares are held by Ding Chang Limited (“Ding Chang"). The entire issued share
capital of Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success International Limited
("Eternally Success”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned
by Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited (“Standard Chartered Trust”) as the
trustee of the Sun Success Trust. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Lin Zhong as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012.
The beneficiary objects of the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr.
Lin Zhong. Mr. Lin Zhong as founder of the Sun Success Trust is taken to be interested
in the 1,154,739,670 Shares held by Ding Chang pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”). The

entire issued share capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty Assets
Limited (“Gentle Beauty"”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Lin's Family Trust. The Lin’s
Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and
Mr. Lin Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The
beneficiary objects of the Lin's Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. Lin
Zhong and Mr. Lin Feng. Each of Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng as a co-
founder of the Lin's Family Trust is taken to be interested in the 2,056,385,975 Shares
held by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These shares are held by Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent Talent”). The entire issued

share capital of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by Mr. Lin Wei.

4. These shares are held by Rain-Mountain Limited (“Rain-Mountain”). The entire issued

share capital of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited
(“Beauty Fountain”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by
Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain Trust. The Sun-Mountain
Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lin Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered
Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust
include certain family members of Mr. Lin Feng. Mr. Lin Feng as founder of the Sun-
Mountain Trust is taken to be interested in the 204,588,580 Shares held by Rain-
Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2012, the following shareholders, other than those disclosed in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in
Securities”, had notified the Company of its interests and/or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:

As at 31 December 2012, so far as the Directors were aware, persons
other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

EARAE
ERITRAK
BMABD
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

5 HERGEE capital of
TERRERE 510 REME Number of Shares/ the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest underlying Shares (%)
Gentle Beauty SPEHl AR (M) 2,056,385,975 35.64%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
%= EmEAAME) 2,056,385,975 35.64%
Rosy Fortune Beneficial owner (Note 1)
Eternally Success el AR (T EE2) 1.154,739,670 20.01%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
88 EmEAA(ME2) 1,154,739,670 20.01%
Ding Chang Beneficial owner (Note 2)
=5 Ema APHE3) 613,765,775 10.64%
Eminent Talent Beneficial owner (Note 3)
Standard Chartered Trust SEEA(HiEE4) 3,415,714,225 59.20%
Trustee (Note 4)
Global Nominees Ltd. SRRl EE R () 3,415,714,225 59.20%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
BB (EE)BRAR | —T——FFHK 85
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, which is in turn directly and wholly
owned by Global Nominees Ltd (“Global Nominees”). Global Nominees is wholly held by
Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Lin's Family Trust. The Lin's Family Trust
is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng as
settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects
of the Lin’s Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin
Feng.

2. Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success, which is in turn directly and wholly
owned by Global Nominees. Global Nominees is wholly held by Standard Chartered Trust as
the trustee of the Sun Success Trust. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Lin Zhong as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The
beneficiary objects of the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr. Lin
Zhong.

3. Eminent Talent is wholly owned by Mr. Lin Wei.

4. These include 2,056,385,975 Shares held by Rosy Fortune, 1,154,739,670 Shares held
by Ding Chang and 204,588,580 Shares held by Rain-Mountain. The entire issued share
capital of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn directly and wholly owned by Global Nominees. Global Nominees
is wholly held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain Trust. The
Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lin Feng as settlor and Standard
Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain
Trust include certain family members of Mr. Lin Feng.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Relevant
Period was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the Relevant Period.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers together accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
purchases and sales respectively.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Pursuant to a lease agreement made by a subsidiary of the Company
namely WiVLABHE B A R/ A (Zhejiang Xuhui Property Co., Ltd.¥)
(“Zhejiang Xuhui”) as landlord with FZEJEEHEEAHRAHE (Jiaxing
Xucai Department Store Co., Ltd.*) (“Jiaxing Xucai"”) as tenant
(the "Lease Agreement”), the commercial arcade of Jiaxing CIFI
Square is leased by Zhejiang Xuhui to Jiaxing Xucai for a term of 15
years commencing from 17 June 2011. gk FH) 264 FAT IR
7 (Shanghai Yongsheng Property Management Co., Ltd.*), another
subsidiary of the Company, also provides property management
services to Jiaxing Xucai as occupier of Jiaxing CIFI Square pursuant
to the Lease Agreement.

Jiaxing Xucai is a company controlled by executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lin Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng. Therefore, Jiaxing
Xucai is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and the leasing of commercial arcade of Jiaxing
CIFI Square under the Lease Agreement constitutes continuing
connected transaction of the Group. The actual amount paid by Jiaxing
Xucai to the Group pursuant to the Lease Agreement in 2012 was
RMB9,942,000.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the leasing has been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i)~ on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them and

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)
The auditors of the Company have performed certain agreed-upon
procedures and provided a letter to confirm that the continuing
connected transaction set out above:

() has been approved by the Board,;

(i) has been entered into in accordance with the relevant terms of
the agreement governing the transaction; and

(i)  has not exceeded the total cap amount of the transaction
contemplated under the Lease Agreement as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The financial guarantee provided by Mr. Lin Zhong as connected
person as set out in note 38 headed “Related Party Transactions and
Balances” to the consolidated financial statements was exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are

set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



o0 W

Directors’ Report

BXLAHRBREMSREAREAR

ARABR-_ZT——F+— AGEBA#
TEAXAREEESNMERIBFES
£ 491,620,000,000/8 T (FHHERHAR
#1,320,000,0007T) - A B REEAME - 4
A R % 94,000,000 7T B 1R & & X B £
BIE——_F+—AT=HZHERERE
(TBRERDIARKREE RS RER
B —firEERRREEESD KA
ER - ABDAMBRIEABBEARE
1,226,000,000 7T #5 20 R A% EFZFTH# 75 -
#) A R #1,056,000,000 7T F 1E UL EE 7> R
B EEENFIEE L  HARE
38,000,0007T A {E# — FEERITEK
K #9 AR #132,000,000 7T B E— R 218
B AR -

BB

Y eMEMITETMITE LTEER
ERAR QB ZEED - I A5 FE fE B R
FRELERE - EERRBEFASLS
EE - HERBRANEREG e IR
SEFENTTRA R BRZEED

AEEEm
FE
A

&8 —E—=F_"A+tH

MIEE BT ET* iRt amh B AR A0 ISR AR R -
TXEBEAZETEERNE A -

JBIEIER (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFH

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Company’s IPO exercise on the Stock
Exchange in November 2012 amounted to approximately HK$1.62
billion (equivalent to approximately RMB1.32 billion). During the
Relevant Period, approximately RMB94.0 million was used to repay
a portion of the secured loan in accordance with the proposed
applications set out in the section headed “Future plan and the
balance and use of proceeds” containing in the prospectus dated
13 November 2012 (the “Prospectus”). The total balance of the un-
utilized proceeds of RMB1,226 million will be applied as disclosed in
the Prospectus, being approximately RMB1,056 million for acquisitions
of new projects or land for development in the PRC, approximately
RMB38.0 million for further repayment of bank borrowings and
approximately RMB132.0 million for general working capital purposes.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu were appointed as auditor of the Company
since listing and will retire at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

LIN Zhong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 7 February 2013

Note: The English names marked with “*" of the PRC entities are provided for identification
purpose only. The Chinese names are the official names of the PRC entities.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 199,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group's preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012,

and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 February 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_T——F+_-_A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

—EB--F —T——F

2012 2011

fizx AR%®Tr ARETT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000

KA Revenue 6 8,143,949 4,008,330
HER AR Cost of sales (6,217,898) (2,638,839
ER Gross profit 1,926,051 1,369,491
HABYA Other income 8 40,259 16,785
HEME AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 31 - 82,228
ER I AR ATEUES  Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties 1,205,882 1,025,365

BEMEANTEES Change in fair value of investment properties 233,488 123,455
EEREMEFRMEBEITETAR  Change in fair value of trust and other loans related

NE(EE derivatives 26,541 (15,000)
EHENTIGHEER S Selling and marketing expenses (245,837) (140,945)
THRAY Administrative expenses (285,155) (216,723)
HipfY Other expenses (18,258) (4,644)
EE= %N Finance costs 9 (43,328) (35,508)
B %54 A A 578 Profit hefore taxation 2,839,643 2,204 504
FriEHipx Income tax expense 10 (818,809) (742,449)
FRABRZEKALLE Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year 11 2,020,834 1,462,055

AT RIEREY - Attributable to:
VNN Equity owners of the Company 1,937,127 1,336,920
FEFEAR A Non-controlling interests 83,707 125,135
FANEREEBALE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,020,834 1,462,055
BREFN(ARE) : Earnings per share, in RMB:

2K Basic 14 0.42 0.30

#E Diluted 14 0.42 0.30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZZ——F+_-A=+—H At 31 December 2012

—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
izt AR®TrT ARETT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
BB Investment properties 15 3,955,800 2,231,300
ME - HENEE Property, plant and equipment 16 105,573 106,286
A EFE Prepaid lease payments 17 79,418 46,676
A ERE Available-for-sale investment 18 9,463 9,463
IR HIIR Restricted cash 23 21,768 21,768
EEFIIEAE Deferred taxation assets 28 114,073 63,483
4,286,095 2,478,976
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
HIEHEYE Properties held for sale 19 2,768,689 1,161,790
[Fakdeely/E- Properties under development 20 13,040,466 10,880,027
JEW AR &ﬁf‘@rﬂﬁl Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
e MBI prepayments 21 1,396,198 576,368
FEUR IE HRTE.E‘*J* Amounts due from non-controlling interests 22 122,554 2,000
BELEME T HFREES Deposits for land use rights for properties
held for sale 467,254 1,379,096
G dEE Taxation recoverable 184,526 172,745
RITESREIRS Bank balances and cash 23 4,590,733 2,573,896
22,570,420 16,745,922
ik h=Ri CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEN BRI M BB S Accounts payable and accrued charges 24 2,982,025 1,747,371
BUEEELRS Deposits received from property sales 6,201,751 4,726,260
JE - FEHE HXTZE“—*” Amounts due to non-controlling interests 22 263,849 186,037
JER 18 Taxation payable 760,540 655,253
BITREMERT—R— EW%JHH Bank and other borrowings — due within one year 25 3,372,220 1,922,656
EAREMETIEBITETIAR Trust and other loans related derivatives 26 = 50,000
13,580,385 9,287,577
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 8990035 7,458,345
HEERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,276,130 9,937,321
BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR 93
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZF——F+=-FA=+—H At31 December 2012

—EB--F —T——F

2012 2011

fizx AR%®Tr ARETT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000

BEAXRGHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
24 B Paid in/share capital 27 467,370 10,449
] Reserves 6,082,158 3,260,179
KRR R R EER A ER Equity attributable to equity owners of
the Company 6,549,528 3,270,628
FEVE IR A Non-controlling interests 391,066 373,867
RS AR TOTAL EQUITY 6,940,594 3,644,495
FnBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
RITREAM AR Bank and other borrowings
—R—FE3H — due after one year 25 5,493,188 5,828,896
EREREMEFEBEITETA Trust and other loans related derivatives 26 85,000 82,000
FELEFRIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 28 757,348 381,930

6,335,536 6,292,826
13,276,130 9,937,321

FNREI1EMGEEMBREREN =ZF  The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 199 were approved and
—=ZF - A+tBHEES=eHENKEET] authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 7 February 2013 and are signed on
Z WA MIATREEE behalf by:

AL N3 Mr. Lin Zhong Mr. Lin Feng
EFE EE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_T——F+_-_A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

KRRRRERE
Attributable to equity owners of the Company
ETRHEE HERE
B8/ BA RiFEE Rl Statutory Capital REHE Pl
Paid in/ Share Special surplus contribution Retained #=+  Noncontrolling ot
share capital premium reserve reserve Teserve profits Total interests Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARKTr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(WtzE1) (Mizk2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
W=E-—%-f-A At 1 January 2011 180,000 - 97,360 266,180 - 1,291,172 1,835,312 713454 2,608,766
ERMEREZERALE  Profitand total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 1,336.920 1,336,920 125,135 1,462,055

SRk Appropriations to reserve - - - 49,291 - (49.291) - - -

BRERE Dividend paid - - - - (26,000) (26,000) - (26,000)

E i St 0aa Capital injection from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 22,000 22,000

HENBRRIRERE Special reserve released upon disposal of a

ERIRE subsidiary - - 4589 - - (4,589) - - -
ARERED R Distribution to the Ultimate Shareholders - - (56,266) - - - (56,266 - 56,266)
BRI S Acquisition of additional interest in a

BB ARMEIMES  subsidiary from non-controlling interests

upon Reorganisation - - 120,507 - - - 120,507 (546,722) (426,215)

AR A #RE T Issue at date of incorporation - - - - - - - - -

R Issug of shares 10,449 236,442 - - - - 246,891 - 246,891

BN E Effect of the Reorganisation 180,000) - 6.716) - - - 186,716) - 186,716)

WZF——F+=A=+—H At31December 2011 10,449 236,442 159,454 315471 - 2548812 3210628 373,867 3,644,495

ERMEREIERALE  Profitand total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - 1931121 1931121 83,707 2,020,834

BRERHE Appropriations to reserve - - - 64,328 - (64,328) - - -

IR UM B AT Acquisition of additional interest in a

iSEIY subsidiary from non-controlling interest - - 23,765 - - - 23,765 (81,021) (57,256)
B BARTECERE  Reserves released upon deregistration of

HE subsidiaries - - 3,746 (2433) - 1313) - - -
BRARAEREE Recognition of equity-settled share based

WEARIARHR payments - - - - 501 - 5307 - 25,301
H?FF‘HX%EE% /AR Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary to

Btk anon-controlling interest - - 15,481 - - - 15,487 14513 30,000
ﬁmtﬁﬁﬁ%@(mﬁiﬂ(c]) Capitalisation issue of shares (note 271c)) 355,266 (355,266) - - - - - - -

RETEITRG Issue of shares in connection to the Listing

(MzE271) (note 27(d)) 101,655 1,250,357 - - - - 1,352,012 - 1,352,012

R ETEY Share issue expenses - (74,798) - - - - (14,798) - (14,798)

RZE-—F+=-A=+—H At31December 2012 467,370 1,056,735 202,452 377,366 25,307 4,420,298 6,549,528 391,066 6,940,594

B Notes:

1. E(ézgffifﬂfaE’qt}%gﬂﬁﬁﬁ}g%ﬂggm 1. Special reserve as at 1 January 2011 mainly represents contribution surplus from

ANGIESCANIEN ﬂhﬁ%%.ﬂﬁ1ﬁﬁﬁﬁ NGRS A=) shareholders of CIFI Group Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
SIERS  MIEERERHEL D IRAERIR the difference between cash consideration and carrying value of interest in certain
SREBEMELES THBATERNERENE subsidiaries arising from disposal of partial equity interest to non-controlling interests
SR N ERE AN EEN BT EE and elimination of the excess of the consideration paid over the equity interest certain
ETF2EMBATIIRAEZSNE D - ARZER wholly-owned subsidiaries acquired by the Group in previous years. The acquisitions
TR ESEEYAREE R ZEATIRE were classified as common control combination of the Group as these companies
JFrmﬁxﬁ(Eiﬁﬁgﬁj%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz)%ﬁ . were owned by certain Ultimate Shareholders (as defined in note 2 to the consolidated
AR SB AN EE R LRI HS 6 o financial statements) before transfer of their entire interest to the Group.

2. RN EE A RHEMBEIR ST B PTE B A R 2. In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the
I EIZMA| - ZEHE A R EERE% E10% % People’s Republic of China, those subsidiaries are required to transfer 5% to 10% of the
BEFEEEERMES  EExEEED M profit after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
BEAHI50% o BB I S A R AR A HE 25 1 registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends
BADIRREERIVEL « A ERSEET BIERM to equity holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
BAFENEE  BERaRBgEnEssEinsg years' losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the
FBATIEEINE N o subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_T——F+_-_A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2012
—B--F —ZT——F
2012 2011
iz AR®BTR ARETET
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
R EE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R 75 ) K Profit before taxation 2,839,643 2,204,504
AT SIEEL TR - Adjustments for:
BMEMA Finance costs 43,328 35,508
RERB M (B[O ) Allowance for (write-back of allowance for) doubtful
debts 1,207 (1,230)
Y BENREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,365 10,895
FEEBREATEEH WG Gain on change in fair value of investments held for
trading - (286)
[ e =2 SN Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties (1,205,882) (1,025,365)
Wiz
EAMEMER $H BT A Fair value (gain) loss on trust and other loans related (26,541) 15,000
BmAFEE)EE derivatives
B YE N BRI Increase in fair value of investment properties (233,488) (123,455)
HEME - BE REFHR Gain on disposal of property, plant and
ARG B IE S5 equipment and prepaid lease payments, net (18,201) (98)
HEN B A Az Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (82,228)
L2 U A Interest income (10,987) (13,371)
At ELE IR B WA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment (1,311) (1,078)
TR LAHX$$Z££31,%§$ Recognition of equity-settled share based payments
A Hxﬁﬁ 25,307 -
LEESEEAIIKEHESR Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,426,440 1,018,796
%{/Et{j’i%%i*jju Increase in properties held for sale (1,852,867) (1,235,677)
BBk rh L3 Increase in properties under development (1,373,393) (3,198,044
JEURBR T R B FE UG FRIE ~ $24 K2 Increase in accounts and other receivables, deposits and
TE FRIEIE AN prepayments (820,826) (255,156)
BIEREYE L HERRLES Decrease (increase) in deposits for land use rights for
S (32 40) properties held for sale 911,842 (834,816)
?ﬂ”lfi%f BIRERD Decrease in investments held for trading = 1,885
FER BT N FES R S 38 1 Increase in accounts payable and accrued charges 1,240,695 563,173
EHQ%%?%E?Q%PW Increase in deposits received from property sales 1,475,491 1,631,630
LES(ATA)RE Cash generated from (used in) operations 1,007,382 (2,308,209)
A B FTEE PRC income tax paid (400,475) (387,005)
RETHEB(FTR)REFHE NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 606,907 (2,695,214)
RETEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
F’Jé‘H RS i S B TR Advances to non-controlling interests (120,554) (2,000)
INERETE 5%% Additions to investment properties under development (31,805) (111,609)
HEWE  BERREFTSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
LA KR TR E FIE and prepaid lease payments 30,351 146
W BE BB A &) E’Jfﬁimb peit-E] Net cash outflow from acquisition of a subsidiary 29 (27,517) -
HBEME  WENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,842) (27,727
BWF & Interest received 10,987 13,371
DULAT  EE AR B Dividends received from available-for-sale investment 1,311 1,078
HENBARAIRSRAFE Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries - 79,819
AR N BB Repayment from related companies - 13,527
RRABIEERER Repayment from directors of the Company = 3,800
BREZTEMAES SR NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (150,069) (29,595)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE-T——F+-A=1+—HI%E Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

—F--F T —F
2012 2011
AR®BTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
&R FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PgiRTT M EMER New bank and other borrowings raised 6,080,725 6,758,206
EBERIETEREMER Repayment of bank and other borrowings (4,966,869) (2,883,500
BT Issue of shares 1,352,012 246,891
2T E Interest paid (704,127) (441,943)
B E=TER Repayment to an independent party (177,500) -
I in BT Share issue expenses (74,798) -
BRI RER e Repayments to non-controlling interests (69,588) (145,742)
[ FETE A o UG BB B JB R B AN Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary from
REIMER non-controlling interests (57,256) (426,215)
IR EREE Capital injection from non-controlling interests 30,000 22,000
BHNTE Effect of the Reorganisation - (186,716)
BN E =B Advance from an independent party = 177,600
FEIER R B Advances from non-controlling interests 147,400 116,106
BB RRERE DK Distribution to the Ultimate Shareholders upon
the Reorganisation - (56,286)
BRI E Dividends paid - (26,000)
BN Repayments to related companies = (9,550)
MANARIEFER Repayments to directors of the Company - (5,500)
RAFEFLRK Advances from directors of the Company - 2,808
MEZTHRESRSFE NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,559,999 3,142,159
RERBEESEYEMEBE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,016,837 417,350
FORERAELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR 2,573,896 2,156,546
EXRRERASZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 4,590,733 2,573,896
HERESEEBYERIM ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITEHRNIRS Bank balances and cash 4,590,733 2,573,896
BRI (EEB)AR AR | —F——FFRK 97
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T——F+_-_A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2012
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

The Company is a company incorporated on 20 May 2011 and
registered in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands. The address of the
registered office is P. O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

As at the date of incorporation, the Company's initial authorised share
capital was HK$1,000,000,000, divided into 10,000,000,000 shares
of a par value of HK$0.10 each, of which 1 subscriber share was
allotted and issued to Mapcal Limited as the initial subscriber, and was
subsequently transferred to Ding Chang Limited, a BVI incorporated
company wholly owned by Mr. Lin Zhong, one of the controlling
shareholders, at HK$0.1 on 20 May 2011. To rationalise the corporate
structure in preparation for the listing of its shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing"”), the Company underwent a group reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”), further details of which are set out in the
Company's prospectus dated 13 November 2012. The Company's
shares were then listed on the Stock Exchange on 23 November 2012
(the “Listing Date").

The address of principal place of business of the Company is Suites
2002-2003, 20th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway Hong
Kong. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are property development,
property investment and provision of property management and
property related services.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the holding
company of the companies then comprising the Group on 9
September 2011. Since the Company and the companies then
comprising the Group were under common control by Mr. Lin
Zhong, Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng (collectively referred to as the
“Ultimate Shareholders”) both before and after the completion of the
Reorganisation, the Reorganisation was accounted for using merger
method of accounting.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 include the
results and cash flows of all companies then comprising the Group,
as if the group structure upon the completion of the Reorganisation
had been in existence throughout the year ended 31 December
2011, or since their respective dates of acquisition, incorporation or
establishment, where this is a shorter period.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the group entities operate (the function currency of group entities).

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The International Accounting Standards Board has issued a number

of new and revised International Accounting Standards (“IAS"),

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), amendments and

related Interpretations (“IFRIC”) (hereinafter collectively referred to

as the “new and revised IFRSs”) which are effective for the Group’s

financial year beginning on 1 January 2012.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued but

not yet effective.

Amendment to IFRSs Annual Improvement to IFRS 2009-20112

Amendments to IFRS 1 Government Loans?

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?
Amendments to IFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and

and IFRS 9 Transition Disclosures®
Amendments to Investment Entities®

IFRS 10, IFRS 12

and IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,

IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance?
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
[FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Iltems of Other
Comprehensive Incomes'
IAS 19 Employee Benefits?
(as revised in 2011)
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements®

(as revised in 2011)
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

|AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint

(as revised in 2011) Ventures?

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities*

IFRIC — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

The Group has not early adopted these new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the investment properties and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, and
in accordance with accounting policies set out below which are
in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries and special purpose entities). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
profits). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when all of the following criteria are satisfied:

° the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties
are transferred to buyers;

° neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
properties are retained;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

103



B3 4 W 85 R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. BEAETHEw@)
AT (45)
éiiJLLH&U\EE.P Z A F A B K ER

MR T AREMBRARTRBRER
™o

KEREHENHEHSWAREGREEH
RNIABARVERER °

) 5 B 3R AR MR AR B 1 AR A% ) B ) e

7
o

HL 49 56 18 B8 AR A% W AR B2 L Al 75 B e

7
e

ERBMNARAIGERAARER - BRA
WEREEEHN FEHER - AlemRem
BENNEWA - 2@EENHEWA
DERERER S RBERER T RIRERE

HEEZG  BEREMNXBEReREERY
FHBET B RR WA ERIREZ
B EE V)RR B AR EFE AV A K o

FERKE LIﬁU\E’\ﬁglLBZHX K IE HY HE
) 7 PR R (ME A M A 25 1R AT RE IR

AREE - WA NI SEE
B Ty RIRERR) °

REWE
REMEERFEDNEE R HREARE
(ENIESEEN:0EYE S

BEMENTIZRAN (BRI EEES
FISOETE - RPHERE - REMER
RARAFEEA QT EFE REVE
N EZPAELENREIERREE
HARIET AsB s o

104

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Deposits received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management service income is recognised over the period in
which the services are rendered.

Other property related service income is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



4. EREFTEEX @)
BREYEE)
EESFAEARBRIEREMERENYE
DEERAERPREDE  YITERKR
itE - EBRERAAFERREZ AT ERT
£ o WEEASEHEFTAFE  BIF%
PR EMEBIERAGE B2 A FE
AABEREEEERI AL ERA
FEEREE 2 FE A =5 E % HA
FEE A IER o

BREMER B ERNEB AL LE
SR IE R L EMES B REEMNZE
P48 L HERR » IR IL TR R FTE AT
s sk B 1R (IR E TS IR H R B R
EREE BRERTE)NZRBRLE
FER ARt AtEAR -

Y% BERRE
ME - BERRE(BRFETERAEN
T3 MET ) IRRAR R ITE RMERE
FERREEEYIRR

RIGEFTAME R FHAMEY R - BE &
REEBE ORAFRER - AEREHE
RITE - EEAERFEY BERTE
EEREREPRRE - EAGEER
R ERERIGEREEN -

ME  BEMREBEERNLERIER
HEBETRAZEETENBRELERE
M SRS AR EFERR - MBS BEN X © ]
FhFREEE KEENEAEESERE
MHEMSRIARZEERAEZ AN
ERTEWNIRRTER

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
development and is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair
values using the fair value model. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under development will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or
development is completed, in which time any difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount will be recognised in profit or loss in
that period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for administrative purposes are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for land
use rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit
or loss over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those
that are classified and accounted for as properties under development
intended to be held for sale.

Properties under development

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for sale, the leasehold land component is amortised
over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the construction
period, the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of the costs of the properties under development.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for own
use or their investment potential are shown as non-current assets.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
are shown as current assets and carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount (the higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is released over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (its functional currency, i.e., RMB).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred taxation
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred taxation assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred
taxation is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred taxation is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities and deferred
taxation assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 “Investment Property”,
such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such a
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities and
deferred taxation assets for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS 12
(i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent
to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of shares granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in capital
contribution reserve.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with related costs. Grants related to non-
current assets are presented as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset and are released to income over the useful lives
of the assets. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis in
the period in which they become receivable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“"FVTPL"), loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading on
initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that

the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
interests, restricted cash and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged

decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset'’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
accounts and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
\When an accounts or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group (including accounts payable, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, amounts due to related companies
and directors and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with IAS 18 “Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations specified
in the relevant contracts are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities or deferred
taxation assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors have determined that the presumption set out in IAS 12
“Income Taxes” that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Construction costs estimation for revenue recognition

Certain projects of the Group are divided into several phases according
to the development and delivery plans. The Group recognises sales
upon delivery of properties. Cost of sales including construction costs
specific to the phases and common costs allocable to the phases
are calculated based on management’s best estimation of the total
development costs for the whole project and the allocation to each
phase at the time when the properties are delivered.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the valuations
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining
the fair values, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market condition. In relying on
the valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the
valuation are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group's investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Income tax expense

Deferred taxation assets of RMB114,073,000 (2011: RMB63,483,000)
mainly in relation to tax losses and land appreciation tax have been
recognised at 31 December 2012 as set out in note 28. The reliability
of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. The directors of the Company determine the deferred taxation
assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates and the
best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for coming years
during which the deferred taxation assets are expected to be utilised.
The directors of the Company will review the assumptions and profit
projections by the end of the reporting period. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred taxation assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in
which such a reversal takes place.

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However, the
implementation of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions
in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have
not finalised their land appreciation tax calculations with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related income
tax provisions. The Group recognised the land appreciation tax based
on management'’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with
local tax authorities.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Valuation of trust and other loans related derivatives

As described in note 26, assumptions are made based on market
data such as volatility, credit spread, risk free rate, property selling
prices of the project and the property development plan estimated
by management for the valuation of trust and other loans related
derivatives.

Where the actual future market data or property development plan
varies, a material adjustment on the fair values of trust and other loans
related derivatives may arise. When estimating the fair value of the
derivative with reference to the valuation report, management has
exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the assumption adopted
for the valuation is reflective of the current market conditions and its
best estimation on the property development plan.

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents income from sales of properties, rental income
and income from provision of property management and property
related services earned during the year, net of discounts allowed, and is
analysed as follows:

—B--F T —F
2012 2011
AR¥TRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
SHEME Sales of properties 7,991,465 3,914,284
HEWA Rental income 44,390 12,411
L E LN S EV el TGN Property management and property related services income 108,094 81,635
8,143,949 4,008,330
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker (i.e., the board of directors of the
Company) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess
its performance.

Information reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is
focused on three main operations:

o Property development: this segment represents the development
and sales of office premises and residential properties. All the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC").

o Property investment: this segment represents the lease of
investment properties, which are developed by the Group to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in
the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group's
investment property portfolio is located entirely in the PRC.

o Property management and property related services: this
segment mainly represents the income generated from property
management. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are
carried out in the PRC.

The chief operating decision maker regularly reviews the operating
results by property development projects. As property development
projects are all located in the PRC, their revenue is primarily derived
from the sales of properties, and is related and subject to common risk
and returns. All property development projects are aggregated into a
single reportable segment, property development, in accordance with
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
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7. 2EER @ 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) ZFBYKRARFIHE (a) Segment revenue and profit
ﬁlﬁ IR FAREFEFERLLIREEL  Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
@Eﬁf&uﬂﬁ“*ﬁi’%fﬁmﬁfaﬁgl to the Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
WO ERFHINAT o resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
year is set out below.

NREER
FHERE RBHERE NEEERY st

Property

management

and property

Property Property related
development investment services Total
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARET:R
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

BE-Z-—E+-A=1+-ALEE Vearended 31 December 2012

A2/APRA Reportable segment revenue 7,991,465 44,390 108,094 8,143949
2R HHE Reportable segment profit 1628123 41,801 10,291 1,680,215
NEEBR
FHERE  FHERE NEAERE @zt
Property
management
and property
Property Property related
development investment Services Total
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  AR%T:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE-ZT——4T-A=T—HILFEE Yearended3! December 2011
ERFFRA Reportable segment revenue 3914264 12411 81,63 4,008,330
28D HHE Reportable segment profit 1,202,388 11,559 7581 1221528
(b) PHEEREE (b) Segment assets and liabilities

HREELERKRERNTEREESE  No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of the Group's
ERBFITESAEENEARE ELITE  segment reporting that are used by the chief operating decision
VD HEEREE - maker. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue and profit

The reportable segment profit represents the results by each segment
without including any effect of allocation of other income earned
from operations other than the Group’s main operations, gain arising
on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated head office and corporate
expenses, depreciation of property, plant and equipment, net (write-
back of) allowance for doubtful debts, fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties, change in fair value of investment properties,
fair value gain (loss) on trust and other loans related derivatives and
finance costs. This is the measurement basis reported to the chief

BIRRAHERBR T EER -

operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

—F-=F T —F
2012 2011
ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue
Al 2RO FBRERE A Reportable segment and consolidated revenue 8,143,949 4,008,330
FIE Profit
K EINIE IR 23R 3BF)E Reportable segment profit derived from external customers 1,680,215 1,221,528
H A Other income 40,259 16,785
HEH B A R Gain on disposal of subsidiaries = 82,228
B SIS ERE Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties 1,205,882 1,025,365
ERMEMEFABEITETA Fair value gain (loss) on trust and other loans related
RNHEM R (EE) derivatives 26,501 (15,000)
REYENFEE Change in fair value of investment properties 233,488 123,455
BhE Bk A Finance costs (43,328) (35,508)
M - BERBETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (13,365) (10,895)
RIR (B4 ) 2 [ B & (Allowance for) write-back of allowance for doubtful debts (1,207) 1,230
AOBLAE MR Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (288,842) (204,684)
R ATAR & FIE Consolidated profit before taxation 2,839,643 2,204,504

(d) HEER

RN B E L RE IR BT -

B 2 5 [ B R o

(e) EEEF

WEEE —MNEEFPETNRZHMER

MNEREBERA10%IA L ©
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(d) Geographic information

operating activities are carried out in the PRC.

(e) Major customers

amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

No geographic information has been presented as the Group's

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
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8. HlA

8. OTHER INCOME

—g-=f —T——%
2012 2011
AR¥TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A ERERNREWA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment 1,311 1,078
BHEEERENATEZBNR Gain on change in fair value of investments held for trading - 286
B U A Interest income 10,987 13,371
HEYE  BEREREUR Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
TEHEERIAM R 5 prepaid lease payments, net 18,201 98
BR AT A 8k (B3E) Government grants (note) 6,289 921
BRERZ SRS Forfeited deposits paid by purchasers 1,942 323
HIUA Sundry income 1,529 708
40,259 16,785
9. EWMEMAK 9. FINANCE COSTS
—F--F ZT—F
2012 2011
AR®TR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ERRFNEBERNRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings and amounts due to
Hfth & TR B N SE PR AR i 2 R IE non-controlling interests wholly repayable
B within five years (697,579) (569,839)
BARAFRBBEENRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings not wholly repayable
HAbfEFF B within five years (6,548) (6,730)
B FERMEREEREEMED Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development
BR e and investment properties under construction 660,799 541,061
(43,328) (35,508)
AT FE25FTHER - FEPWERERE  Borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development and

BREWMECERMMENERKATIRIES
RITREAMERO AL RETE -

investment properties under construction were determined by the
contracted interest rates of respective bank and other borrowings as
disclosed in note 25.
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10. FAEHRX

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—B--F T —F
2012 2011
ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000

P EEFTISH PRC enterprise income tax:
BNERFTIS AR Current income tax (329,495) (256,378)
BIFEEREREBETE) Over (under) provision in respect or prior years 51 (1,597)
(329,444) (257,975)
b IEER ([ b IBER ) Land appreciation tax (“LAT") (164,537) (195,034
(493,981) (453,009)
ERERIE (P7E28) Deferred taxation (note 28) (324,828) (289,440
(818,809) (742,449)

BER-_ZEZNF—A—BERNIFH
EARXMBECEMSREREREK
Bl - ARARHENBARKEERE S
25% ' EEREXEERIER_ZT
NFE—A—BRIZEEBRLEMEHRE
15%METHEMRBARRBE_ZE
NG —T—ZTFR-_FT——F+=A
= +—HILFERBHEBETERHRRR
SEIR D BIR20% ~ 22% K 24% F o

LLEHBEEERRE  BETHEHMN
B AR ER B RERRTRARIRE
TE R E25% AT - i FERBIMA LRI
HAREREERARETH AN T
W ARI8% ZE10% °

T EN B R AR BAR R R B AR
RIOERBARE AT - LHIBEHE
RIBE B RAE T R S 1F B (MY
AT AT A RERR R SRR )

REXBRELEE([RBRERESE]) R
RERSNRAMER  AEEBAE
RBRZBEEMRRASEESHMNETMME
B o
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Under the new Enterprise Income Tax and Implementation Rules of
the People's Republic of China effective from 1 January 2008, the
statutory tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is 256% except
for certain PRC subsidiaries, which were previously approved by
competent authorities to enjoy the preferential Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 15% before 1 January 2008, were taxed at 20%, 22%, 24%
for the year ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively,
pursuant to relevant grandfathering rules and regulations.

As approved by various competent tax bureaus, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25% on their respective
deemed taxable income, ranging from 8% to 10% of revenue in
accordance with the prescribed tax calculation method pursuant to the
applicable PRC tax regulations.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands

(“BVI") and Cayman lIslands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the BVI and Cayman Islands.
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10. PRI (&

EEEQZIK%IEET%’AEE’UH&)\E%T\F =

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the income

MIEREEE A EFEEBNESHIE  of the companies comprising the Group neither arises in, nor is
R o derived from, Hong Kong.

EER BRI B HIFE28 o Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 28.
FENRBEEREGA2ENKZEERABR  The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

Bl *UEE’\];TEEQDT :

taxation per consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

—B-—f —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥BTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
G EIRIVE Profit before taxation 2,839,643 2,204,504
1B 25% 50 4N B B > S TSR PRC enterprise income tax at 25% (709,911) (551,126)
TT?D%RS?JiE’ﬁRﬁ‘%%; Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes (22,905) (14,321)
BERTRWARNTRIET & Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 19,032 7,816
TR {ETR LAT (164,537) (195,034)
THIEERRETE Tax effect of LAT 4,134 48,759
BEFERETR Over(under)provision in respect of prior years 51 (1,597)
RIEARTRIBEENRETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (38,970) (44,882)
B S IR FE R T IE 518 Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 49,018 9,253
AR R EEN RS & Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not
recognised (21,508) (26,224)
A LR AR ARG =% Utilisation of deductible temporary differences previously
not recognised 29,900 2,955
ETHEMBARRMNET Effect of adopting prescribed tax calculation method by
TR AR R & certain PRC subsidiaries (1,764) 19,055
BYHhENBARIREERERNFE Effect of preferential tax rates granted to the PRC
subsidiaries - 87
HAth Others 1,651 2,810
FEMIEER Tax charge for the year (818,809) (742,449)
BIE Notes:

1. BEARRBRANHBEY B RIEEEREMER 1.
BT AET AN A FEREAR HE—RITEA

RIFTSRER R BZRRBER D ©

2. AR ARG ZENR B EERAEARR 2.
IR A RIS P EE £ MY AT R ER B 2 58 o

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

subsidiary.

construction of properties.

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes mainly represent fair value gain on
trust and other loans related derivatives and non-taxable portion of gain on disposal of a

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised represent adjustments of
deductible temporary differences arising from inter-company transactions in relation to
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1. FRANBRZEBAZE 11. PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

—B--F —T——F
2012 2011

ARBTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

FAMEREERALLLETHEHE  Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

(FFA)ToIEIE has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
ZHEMEE Auditors’ remuneration 6,582 2,371
S AEEK AR EHEMER AN Cost of properties held for sale included in cost of sales 5,518,303 2,314,098
M - BERRERTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,365 10,895
HEYE  BEMEREANTERN Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and

HEHENWZERE prepaid lease payments, net (18,201) (98)
HEMB AR K Gain on disposal of subsidiaries = (82,228)
RORRE (RO BE) Allowance for (write-back of allowance for) doubtful debts 1,207 (1,230)
T RIEFHKEHRERS Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings 15,040 10,324
B TR Staff costs

EE2HM(HH12) Directors’ emoluments (note 12) 6,342 4,155

Hih 8 TR Other staff costs

B T (eI EAREFRA) Staff costs excluding retirement benefit costs 291,678 190,387
RIRBHIB AR Retirement benefit costs 20,569 13,707
8 TR Total staff costs 318,589 208,249
B RBEPYENENME SR Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development (98,627) (82,189)
219,962 126,060
BEMERSWA Rental income from investment properties (44,390) (12,411)
B SRR Y Less: Related outgoings 2,590 852
(41,800) (11,559)
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12. EBRESEMH 12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

—E--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR®BTRT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000

EEHM Director's emoluments
EEMe Directors' fees - -
FFHITEE R B N IENITEEN Other emoluments for non-executive directors and

H 57 independent non-executive directors = -
PITEEREM N Other emoluments for executive directors
— HAR#H4 REEL — basic salaries and allowances 6,121 3,700
— TEAL(MIEE) — bonus (note) - 296
— RIREFER —  retirement benefit contribution 221 159

6,342 4,155

sk : BE-_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFENMELIS Note: Bonus for the year ended 31 December 2011 was a discretionary performance related
IS RBFAAEDN KA RAEENFEE DL incentive payment determined as a percentage of the profit of the Group.
EE e
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12. EEREEFMH =) 12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
EXFZe RREF
ik R8s TE4T fitsx @zt
Basic Retirement
Directors’  salaries and benefit
fees  allowances Bonus  contributions Total

ARBTE ARBTE ARBTE ARBTT ARBTT
RVMB000  RVBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMB'000

BE-E-=F Year ended 31 December 2012
+ZHA=1+-HLEE
HITESHS Name of executive director
A Mr. Lin Zhong - 1,625 - 1 1,697
WREEE Mr. Lin Wei - 1,761 - 71 1,838
N Mr. Lin Feng - 2,665 - 12 2,731
BUkHTESHSR Name of independent
non-executive director
BEELE Mr. Gu Yunchang - 2 - - 2
FOKELAE Mr. Zhang Yongyue - 2 - - 2
BRIEMTE Mr. Tan Wee Seng - 26 - - 26
- 6,121 - 74| 6,342
BE2-E8——F Year ended 31 December 2011
+ZHA=1+-HLEE
HITESHZ Name of executive director
G Lin Zhong - 1,189 - 3 1222
wWE Lin Wei - 1,185 - 66 1,251
RIE Lin Feng - 1326 296 60 1,682
- 3,700 296 159 4,155

IS ERBARRNRIMITEARE - M_ESX  Mr. Lin Feng is the Chief Executive of the Company and his
i E w5 2R EEETHAREMF  emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
Bl o him as the Chief Executive.
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12. EEREEEFMN =)

TEREHMAL

BE_ZT——"H+-_A=t+—HL*F
(=
T——F WMEEF) - BHE_T—_F
T A=t HLFENEKTUERES
FMAL(ZZE—F HBR=2KS%

B AAGReFMALERE —RES

AL BN T

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals included 1 director for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 2 director). The emoluments of the
remaining 4 highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: remaining 3 highest paid individuals) are as follows:

—E2B--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR%TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

{=3=]

— EARFe KER

— fE4T

- LAHXZMEE & B AR TR
RKERMER

Employees

— basic salaries and allowances 5,560 3,427
— bonus - 1,323
— equity-settled share-based payments 3,330 -
— retirement benefit contributions 129 261

9,019 50M1

REFHFBNIA THEA

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

AE N

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

—E-—F —T——&

2012 2011

1,000,001/ 70 £ 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 2

1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T
3,000,001 7T 23,500,000/8 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 = -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1

1

AEBYERNARREZTSABRDH
MALNERMFMIESMBREE
SN AN SR B A SR Sk BB AR 18 - 4R

A - REARBEFEREEMFM -

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors of the Company has waived any emoluments during
the year.
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13. K& 13. DIVIDEND
—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥TR AR®BT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EE AR B — AT @mARABIL Proposed final dividend — HK4 cents (2011: nil)
(Z2—%F: ) per ordinary share 186,948 -
ZE - _FHEFERHREEEARAT The proposed final dividend for the year 2012 is subject to the

PRI e fE A RIBF RS HLE -

14. BRER

BREBEAREMEBETERZZS—F
—H—HZEK  BEZT——-F+=
A=+—BLFENEGRERRFTIZ
RARREEREGEFAFBEOARE
1,937,127,000c (=& ——F : ARK

1,336,920,00070) R E—T——F+—
A=+—HItFEMND BT L@ INE

S ¥9%14,645,658,00008 (=T — —F :
4,436,603,000/%)5T & -

HRAEBERBE_T——FKk_F
——%+=H *+—E|JJ:¢F§*3\E?§£\E§§
TTBEEEEE B - BRBHZMIES
EE2RNEBRERANSEELAR -
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approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2012 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity owners of the Company of approximately RMB1,937,127,000
(2011: RMB1,336,920,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2012
of 4,645,658,000 (2011: 4,436,603,000), on the assumption that the
Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue had been completed on 1
January 2011.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both
years.
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15. BREWE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

EEREME BRI
Investment REME
properties Completed

under investment st
construction properties Total

ARETT ARETT ARETI
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R-_B——F—Af—H At 1 January 2011 510,000 69,900 579,900
ERARELEYE Transfer from properties held for sale - 1,389,600 1,389,600
HE Additions 138,345 - 138,345
RERERN LT EZEZE Net change in fair value recognised in profit or loss 111,655 11,800 123,455
RZE——F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2011 760,000 1,471,300 2,231,300
ERESEHENE Transfer from properties held for sale - 1,440,000 1,440,000
AE Additions 51,012 - 51,012
RERERN A TEZEEE Net change in fair value recognised in profit or loss 162,988 70,500 233,488
R-B-Z5+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2012 974,000 2,981,800 3,955,800

BE_T——_FRk_F——F+=A
=t—HILEFE AREF=7HKE
MECHR  BrRMEREBRE - Wi§
BIELEMEERBIREME -

ERTHREVEREZREYMEOLRN

TE BRHEE - FTACRIIREY
O LEEEN -

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

The transfer from properties held for sale to investment properties
was made since there was a change in use as evidenced by the
commencement of operating leases to third parties during the year
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are all situated in the PRC under medium-term
leases. All the completed investment properties are rented out under
operating leases.
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15. REWH )
AEBERTIREMERFIELEMEE
EEAMURR - E——FR-_T——
F+-A=+—HHAFE  UELKE
BEEKREWER-_ZTE——FN_F
—— F+ - A=+—HWHAFETER
AR EWERENB LS EREEM
ERITTEE — N FRAEHT(HE R FE X EM
BRAFNRZEHBHETHHEMS
e FE—AFRHHTHEREXENE
RAREAEGHEMEEN  BEHRFT
AR R A % 5 m A 5 -

ERTHREVENGHEDFAERLR
EALEREMS LNAELBEER
7 RAERERZEBREHEOMEHE
FWAFBEMEN T AFE  WEE
ZREAMFEETBANEREN

ERREMENBEIDRAREERLZ
S EMFESRB SR RAERK
TEVEZE - 5t R STR R 3 PR R A 23
RAMSH » WRRE % TFHEIRAEH
EE

rEER-_ZTE——F+-A=1T—H%K
# A R #974,000,0007T( - T ——4 :
AR #2,047,000,0007T) K& EWIZE - BA
BERAEERRITREMER
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties at
date of transfer from properties held for sale and at 31 December
2012 and 2011 and the Group’'s investment properties under
construction at 31 December 2012 and 2011 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuations on those dates carried out by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group, who have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations of completed investment properties were arrived at
with adoption of the direct comparison approach by making reference
to comparable rental transactions as available in the relevant markets
and where appropriate, by capitalising the net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary
incoming potential of the respective properties.

The valuations of investment properties under construction were
arrived at with adoption of the residual approach with the basis that
they will be developed and completed in accordance with the latest
development proposals and taken into account the construction costs
that will be expended to complete the development to reflect the
quality of the completed development.

The Group had pledged investment properties of RMB974,000,000

(2011: RMB2,047,000,000) as at 31 December 2012 to secure bank
and other borrowings of the Group.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HELTH
REF
Leasehold BB R AR
land  HE)EEH  Equipment
and Motor and =t
buildings vehicles furniture Total
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR COST
R—E—F—HF—H At 1 January 2011 69,887 25,240 12,442 107,569
INE Additions 8,631 6,951 12,145 27,727
HeE Disposals - (458) (164) (622)
HEHBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - (364) (697) (1,061)
RZZE——F+=ZH=+—~H At 31 December 2011 78,518 31,369 23726 133613
INE Additions 332 4192 8,318 12,842
hiSELEMESH A Reclassified from properties held for sale 11,851 11,851
HeE Disposals (11,851) (838) (473) (13,162)
R-—ZB——F+-_H=+—H At 31 December 2012 78,850 34,723 31,571 145,144
Z:HrE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
R-E——F—H—H At 1 January 2011 837 10,747 5,969 17,553
FRRAX Charge for the year 3,736 4197 2,962 10,895
HE R B Eliminated on disposals - (437) (137) (574)
HE B A B 8 Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries - (350) (197) (547)
R=F——%+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 4573 14157 8597 271327
FARE Charge for the year 3,840 4919 4,606 13,365
HE R B Eliminated on disposals - (684) (437) (1,121)
R-E——H5+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2012 8,413 18,392 12,766 39,571
BRMEE CARRYING VALUES
R=2—=—%+=A=+—H At 31 December 2012 70,437 16,331 18,805 105,573
R-_ZE——E+-A=+—081 At 31 December 2011 73,945 17,212 15,129 106,286
BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR 133
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16. ¥I5% > BERZB@
LitE - BB REEEE NG kiR
BT 5 F Rt E O RIS EERAE
BRI -

HELTH BRI A G Ei205 3¢
RigF TR (AR & B 2E)

BB IR 20%

REREM  20%

FRAEBF AR T AR HEER
BEy LM E o

REER_T—Z—_FR_ZF—F+_
A=+—BHEEREATmE  BER
B

17. ASHEERE
ENAESKENETERAEBAR T E
teeh TR E TS A BMEE R S AR B
AT B L o PR -

AEBR_-Z
HENBEES
T——1F : AR¥21,772,0007T) °
RAE B IRIT R AL o

T——F+A=t+—HHK
K18 A FR#21,772,0007T( =
LAYE

18. AAHELERE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

using the straight-line method after taking into account of their

estimated residual values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the estimated useful lives of 20 years or the
term of the leases, whichever shorter

20%

Equipment and furniture 20%

Motor vehicles

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under medium-
term leases.

The Group had not pledged any property, plant and equipment at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents land use
rights held in the PRC under medium term leases intended for hotel
property development and administrative usage.

The Group had pledged prepaid lease payments of RMB21,772,000

(2011: RMB21,772,000) at 31December 2012 to secure bank and
other borrowings of the Group.

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

—B--F —ZT——F

2012 2011

ARETR ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

R AR A SR FE AR AR & Unlisted equity security, at cost 9,463 9,463

bt IE £ AR E A P B RS O AL
EERLETHBBEREEEFRAA
(TR BRIRE MR E - REM R
& ERKARRENTAFE - REHE
REEAFEMGFTEERER - @ARF
EERR/ERFETERAIEFE -

134

The above unlisted equity investment represents the investment
Ltd ("CURA
Investment”), a private entity established in the PRC. It is measured
at cost less impairment at each financial reporting date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be reliably measured.

in CURA Investment Management (Shanghai) Co.,
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18. AJHtHERE W)
R—_E——F+—-_A=+—8 ' X%H
BEREHREHBRA2.06%(ZF——
F:206%) c NAREERAREHR
MEBEKBRETER -

19. FELEWE
AEBNFEREDEURTE - I
Fr{E S Y IR AN 3 A B3R 38 (A
BIKE R%E) IR

AEER=ZZ——F+=-A=+—H0K
4 AR #¥1,275,879,000 T ( =T ——
& AR#640,101,0007T) M EH &
M - ERASERRITREMERK

20. BEE Y

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group owned 2.06% (2011: 2.06%) of
the paid-in capital of the investee respectively. The directors of the
Company consider the principal activity of the investee is investment
holding.

19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for sale are situated in the PRC. All the
properties held for sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The Group had pledged properties held for sale of approximately

RMB1,275,879,000 (2011: RMB640,101,000) as at 31 December 2012
to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

—B--F —ZT——F
2012 2011
ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

5 COST

F4 At the beginning of the year 10,880,027 7,167,658
NE Additions 9,995,282 7,420,911

EEREEELEE Transfer to properties held for sale (7,834,843)  (3,708,542)
FER At the end of the year 13,040,466 10,880,027

FREPYEAUNTE - BHHHEE
ERTREHEHENFRERYE -

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

The properties under development are located in the PRC under

medium-term leases and represent properties under development for
subsequent sale upon completion.
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20. AEPYEwW)
R—ZZE——F+=-_A=+—8 " &
ARAZETRYWENERELNAARE
9,436,331,000c (= ZE——F : AR¥
5,098,754,0007T) © ETEHA B W& HARAE
BT —EABE T A HENMER
A -

AEER—_ZT——F+_A=+—0K
4 A R #9,986,700,0007T( —F——
& AR%8,011,194,0007T) K53 1)
¥ UERASEMNRITREMBER -

21. EWERARA R EMEKRRE -
EEeRBARE
EoENHELTERALEYE - 5H
BEYENREHIREEBEERHED
R AIE% G173 B EEET60E AL o

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued)
Included in the properties under development as at 31 December
2012 is carrying value of approximately RMB9,436,331,000 (2011:
RMB5,098,754,000) which represent the carrying values of the
properties expected to be completed and available for sale after more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The Group had pledged properties under development of
approximately RMB9,986,700,000 (2011: RMB8,011,194,000) at 31
December 2012 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties. Considerations

in respect of properties sold are paid in accordance with the terms of

the related sales and purchase agreements, normally within 60 days

from the date of agreement.

—F--F T —F
2012 2011
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
S WA Trade receivables 349,230 184,986
HAb W GRIA Other receivables 741,374 183,882
TBRHIE Prepaid tax 234,457 162,103
e MIENHRIEA Deposits and prepayments 71,137 45,397
1,396,198 576,368
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21. BEWRARR R A fth WK IB
RERBARER)
AT B R & BRI 1 5 B R B

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, based on the

2 RUGRIERRE 2T (SR EE) - date of agreement and net of provision, at the end of the reporting
period:

—B--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥TRT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000
RE60E A Within 60 days 289,835 181,135
61£180H 61-180 days 30,854 12
181£3656H 181-365 days 28,541 -
Z2F 1-2 years = 3,739
349,230 184,986

REMNERTEREFR - ANEEFERA  Before accepting any corporate customer, the Group uses an internal

K

BEEFEHEFGEEEFPNEERE

R

M

RZTE—Z—ZF+ZA=+—H ' Rk
iﬂﬁﬂiﬂtﬁ;ﬁ15$‘§lﬁfﬁ5‘¢t¢tf’ﬁﬁ
BRENESIRERFEBEEREAENARE
59,395,000 L (= ZE ——F : ARM
3,851,0007T ) 5T AN 5 [ A9 FE U AR SR 84
HREAENEEEZUEEAES -
BEgBMsE Arigm -

FEHE D W E 5 R IEFRR - RE
EEEEZRUENEEERANT
RO EEE A REE RS HRHRE AT
25 AN EAKEY BEAENTPE
RRER - BEERRETREEAR

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

credit assessment system to assess the potential customers’ credit
quality.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable balance are trade
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately RMB59,395,000
(2011: RMB3,851,000) at 31 December 2012 which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the large
customer base unrelated to the Group.
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21. BRI H f fE KR

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

?‘Eﬁ&ﬁﬁ?ﬁE(%) DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
B o RHAMENRERNRIREEEE N Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade and other
T receivables are as follows:
—F--F T —F
2012 2011
ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FH &S Balance at the beginning of the year (2,177) (3,407)
BB B4R (38 00) /L (Increase) decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss (1,207) 1,230
FRER Balance at the end of the year (3,384) (2,177)

RZZE——F+-_A=+—8 it AKX
SEE S ERWIENRIE SR EE D
RIS ARE14,271,000T(=ZF——
F &) (MFFE38(d) - AR A—E
RAEETERBRRNEEEFIEG#
BA=Ray Fal:0YNCI

R-E——F+-_A=+—H ' x5£E
MHEEARSIMNARERESEARE
481,259,000 L( =T ——F : AR
74,097,0007T) + AEREBLARTE LG
REMNE T E#EER - EPEMNA
R#243,703,0000( =2 ——F : )5
EBAMTHETHHNE - MBERRK
B BB Uk el 5h0E -

22. FEWFEFEIEIRER TR

FEMIE RS IR R BT - R B K%
BIRBRER -

R-_TE——F+_A=+—H BAH
AR #263,506,0007t (=T ——4F : A
R #60,404,0007T ) #) FE - FEIE AR fE 25 3K
BAEEER 2B NEREREEN
BEAEEF  H594% (T ——F :
NF5.94%F12% ) HETE FFIEFTBE K
TBIREKEE -
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Included in the Group's trade receivables was rental receivable from a
related company of RMB14,271,000 (2011: nil) at 31 December 2012
(Note 38(d)). The related company represented a company in which
certain controlling shareholders and directors of the Company have
control or beneficial interests.

At 31 December 2012, RMB481,259,000 (2011: RMB74,097,000)
refundable earnest money was paid by the Group for the acquisition of
ownership interest in land located in Shanghai and Suzhou, the PRC by
auctions. RMB243,703,000 (2011: nil) of which was paid in relation to
auctions that is still in progress and the remaining was receivable due
to unsuccessful bid.

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due from non-controlling interests were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Except for amount due to non-controlling interest of RMB263,506,000
(2011: RMB60,404,000) at 31 December 2012, which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand, the remaining balances was
unsecured, interest bearing at fixed rate at 5.94% (2011: ranging at
5.94% to 12%) per annum and repayable on demand.
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RITEBR IR BRARERBRS K

RAZISMB A=A KT HESRE

R o RITRBIZRTITSAIE S o

23. RESTRICTED CASH/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and demand

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank

balances carry prevailing market interest rates.

—B--F —T——F
2012 2011

ARBTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

REBTEMRITESNIRS DM+ Analysis of bank balances and cash by currency:

—UARKERE — Denominated in RMB 3,547,053 2,046,794
— LA TTEHE — Denominated in Hong Kong dollars 943,577 517,625
—AETTEHE — Denominated in United States dollars 100,103 9,477

4,590,733 2,573,896

R-TE——F+-_HA=+—H AEH
HANR®21,768,0000L(ZF——F : A
#21,768,0007) X REIREAAR
MeEtE o

R_TE——F+-_A=+—8  iFALK
EUBRRARBITEHR IR SANZR
#l #R 1717 3K 49 7 A R # 322,343,000 7T
—T——%F : AR#¥312,226,0007T)
MZEFRENAREEFEREIE
E o

24. BEERERRESX

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's restricted cash of approximately
RMB21,768,000 (2011: RMB21,768,000) was denominated in RMIB.

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement
of financial position are restricted bank deposits of approximately
RMB322,343,000 (2011: RMB312,226,000) at 31 December 2012,
which can only be applied in the designated property development
projects.

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

—F-=F —T——F
2012 2011

ARBTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

FETERX Trade payables 1,754,063 1,013,064
Hib I MR Y Other payables and accrued charges 1,227,962 734,307

2,982,025 1,747,371

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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24. BENRREENAX®E

BRERNESERNFTEREFHAXE
mREEXRAREMEEBBERT %
EFRIRBEAREFENRBEEX
- BHENRENFHEEH 60
B> "REEEHIRIMBERRERRR
URERATB RN TR EERRAE
o

AT RRBEMRREZAHNRRNE
SIENFRIARRE DT -

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
CHARGES (Continued)

Trade payable and accrued expenditure on construction comprise
construction costs and other project-related expenses which are
payable based on project progress measured by the Group. The
average credit period of trade payable is 60 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, based on the
invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

—EB--F —T——F

2012 2011

AR¥TR AR®BT

RMB'000 RMB'000

MRE0E A Within 60 days 1,034,830 376,367
61£180H 61-180 days 197,410 25,414
181%365H 181-365 days 256,920 543,897
1824 1-2 years 241,501 40,411
2E3F 2-3 years 2,061 12,549
3FLAE Over 3 years 21,341 14,426
1,754,063 1,013,064

RZZTE—=—F+=ZA=+—8 i A
AEEBHEMENREREGTAIAR
BARK—HEEBEAREERSHOA
FR#6,000,0007C(ZE——F : AR
16,000,0007T) ° BEE A RIIEH AR AIE
FEEBRERESEH I FEESEn
MR E (FIFE38(d)) ©
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Included in the Group's other payables and accrued charges was
rental deposit received from a related company of approximately
RMB6,000,000 (2011: RMB16,000,000) at 31 December 2012. The
related company represented a company in which certain controlling
shareholders and directors of the Company have control or beneficial
interests (Note 38(d)).
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24. BENRREENAX®E

R=F——%+-A=+-8
5 E A R E AN AR
EFEFIELNARY2,871,0007T EZ%M
HARER - 2B REREREE -

o

RZZE——F+=ZA=+—H " BRER
AR NESHRIANUNR KB B E
=K% BB AR100,0007T(=
T——F : AR¥177,600,0007T)4h -
Hitb R RERET A EZERBIZ
&ﬁmﬁ@léﬂé%@%ﬂ&ﬂx%ﬁ%ﬁ%
RFBREEZE AR —BEEME
HE AR S °

25. RITRHMER

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
CHARGES (Continued)

Included in the Group's other payables was amount due to a director

of the Company of approximately RMB2,871,000 at 31 December

2011 which was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Apart from amounts due to related companies and directors
and interest-free advance of approximately RMB100,000 (2011:
RMB177,600,000) from an independent third party at 31 December
2012, other payables and accrued charges mainly represented accrued
loan interest, various deposits received from contractors in relation
to tendering and execution of construction contracts and deposits
received in respect of a primary development project.

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

—EB--F —ZT——F
2012 2011
AR¥TRT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEBRITER (D) Bank loans, secured (note (d)) 5,788,391 4,859,856
EEPRITER (W) Bank loans, unsecured (note (d)) 31,500 -
BEFETEZR (M E) Trust loans, secured (note (g))
—EHRER) — Conventional loans (note (f)) 930,000 1,716,000
— AR m R E TR — Loans with obligation to repurchase equity
B (PHEE() interest (note (g)) 959,721 1,076,266
H i E st E R (FIEEN)) Other trust loans, unsecured (note (h)) 246,300 99,430
E A EAER (M) Other loans, secured (note (i) 909,496 -
8,865,408 7,751,552
BB (SE)ERAR | —E——FFR 141
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. SRITREMER @ 25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
E’t‘%#&%,ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ’\] S TERITREMMERTY  Certain bank and other borrowings as at the end of each reporting
LAMTsE33FT &I E ZE AR Al T period were secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 33,
FEER > WEETESENEKRIREIRME  certain equity interest in the Company and guaranteed by certain

IR (MFEE38(c)) ° directors and Ultimate Shareholders (note 38(c)).
(a) fERFEKBNATERER: (a) The borrowings are repayable:

—E--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR®BTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

—FRIRER Within one year or on demand 3,372,220 1,922,656
—FULE - BETHBARE More than one year, but not exceeding two years 3,356,287 2,763,390
REL L - BRBE=F More than two years, but not exceeding three years 1,229,878 2,536,506
=ZFAE BN BBNE More than three years, but not exceeding four years 262,000 334,000
MEAE - BNBBRF More than four years, but not exceeding five years 12,000 159,000
FFEAE More than five years 633,023 36,000
8,865,408 7,751,552
& REBEEB TR Less: Amount due within one year

—FRNFEAEEE shown under current liabilities (3,372,220) (1,922,656)
— iR E|H e Amount due after one year 5,493,188 5,828,896
—F-=F —T——F
2012 2011
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BB D HETRDHT - Analysis of borrowings by currency:
— AR E — Denominated in RMB 8,489,568 7,281,752
— B TLEHE — Denominated in HKD 375,840 469,800

8,865,408 7,751,552
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(b)

(c)

RZE—Z—F+=ZA=+—H" &
H49 AR ¥2,785,670,0007T( ==
——& : AR#2,268,047,0007T)
HEBMEFTIEN T2.8%E19% K
FREAFE(ZZE—F : 8% =E
16.8%) * SAKEEE A FEFE
BB o AT ERIRFEFIRLHE -
RZE——F+=_RA=+—H" ' &
BREMENT6.16%E242%(—F
——F 1 6.65%E24.2%) ' SAE
EmHR S mA R RERE o

REREPRNERNRBELOT :

25.

(b)

(c)

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Fixed-rate borrowings amount to approximately
RMB2,785,670,000 (2011: RMB2,268,047,000) carry interest
ranging from 2.8% to 19% (2011: 8% to 16.8%) per annum at
31 December 2012 and expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The remaining borrowings are arranged at variable rates
with the effective interest rates ranging from 6.15% to 24.2%
(2011: 6.65% to 24.2%) per annum at 31 December 2012, and
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The range of effective interest rates at the end of each reporting
period were as follows:

—EB--F —T——F

2012 2011

ARBTT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

RITER Bank loans 2.8%-13%  6.65%—16%

ETER Trust loans 10%-24.2%  11%-24.2%

HER Other loans 12%-19% 12%
(d RZZ—=—F+=ZA=+—H & (d) Included in the Group's bank loans, amounts of approximately

AREBRITEFHSEHARE
467,500,000 (=& ——F : A
R #100,650,000 7T ) J5 B 18 Bl] A
TR—REZEEFTE  EFHARE
218,600,000 c( =& ——4F : A
K #100,650,000T) R =T — =
F+-—A=+—HBHAQEES:
BB AR EBERRNDERAR]
([TEFEA Y | ) IR HLIELR o

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

RMB467,500,000 (2011: RMB100,650,000) as at 31 December
2012 are entrusted by individuals and a corporation, of which
approximately RMB218,500,000 (2011: RMB100,650,000) as at
31 December 2012 respectively are guaranteed by CIFI Group
Co., Limited (“CIFI (PRC)"), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company.
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25. SRITREMER @ 25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(e) %ERFFTBEETERMEANTLAE (e) These borrowings are mainly in the form of trust arrangement
ALHEAREIY c BREREAL with trust financing companies. The conventional loan trust
B AREREFEREQARIFIL arrangements are loan agreements entered into by the Group
MER W o MIFEEERER TN and trust financing companies. The trust arrangements with
ERRHPERRERIBRRER obligation to repurchase equity interest involve either capital
fEEEEAIE B A a)3E & o H AR increase in, or transfer of equity interest in project companies
HHEE -2 —BEITHNEER with repurchase obligations at the maturity of the loans.
BAEMER - MIEB A B /A The substance of the latter type of trust arrangements is
EHRmARNEEEE - FELHE borrowing, with the equity interests in the project companies
TEFRBAEBERNBARETH legally transferred as collateral. The borrowings under trust
AETEHERBZIEE RASEWEB arrangements are secured by certain property development
DA (I 7E33) Y& LR 8 Fa PR Ap 5C projects undertaken by the relevant borrowing subsidiaries and
AREER(FIEESS(C) © shares of subsidiaries of the Group (note 33) or guaranteed by

Mr. Lin Zhong (note 38(c)).
() TREHR=_ZF—=—F+=H (f) The following table sets out details of the conventional loans as
=+—HHEHRERFS at 31 December 2012:
- —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥TR ARETT EIHA
Ny =NCI B Name of subsidiary RMB’000 RMB'000  Maturity date
EERRIEXBRAR Shanghai Xuchuang Property Co., Ltd. = 446,000 2 May 2012
—E——FRHAH
RAEMERMZBR AT Zhongshi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. - 260,000 11 July 2012
“T——_FtA+—H
FERABEXBRAR Shanghai Xubang Property Co., Ltd. 130,000 250,000 22 January 2013
—E-=%—-HAZ+=H
ERNNBIEERE X Suzhou Xuhui Xingteng Property Co., Ltd. - 200,000 25 March 2013
BRAT] —ZT—=f=ZA=-+HH
ATIEEE X FR AR Zhejiang Xuhui Property Co., Ltd. - 560,000 24 May 2013
—ET-=FhA=+WHA
BEBIEREERZ Chongqing Xupeng Real Estate 50,000 — 28 March 2013
BRAFA Development Co., Ltd. —E-=%=AZ+/\H
LR BB B E 5 Beijing Xuhui Shunxin Property Co., Ltd. 120,000 — 12 February 2014
BRAT] —Z—mNF-A+=H
FEEREXAR AR Shanghai Xugiang Property Co., Ltd. 330,000 — 29 August 2014
“E-MENAZTNA
RAERMERZEABMR AR Zhongshi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd 300,000 — 3 December 2014
—E-NOF+=A=A
930,000 1,716,000
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25. SRITREMER @ 25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(g9 TREWNVR_ZT—_F+ -5 (g) The following table sets out details of the equity with repurchase
=+ —HEBREEEETHEN obligation trust arrangements as at 31 December 2012:
MRS -

B —T——F
2012 2011
ARET ARBTT ZIHAE
HEARETE Name of subsidiary RMB000  RMB'000 Maturity date
LEREEXARAR Shanghai Xubo Property Co., Ltd. - 299,166 3 May 2012
(I EgeE]) (Kizee) (“Shanghai Xubo”) (note 26) —E-—#7H=H
FEBHBEEARRAA Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. - 248,470 16 September 2012
—E-—FhA+H
EEBREEARAR Shanghai Xuyu Property Co., Ltd. 150,000 150,000 31 March 2013
—E-=f=A=+—8
EBEREHEBRAA Shanghai Xutai Real Estate Co., Ltd. 244,530 244,530 9 April 2013
—T-=FMANA
SIEEEEMERETER AT Hefei Xubin Real Estate Development 565,191 134,500 30 December 2014
([&REME J) (Fif5E26) Co., Ltd. (“Hefei Xubin") (note 26) —E-MFE+-A=+H
959,721 1,076,266

(h)

ZEEFRBEFRAR - BEEW
H AR -

AEEEBEQARIRAEEEE
HERPHBBERETUER - R
—F2——F+-“A=+—H " &
SEEKLEHRIRERREL
e UWBEAHOARKE
909,496,000 THIE & ° RIEERE
B RIERNRGIMHA B
FRETEAM R - AEB MR EHR
FIENEIEE LEEREXAR
AR EBRE]) - REWREGFEi
ERZERAR RPBEEE
FBEARARI R EEHEBEXER
NEHE TRAREZ (1 F30%E
35%) - REEREEARIHARE
ERE Bl R B BB 4G & IR E QA FT
BESEBARNEHRAER -
It 2 HETE T 818 3R 0 AR &£ E A
BAMLEEE A RNRAEREE
AR (MY 5E33) I /B B 48 AR B 42
R o

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

(h)

These loans were borrowed from trust companies without any
security and guarantee.

These borrowings are entered into with investment companies
and CURA Investment, an investee of the Group. The Group
entered into cooperation agreements with the investee
or investment companies to raise fund of approximately
RMB909,496,000 in aggregate as at 31 December 2012.
Pursuant to the terms stipulated in the cooperation agreements
with the investee and the investment companies, the Group
transferred certain equity interests, varying from 30% to 35%, of
Shanghai Xutong Property Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Xutong”), Tianjin
Xuhai Real Estate Development Co. Ltd., Changsha Xuhai Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Xuming Property
Co., Ltd. to the investee or investment companies. The Group
was then obliged to repurchase the entire equity interests of
respective project companies held by the CURA Investment
and investment companies at the maturity date. The borrowings
under these arrangements are secured by equity interests
of these project companies held by the Group (note 33) and
guaranteed by CIFI (PRC).
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26. EREREMERERBITE
TH

P # 25(g) AT 8 18 B 18 & & AR SRR {5

KT AERRHF R BB ERE AR

Y EPPRAAEBERANRRA

ﬂiiéf%F’ LI s cg - s - LIB18
BEREAME25() - AEEBEEE

AAREEREHRTAZRE AR 2E
Atz o REDBENRZFRELLH
HERAE RREFERE A7) N i

BREREBHEMERREEZANE
FEEREFERE - BEABER AT

PRy & B ek b B 4E -

BEFEA A R AR BIRE B R WA AT

BSREED Eféﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬂfﬁkﬁ D M
BOTET AR - AT REANR

ARPTETARTE -

ZEEAELREMERBERAAITET
B MRARTETERTFaNALER
fﬂ%ﬁ%&?ﬁf’ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ﬂmilﬂ AR
TET AR FERFE 2 FER
AEBE AR - TETAZ2RTIR
BEAEREQARLRKREHRERZERE
KEHERE -

S REMEER $HF’§£F&§M$IEE’J
Elzfﬁ)'ﬁb(l\/lonte CarlofE ¥ EFTH - &
ARZELE - BIEKE - :.f?%%
mERANE BEMNMEEE - BEE
BEFNEHERETE - BRBRBET
HETHIPAREREGRINEHE
SHEETE
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26. TRUST AND OTHER LOANS RELATED
DERIVATIVES

The borrowings of Shanghai Xubo and Hefei Xubin included in the
note 25(g) are in the form of trust arrangement with trust financing
companies involving either capital increase in, or transfer of equity
interest in project companies with repurchase obligations. In addition,
the borrowing of Shanghai Xutong included in the note 25(i), the Group
was obliged to repurchase the entire equity interest of the project
company held by the investee of the Group. The repurchase prices
of the equity interests and loan principal of these trust arrangements
reflect the fixed returns and the floating premiums that the trust
financing companies and the CURA Investment are entitled to and
are linked to the selling prices or valuation of equity interest of the
relevant project companies at the time as stipulated in the relevant
agreements.

The proceeds received from the trust companies and the investee of
the Group have been split between the trust and other loans element
and financial derivatives component, representing the fair value of the
embedded derivatives in respect of the floating premiums.

These trust and other loans contain embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contract and are treated as separate
derivatives. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The classification
of these derivatives are determined based on the earliest repayment
dates that can be demanded by trust financing companies and the
investee.

The fair value of trust and other loans related financial derivative
instruments is calculated using the Monte Carlo simulation by
considering a number of parameters including volatility, credit spread,
risk free rate, property selling prices of the project, the property
development plan estimated by management and maturity dates
determined by the terms of the relevant agreements and the property
sale plan estimated by management.
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26. ErE R HMmERMEESTE 26. TRUST AND OTHER LOANS RELATED

TAuwm
BMARPTE T EMESFMT

DERIVATIVES (continued)

The movements of the embedded derivatives are set out below:

—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR%TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

F4 At the beginning of the year 132,000 35,000
BAFEVISER Initial recognition at fair value 37,000 82,000
NEEE B (W) EE (Gain) loss arising on changes in fair value (26,541) 15,000
RNZERERETRERE Transfer to other payable upon finalisation of
H TR floating premium (57,459) _
FXR At the end of the year 85,000 132,000
BREE TAED T - Carrying amount analysed into
BHAER 7 Current portion — 50,000
JERNEREE Non-current portion 85,000 82,000
85,000 132,000
27. BA& 27. SHARE CAPITAL
—B--F _T——F
2012 2011
AR®TR AR®BT
RMB'000 RMB'000
SEERRA Authorised:

10,000,000,0008% (=& ——% :

10,000,000,000 (2011: 10,000,000,000)

10,000,000,000/% ) ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EREEONBL(ZE—F : (2011: HK$0.1 each)

SREENAT) KT B 810,000 810,000
BT RERIRA Issued and fully paid:

5,770,000,0008% (=& ——%F : 5,770,000,000 (2011: 129,000,000)

129,000,000/% ) ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EBREENBITL(ZE— ¢ : (2011: HK$0.1 each)

BREENAT) TR 467,370 10,449
BRI (EEB)AR AR | —F——FFRK 147
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27. BA& =)
R-ZE——EFRA=-1+H  A2aRN
HEHESdMKXLAERE2ERA
7 o Rz B8 - KRR ¥ HE
FE M K A 1,000,000,000 8 7T © D A
10,000,000,000/% F A% E{E0.10/8 LA IR
m - B —RREARMDERE RET
F #4728 AMapcal Limited * HER =
E——FRA-THUNUONBTLEETSR
EBRAR(REBE XS EMAKIA
PaEl AERBRRZ —MPEE2EHR
) BREEBRAR(TEE R 2T ——
FRANBERBREZESFHMAL -
EEM A A50,000% T - HAERAEE
13X JCH50,000 & D - RARIRZE
— FRAZTRWERR KRBT
B e R—T—FAA-_+=H /B
SLUABTTEMNF EEWEEBNEER
AE([BERE ) —REBTRG - &
BERBEKABAEEE2ENBAR

RZZF——FN\A+EE  BECER
PEEEXRL-FEIEBELCE LE
EERHEEEARAR(ILSEE
1) FEfMEZ7$10,000,00057T °

RZZF——FNANE - LBEERMR
RRRRKE ESEBREERERA
A([ EAmEERE]) REsl(LE8)RE
BERARAR([TEI EERE D HNEF
fxtE - BIRERER/AKEE186,716,000
T W2 E EFEERE KRB E
BRER-ZZE——FNA=THWNEE
FERBETE - NAR B K ARKIER

LR

148

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 20 May 2011, the Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands. As at the date
of incorporation, the Company's initial authorised share capital was
HK$1,000,000,000, divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of a par value
of HK$0.10 each, of which 1 subscriber share was allotted and issued
to Mapcal Limited as the initial subscriber, and was subsequently
transferred to Ding Chang Limited, a BVI incorporated company
wholly owned by Mr. Lin Zhong, one of the controlling shareholders,
at HK$0.1 on 20 May 2011. Xu Sheng Limited (“Xu Sheng”) was
incorporated in BVI on 9 May 2011 with an authorised share capital
of USD50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of par value of US$1 each.
The Company acquired the one issued share of Xu Sheng on 20 May
2011. On 23 May 2011, Xu Sheng acquired the 1 issued share of CIFI
Enterprises Co. Limited (“CIFI Enterprises”) from Mr. Lin Zhong at
HK$1, CIFI Enterprises became a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Xu
Sheng accordingly.

On 17 August 2011, CIFI Enterprises established Shanghai Hanpuka
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (F/EZEREESEARAR)
(“Shanghai Hanpuka”), a wholly foreign owned enterprise in Shanghai,
the PRC with registered capital of US$10,000,000.

On 9 September 2011, Shanghai Hanpuka acquired all equity interests
in Shanghai Xuhui Investment Advisory Co., Ltd. (E/&/BEIRE R
HAPRAT]) (“Shanghai Xuhui Investment”) and Xukai (Shanghai)
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (fB8l (/&) REBER AR A F)
(“Xukai Shanghai Investment”) from the Ultimate Shareholders at
a total cash consideration of RMB186,716,000 determined with
reference to the net asset value of Shanghai Xuhui Investment and
Xukai Shanghai Investment as at 30 June 2011. The Company became
the ultimate holding company since then.
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27.

PR )

BE_T——4FKk=_F——F+_H
= t+—HIEFE  RAEHIT

(a)

(c)

R_ZE——FtAT+HLARKZT
——FENAZ+=8  ARQFIEK
HESF®KRRKEH0.1E Tm &R
52 K2 B ¥ Hh B AT AE AR R 9 Bl Al 8%
54,753,999 A% K 68,546,000 A% #7
Bt - #A(E# 512,330,000/ T
(#) AR #9,988,0007T) e R—-F
——FNAZ+IA AAR#E—
SIEEESRARD0.175 TR a4 %
B A2 300,000 #F R 15  REA
30,0007 7T (K9 A R #24,0007T) °

A—Z——FNAZ=+H 128K
B EREARA RS 5,400,000 %7
M1 - @R (B AE292,443,3218 7T
(Y AR #5236,879,0007T) °

BEARRBRRR-_ZE——F+54
NEBBHNEERZRR A2
B mERESREERSERM
BERTERE  RNRRESRE
REFBFARRRRD HERA
##1438,600,000 % 7T K #E BR X 1H
R E{E S 2 4,386,000,000 0B 17
LAtz B (5 w35 78 A% SR B 1T M Ac 38 A%
D BB AEZERERTER -

R Em B - AR E DR FT
£ ARRARWIREARAR D 1.33%
TCHY B %2577 1,255,000,000 % &A%
EECI0B T L BAR - Fr55RIA
HREEA) A1,669,150,00078 7T °

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012, the movements

in share capital were as follows:

(a)

On 19 July 2011 and 23 August 2011, the Company allotted
54,753,999 and 68,546,000 new shares at par value of HK$0.1
each to the Ultimate Shareholders and former shareholders of
CIFI (PRC) respectively at a total consideration of approximately
HK$12,330,000 (approximately RMB9,988,000). On 29
September 2011, the Company further allotted 300,000 new
shares at par value of HK$0.1 to the Ultimate Shareholders at a
consideration of HK$30,000 (approximately RMB24,000).

On 30 September 2011, 12 investors subscribed for a total of
5,400,000 new shares of the Company at a total consideration of
HK$292,443,321 (approximately RMB236,879,000).

Pursuant to a resolution in writing of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 9 October 2012, subject to the share
premium account of the Company having sufficient balance being
credited as a result of the global offering, the directors of the
Company are authorised to capitalise a sum of HK$438,600,000
from the amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in
full 4,386,000,000 shares at par for issue and allot to the existing
shareholders on a pro rata basis.

On the Listing Date, the Company's shares were listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Company issued 1,255,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.33 per share with gross
proceeds of approximately HK$1,669,150,000.
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27. Hﬁzﬁ(gg) 27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
B LA RT D BITRAZEENZ S A summary of the transactions with reference to the above
Baian R movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as follows:
EHHR B
LEBNE EAREE BOME BESE RHuESE e
Number Equivalent
of issued Nominal nominal
fully paid value of value of Fquivalent
ordinary ordinary Share ordinary share
shares shares premium shares premium Total

oL TET ARETT ARETRT ARETR
HK$'000 HK§'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FAREMRK L B & At date of incorporation 1 - - - _ _
B3R (B E(a) Rlb)) Issue of new shares (notes (a) & (b)) 128,999,999 12,900 291,903 10,449 236,442 246,891
WZE——%F+-A=1+—H  At31 December 2011 129,000,000 12,900 291903 10,449 236,442 246,891
BARCEBETRG (H3E) Capitalisation issue of shares note (c)) 4,386,000,000 438,600 (438,600) 355,266 (355,266) -
gt ETEATIRG (M) Issue of shares in connection with the

Listing (note (d)) 1,255,000,000 125,500 1,543,650 101,655 1,250,357 1,352,012
ESET Share issue expenses - - (92,383) - (7479) (74.799)
R-Z-—F+=-A=1—H At31December 2012 5,770,000,000 577,000 1,304,610 467,310 1,056,735 1,524,105
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28. EIEFIIE 28. DEFERRED TAXATION
IWTNAERERNERNETERELERIEEE The following are the major deferred taxation assets (liabilities)

(BE)REFEEH recognised and movements thereon during the years:
RARERS THEER
AERER  REWEX BB
MR ES NE REER KEH it
Temporary
difference on
unrealised
loss Temporary
inter-  Farvalue of differences
company  investment on LAT
transactions properties  Taxlosses provision Total

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZE——%—-A—H At 1 January 2011 (5,096) (90,300) 3,109 63280 (29,007)
REAZRRER(HIR)FA (Charge) crecit to consolidated statement of

comprehensive income (1,106) (287,204) 39 (1489) (289,440)
WZ_E——F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2011 6,202) (377,504) 3468 61,791 (318,447
REAZERERAR) Credit charge) to consolidated statement of

comprehensive income 17,621 (359.843) 22693 (5,299) (324,828)
R-E-—E+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 149 (731,347) 26,161 56,492 (643,275)
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28. EEBIE ) 28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

BR2WMEEPERRLER - ETELERE  For the presentation purposes on the consolidated statement of

BEBGB)DEY - LT ARBEHRE  financial position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been

TERMIRER BRI offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances
for financial reporting purposes:

—B--F —ZT——F
2012 2011
AR®BTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

IR IE A E Deferred taxation assets 114,073 63,483
EERIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities (757,348) (381,930

(643,275) (318,447)

RZE——HF+-_A=+—H &K At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of
EEBEAADAREEERH AR  approximately RMB277,360,000 (2011: RMB203,545,000) available
277,360,000 . ( —ZF ——4F : AK® to offset against future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been
203,545,0007T ) AJ 4K 4R S A58 o 7 recognised in respect of such losses of approximately RMB76,600,000
—E——F=+=-A=+—H " ' E%LHA (2011: RMB13,872,000) at 31 December 2012. No deferred taxation
R #76,600,000C(—Z——4 : AR¥  asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining approximately
13,872,0007T) E 1B FERIEERIIBEZ - RMB200,760,000 (2011: RMB189,673,000) at 31 December 2012 due
R AR BB R R AR R - W == to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax
—Z—F+-A=1+—"BHEMRBRTHA losses will expire in the following years:
FR#200,760,000L(ZF——%F : AR

#189,673,0007T ) FERIEER IR E EE

RER RN TIIFEEER -

—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR®BTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

—T-F 2012 = 417
—ET-=F 2013 435 2,335
—T-mEF 2014 4,870 3,507
—T-hF 2015 10,330 36,003
—TRF 2016 88,125 143,657
—T—+F 2017 97,000 -

200,760 189,673
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28. EEBIIE =)
RZZF——F+=-_A=+—8 " x£E
REAFBEEZEVENRRBER SR
TERE =54 B A R % 100,493,000 7T
(Z=F——%F : AR¥134,059,0007T) °
BB A7 K AT B A8 FE R A 1 P (R GR AT
MR =58 - MU ERZSIHNHE
B = BAERIECHIBEE -

REB(PBETEMBRZE) AZTTN
F—A—RHi  HPEMMNERQFRRD
FEATE RS BBKBIRER - 45
AU BREPRERR =T —Z=F+=
A=+— BT ENB AR R FHEE
GRS =584 AR #2,908,5683,0007T( =
T——14F : AR#2,052,903,0007T)1EH
ERETIER A - DEANEE 5% HER
FF =R RIRRE  BEXHREE=BER
AR K AT BERE[E] ©

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group had deductible temporary
differences arising from inter-company transactions in relation to
construction of properties of approximately RMB100,493,000 (2011:
RMB134,059,000). No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC enterprise income law, withholding income tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB2,908,583,000
(2011: RMB2,052,903,000) as at 31 December 2012, as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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29. FEBUEE— KB A RWE
EEREE

RZE——FNA+HAB  AEEEE
VEZHREREREREXLRESE
ERARE - RKEREFHWERBBERA
ARKEHEREHERBER AT
SEEREE Bt ARER T —=
F+ARABEBMARFEM L EE M ERZ
BRAB([REHMLE]) ) FTEARK
31,224,5007C + WehE R IE M 42 HEHY51 %
R o RIBTTAKRT - KB LB K
S DA PRI B BREAE AT IR A+ W E AT
F Sz 49 AR #383,0007T °

RFBMTALITIRE TBIE o WAZKFHIR
BRA - REELENTEREE /MR
REBEBRAERN L

FIBEEHERTEA TEERAE :

29. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
On 15 September 2012, the Group has entered into a cooperation
arrangement with X EFZRSREFX LR EBFR A A (Tianjin
Economic Zone Wantong Industries Development Group Co., Ltd), X
ERERMERZAMR AT (Tanjin Shengda Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd) and REHFHFREHEMREZEAFR A A (Tianjin Xinshidai Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd), independent third parties, pursuant to
which the Group acquired 51% interest in KEMH 42 W EHERZEA
BRZ2®] (Tianjin Shijixing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., “Tianjin
Shijixing”) in October 2012 by capital injection of RMB31,224,500
in Tianjin Shijixing. Before the completion of the acquisition, Tianjin
Shijixing did not earn any revenue and incurred administrative
expenses of approximately RMB383,000 since its establishment.

Tianjin Shijixing is the project company for Tianjin CIFI Century
Waterside (K)E JBIE o tt427K=). The major asset of Tianjin Shijixing is
the land parcel situated at Chadian Town (Z5)£$8), Hangu district (254
[&), Tianjin.

The acquired net assets comprised the following assets and liabilities:

—E-—F
2012
AR¥T T
RMB'000
BAFERENEEFE Net assets acquired at fair value:
M - BB RERE Property, plant and equipment 110
Hth FEUGIE Other receivables 21
A Properties for development 178,196
RITEBREIRE Bank balances and cash 3,707
Hib e F0E Other payables (151,000)
NIRBENRERE Total consideration satisfied by cash 31,224
WiRE £ IR M FE - Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
RAREKA Cash paid 31,224
EBRHRTESRRS Bank balances and cash acquired (3,707)
21,517
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30. Wi — R B 2 R AR IME

i
HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HILF
[ NREBUREARKA426,215,0007T
B IRk i o R B 1B R B118.44 % HY AR
o BERRERKEEER EEMES
ERREEREREGER ZHNERE
#9 A R #120,507,0007T B £ A I A E 25
PRER  WEBRAAREAA o

BHEe—_Z2——F+-_A=+—H81
FE AEEUNRSREHARE
57,256,000 7T B FE 12 B% 4 75 U B B 3 R
B #92.05% A% - B SR E RIS B 12
FREIIMESE BRI IEERESRE Y
el B Z 58 49 A R ¥ 23,765,000 7T 72 R A
ERPRER  UHEBNAAREAA -

31. HENBE AR
BE-_ZE——F+-_HAH=1T—HL1t#H
E - TB¥EFR B DRI MBI E = kAR
FTEESI MR AR (MsE38b)) LF
BEREEREERAR(LEEBHHE
EERMBAR LS BFEAR AT
EERBEFEEARAR([ZHEEFR])
MEIRE  SRESRERRESNE
2 Bl #) A R %80,679,000 7T &2 A R #&
20,000,0007T °

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

30. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 18.44% equity interest
in CIFI (PRC) was acquired by the Group at a consideration of
RMB426,215,000 from the non-controlling interests. A difference
between the consideration paid and the attributable interests of non-
controlling interests at the date of acquisition of additional interest
in CIFI (PRC) amounting to approximately RMB120,507,000 was
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 2.05% equity interest
in CIFI (PRC) was acquired by the Group at a cash consideration of
approximately RMB57,256,000 from a non-controlling interest. A
difference between the consideration paid and the equity interest
of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition of additional
interest in CIFI (PRC) amounting to approximately RMB23,765,000
was recognised in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, CIFI (PRC) disposed of its
100% equity interest in both its subsidiaries, Shanghai Yiyi Property
Co., Ltd. (E/BxZE AR A F]) and Jiaxing Xucai Department Store
Co., Ltd. (BB AEAR AT (“Jiaxing Xucai”), at a finalised cash
consideration of approximately RMB80,679,000 to an independent
third party and a cash consideration of RMB20,000,000 to - i&m1%
BEEEFRAR (" EE&EE"), arelated company controlled by Mr. Lin
Zhong (note 38(b)), respectively.
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31. HEMEB AT w)
MEARRNEEBHMEEFENT :

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal are as follows:

—F—%

2011

ARETT

RMB'000

M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 514
BIEREYE Properties held for sale 51,636
JE i BE 20 T B UG 2h0E © 1 e RFE N ERIE Accounts and other receivables, deposits and prepayments 3,944
RITEBEIRE Bank balances and cash 20,860
BRI N BT Y Accounts payable and accrued charges (7,703)
RITREMER Bank and other borrowings (50,800)
18,451

HEME Gain on disposal 82,228
RE Consideration 100,679

HERELANRESMAFE Net cash inflow arising from disposal:

BUGRERE Cash consideration received 100,679
BHERITEREIES Bank balances and cash disposed of (20,860)
79,819

32. ERIKFHETE

RIFHBERBERZLER - ARBRH
[0 P B8 % B 7R 2 B 75 T BURT HEFT ) SR
RN - AEEWTEHEA
AR T MERFATRE FHREF T H
ETADLLRF B - UsEE R
KENENES - AEREBBEKEF
AEMEREEAREAEELATHE

e
A °

AEBNTATEMERERRERERER
HMEREEETE - RSN EERAK
SEEEDH  FRREXAABTENE
& AEERZTEELNEASER
HERARE% - MiE 8 IFAIEL RS

e
oA °
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administrated by the local municipal
government. The Group’'s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which
are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee salary
as required by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees. The principal obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.
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33. EHEE
THEERBRE AT LKA RA
EEETFRTREMEES :

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and
other facilities granted to the Group at the end of the reporting period:

—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR%TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

REMZE Investment properties 974,000 2,047,000
BAMAERE Prepaid lease payments 21,7172 21,772
BRI Properties under development 9,986,700 8,011,194
BEHEYE Properties held for sale 1,275,879 640,101

12,258,351 10,720,067

ETHBARMNEEFEMT) Net assets of certain subsidiaries (note) 2,087,354 3,632,921

MiaE : BTEEREREMR  AERDERFHELED
X L) B AR THERARNEEFEE
o

34. HEZH

AEBMERHEHEA

RMEER  AEBEEBP I HNK
REEREFZOT

Note: Certain pledged investment properties, properties under development and properties
held for sale, as stated above, were included in the net assets of certain subsidiaries.

34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments as follows:

—g-=F —T——%
2012 2011

ARBTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

—FR Within one year 58,475 29,557
“FEERNF(BREEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 195,913 102,165
hE% After five years 297,922 349,035
552,310 480,757

AEERFEHERENRENEEEA
HNF—E-_TFENETOEP - BE
MENHOHAXABEER - MR
HEAETMRBONEEBETAOL
B BE_FT-—_—FT-_HA=t—H
IFFE - SEEREMRAES YA

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

The investment properties held by the Group for rental purpose have
committed tenants from one to twenty years. Lease of an investment
property has clauses of contingent rentals determined by a certain
percentage of turnover earned by the tenant. No contingent rental
income was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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34. *HE?EF(ZE) 34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
AEBEREBAA The Group as a lessee

RIREEIR - NEFERETAIHELEL At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
HOREEEEMESIMNOARAKRKIEF lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

EffFT - leased properties as follows:

—B--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥TRT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000
—FR Within one year 6,732 6,746
FFEFRF(BREEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 5,460 11,293
HF%& After five years 67 -
12,259 18,039

KEHENREASERE THAE Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for

E¥EMNES - K EELTFHEE  certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average
B—E21+F HeNEBHEWHZEBE term of one to ten years and rentals are fixed at the date of signing of

HE © lease agreements.
35. A&iE 35. COMMITMENTS
REREER - NEBES T5EE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:

—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR®BTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

EETHBRG S B E MMM Expenditure in respect of acquisition of land use rights
778 RAULE 1 b (F R RER R X contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 1,501,686 1,797,370

158 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



36. IAAE
AEBR-_ZE——F+_A=+—8x5t
BTAEEEARYMEERNIZBIRTT
ERREH ARE1,667,296,0007T (=
T——4& : AR¥496,834,0007T) Hy4E
R ARRBRIEERE  AEEZEVH
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BARR R AR (EE o
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EEAPEp—BEPREHMNOEHME
FEBEBEBRAQAAAETHEBARREA
AR #40,600,000THEEERF&

R EPRREARAINBEEEAREL
RECHRIE  MBEBAERZNTEEER
MBI FARBLHRES KM R FEE
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#21,768,000cE = —ZEF + At
WHHEEEERREARERINAR - K"E
BT ERRRERERZER  RAE
RERFANERERTEHAERD
SRR BRERTFIFE -

37. UBRBZAIRS

a. BRAMRENROEBIHE
AEBHE R NFEREANRG LB
(REBREEHA X IRAERDR LT
BEHEHEET) ([ 22EETE ) I =
T—TE+ = BEFEHIIRARARER
—ETLFERAATNERBHRRERR
MEE R AR R ERTRD B S o 1B
IR ERE R AR AR EE
EMEEBRIBFENRD TS ([1E
BRG)ETAREEE FES A
B o RO EBEMNENAREAEE
ETEEFEH BRI 4 T 128 -

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
RMB1,667,296,000 (2011: RMB496,834,000) as at 31December
2012 in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of
the Group’s developed properties. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts
of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors
of the Company consider that the possibility of the default of the
parties involved is remote, accordingly, no value has been recognised
at the inception of the guarantee contracts and on the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012.

The Group was involved in a legal dispute with a construction
contractor. In April 2010, a construction fee dispute claim of
approximately RMB40.6 million, which included amounts of
outstanding construction fee and performance bond, plus penalty
in respect of outstanding construction fee and interest in respect of
performance bond and outstanding construction fee, was brought
by the construction contractor against certain subsidiaries of the
Company in relation to a property development project in Suzhou, the
PRC. The Group's bank balance of approximately RMB21,768,000
was held in custody of the People’s Court of the Qingpu district in
Shanghai, the PRC since December 2010. The Group has assessed
the claim and obtained legal advice, and considered that the ultimate
outcome of this legal proceeding will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group.

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

a. Pre-IPO share award scheme

The Group's Pre-IPO share award scheme, as amended in accordance
with the proposed listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, (the “Share Award Scheme") was adopted in December
2010 and then replaced the Pre-IPO share award scheme originally
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 May 2007. Under the
Share Award Scheme, Mr. Lin Zhong, a controlling shareholder and
director of the Company, awards the Company’s shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) held by him to certain employees of the Group. The objective
of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise the contributions of
certain employees of the Group and to incentivise them.
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37. UBRBINANRZ @)

a. BXRAFRBENROEBE (@
RERD ZRE  R-F—FF+ =
A=+—BREaREIR D BT S S B
BALAARREHITRAMNSZ.25% -
BERBREARBEBARZAAR AR
ETEEmAAR o RN X R E AT
R BERRERARARE - RBHA
mME(BESED BFRE)  REBEA -
BT EEMERIRN T 25% K IHHEFL
IREREBENSEEFRE - &
REESARARBEMARZMEAR
RAKY EMEHEEN—A—H -

RZZE-—ZTF+_A=1+—H BER
0 BB SR LN RBROO D FER
AR %58,000,0007t © AEAFETIR
REEERTISEETE - ZRANTR
BB HNE L ARG 2 FER
EEHERE - MRXD2EETBEANE
FEHEMRZEL N LA & L&
RREEHfEET

HBERMORIZLBHBA - MERA
BEEX B T LAGESH - WAGARBIRM

BEABMERZMBER AR TR
BliEHEXKEZBEBEENFERIRT
BLARBEAAEE BEZZT—=F
TZRA=1T—HLLFE AREBIKMT
BLEMBEURREBAEEENK - WASE
ERETAEESE TIEENRZBERG HE
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

a. Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)

Under the Share Award Scheme, the total percentage of equity
interest in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on
31 December 2010 was 3.25% of the issued capital of the Company
to be incorporated in connection with the proposed listing on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Awarded Shares, subject
to a vesting period, are being held by the trust on behalf of the
grantees. The vesting period is four years, from the beginning of
each instalment, during which 25% of the Award Shares granted to
employee will vest on each anniversary of the first vesting date in
equal portions. The first vesting date is 1 January of the year following
the Company to be successfully listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme at 31 December 2010 was RMB58,000,000, and was
determined by using a mix of asset-based and market approach. The
significant inputs into the model were estimated fair value of shares
at the grant date and estimated price-to-book ratio. The price-to-book
ratio is estimated by reference to comparable listed companies on the
Stock Exchange engaged in property development in the PRC.

The Awarded Shares are contingent at grant date and are subject
to the cancellation in the event of resignation of the grantees;
and the vesting conditions of successful listing of the Company'’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
satisfactory performance of such employee based on his or her
annual performance appraisal. During the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group recognised an expense in relation to the Awarded
Shares granted to certain employees of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB25,307,000 (2011: nil) as the vesting condition was
probable since the Listing Date.
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b. BRAMBEABRESS
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme")
adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012, the directors may invite
participants to take up options at a price determined by the board of
directors provided that it shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet on the date on which an offer is made by our Company to the
grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date"); (b) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date (provided that
the offer price shall be used as the closing price for any business day
falling within the period before listing of the shares of the Company
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days
as at the Offer Date); and (c) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of this annual report unless the Company
obtains a fresh approval from the shareholders to refresh the limit.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total
number of the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a general meeting
of the Company.

The option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may
be determined and notified by the board of directors to the grantee at
the time of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the grant date. As at 31 December 2012 and the date of this
report, no options have been granted or agreed to be granted pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme.
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38. BBt AR Z RiEER 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
BB sE21 M 24 B BB 5 45 644) - ZKN&  Apart from the balances with related parties set out in notes 21 and
BN ERNEERE T ETIATNEARS © 24, the Group entered into the following significant transactions with
its related parties during the year:

(a) HEVETAAR—LES (a) Sales of properties to a director of the Company

—2--F —T——F

2012 2011

ARBTRT ARETRT

RMB’000 RMB'000

[RIARIE 5 A tHEE W 3 Sales of properties to Mr. Lin Feng - 4,458

(b) B —EEBEARHEE—BHEL (b) Consideration received from disposal of a subsidiary (note

= (M EE31) MW ER R E 31) to a related company
—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EEE (MR ARSI AR /83258 (company controlled by Mr. Lin Zhong) = 20,000

HE-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HIEF The gain on disposal of such subsidiary amounted to RMB960,000
B HEZMBARIFEBYKZEEARYE  during the year ended 31 December 2011.
960,0007T °

(c) AEBETEZELZERIEMIEIT (¢) Financial guarantees provided by certain directors of the Group
REAME R B G EIR and Ultimate Shareholders for bank and other borrowings:

—e—-% —2——F
2012 2011

ARBTRE ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

RITREMEFRAA T ALER Bank and other borrowings
guaranteed by:

AR S Mr. Lin Zhong 300,000 1,314,406
SRR Ultimate Shareholders = 469,800

300,000 1,784,206
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(c)

G

(d)

Bl RZ K&t

(&)

R—TE——%+=-_fA=+—8  #Hpxst
FEMBEBRERRITREMERARE
1,784,206,000 7T 2 44 9 B 75 & (R 70 £ T 1% ff
& MARZZE——F+-A=+—0 ' 817
& E Ath & 7 A R #300,000,0007CHE [F A B R
R —E—=F= 5|5 -

R () AR AR R EE
P L DG
BB ABRS

(c)

Note:

(d)

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(Continued)

The financial guarantee provided by Mr. Lin Zhong and other Ultimate Shareholders
to bank and other borrowings of RMB1,784,206,000 as at 31 December 2011
were released upon the Listing, the remaining bank and other borrowings of
RMB300,000,000 as at 31 December 2012 with such guarantee will mature in March
2013.

Particulars of the amounts due from (to) Jiaxing Xucai, a related
company in which Mr. Lin Zhong, a controlling shareholder and
director of the Company, has control:

—EF--F ZT—F

2012 2011
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
REFEBENESUWA Rental income from Jiaxing Xucai 14,271 -
ElEEBrmEELRS Rental deposit received from Jiaxing Xucai (6,000) (16,000)

P RE -

(e)

RZZT——F A AEEEZHEHBYH—E
BEMET L HERZ  ARTAF - TR
T——F+-_A=+-HR-F-——-HF+_4
=-+—H% 5lm 5= E B EER A K#16,000,000
TR AR ¥6,000,0007c{E AR E RS o LIS
B NCLTHERSHESRAAR
14,271,0007c( =T ——4F : &) - DIREBEHEER
BEHNESENEE—E——F+-_A=1+—
B I FEMERE 2EK A P IR o

FENANRBHER R R EFMF L
R FRIRR S -

Note:

(e)

The Group entered into a lease agreement with Jiaxing Xucai for a term of fifteen years
in respect of an investment property in June 2011, RMB16,000,000 and RMB6,000,000
were received from Jiaxing Xucai as the deposit of the lease at 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2012 respectively. Rental income from this operating lease with Jiaxing
Xucai of RMB14,271,000 (2011: nil) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012 on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease agreement.

Particulars of the amount due to Mr. Lin Zhong, a controlling
shareholder and director of the Company:

—B--F T —F

2012 2011
AR¥TRT ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ERARREBHA Amount due to a director of the Company:
Naebivta Mr. Lin Zhong - 2,871
() READHHEENZEEIAAFTESE (f) The remuneration paid and payable to the key management

MAEBEZEE A EMEFIERN
BfEE12 o

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

personnel of the Group who are also the directors of the
Company for the year is set out in note 12.
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39. EXEEERE
AEBMEBREERUBREAETETE
BEARELY RSB ANEERR
AR S A B IR RS R A B4R

AEBNEAZERBEFEE  MER
B BRI 26 PT B ER (8 X (FIRR IR & 3R
T FHFEY) RARRHEE ARG AED
(BEEETRAE - BERERENE) -

ARBEFTEHRASERRE - ERZ
Higs HP—R - AAREEEEER
AR R EARBRAMER - PRI
BAETETEEBEANRRE -

40. €@ T A

a. BEASFEE

ERRELHEE 2RABRBRAT
BFTRANEASHBE (BIEERN K
%) FrENEERIKA KA ERHE
EERE BN -

b. £©BMTIAMNESR

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 25 net of cash and cash equivalents,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments are
disclosed in note 4.

b. Categories of financial instruments

—EB--F —T——F
2012 2011
ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets
A EERE Available-for-sale investment 9,463 9,463
B EW A Loans and receivables
(BEREMRESEEY) (including cash and cash equivalents) 5,825,659 2,966,532
==L Financial liabilities
-SRI Amortised cost 11,846,493 9,614,369
B HE(R Financial guarantees - -
BMAROTAET A Embedded derivatives 85,000 132,000
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investment, financial guarantees in respect of mortgage bank loans
granted to purchasers, trade receivables, other receivables, restricted
cash, bank balances and cash, amounts due from/to non-controlling
interests, trade payables, other payables, bank and other borrowings
and trust and other loans related derivatives. Details of these financial
instruments are set out in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

d. Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market risks of changes
in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other price risk
(see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk
over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank deposits and
bank and other borrowings which carry at variable rates based on the
interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China plus a premium
and fixed rates agreed with respective banks in Hong Kong.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed
rate amounts due to non-controlling interests and bank and other
borrowings. The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

d. Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (bank
balances and bank and other borrowings). The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point increase or decrease for bank and other borrowings and a 50
basis point increase or decrease for bank deposits are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the possible change
in interest rate in respect of bank and other borrowings and bank
deposits respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 and 50 basis points in respect of bank and other
borrowings and bank deposits respectively and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB8,114,000 (2011: RMB2,489,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as well
as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has bank balances and cash and
bank borrowings denominated in foreign currencies as set out in notes
23 and 25, respectively, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

d. Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency rate sensitivity

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2011:
5%) increase and decrease in Renminbi against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjust their translation at the end of reporting period of 5% (2011:
5%) changes in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit where Renminbi strengthen 5% (2011:
5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2011: 5%) weakening
of Renminbi against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the balances below would be
negative.

—F-=F —T——F%

2012 2011

AR®BTRT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BT Hong Kong Dollars 28,387 2,391
E United States Dollars 5,005 474

e. FERKBER
RBEEHR - REBAAZITREEFH
REBITEERASBATE LM BER
ﬁ@ﬁ$$.“fﬁ%%ﬁmﬁﬁfﬁ
C DEABEEMBARREAF
xEﬁm%ﬂﬁF%%@ﬁ DA R Bt 5
FMEBRXABELRE - AR EERR
PEERIK - BITEEREF AR
EELTT@JW@%@EHE%% BEoh - AEE
Fiﬁiﬁﬁﬂiiﬁ;@%ﬁlﬁflﬁff%&ﬁ
ftb FEWURRIR ~ B UK B B B RIE K B U
EEFIENAIKEEE - ﬁﬁﬁ/‘ﬂt?——ﬂl&
B EIEH T D HREEIE - 2504
EMBRRERT NSRBI EHGRRER
B YHASEEREERTILR
K HE R R QBRI EE 5T -

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

e. Credit risk management

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the amount of
contingent liabilities disclosed in note 36. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that
follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and amounts due from directors at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position are net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and
their assessment of the current economic environment.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

e. Credit risk management (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has
no significant concentration of credit risk, which exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and customers.

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 80% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser defaults on
the payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee, the bank
holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such circumstances,
the Group is able to forfeit the sales deposit received and re-sell
the repossessed properties. Therefore, the management considers
it would likely recover any loss incurred arising from the guarantee
by the Group. The management considers the credit risk exposure
to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited
because the facilities are secured by the properties and the market
prices of the properties are higher than the guaranteed amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

f. Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding generated from operating activities and the flexibility through
the use of borrowings. The directors of the Company closely monitor
the liquidity position and expect to have adequate sources of funding
to finance the Group's projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s expected remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

f.  Liquidity risk (Continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The analysis for the Group's
derivative financial instruments are prepared based on the maturities
estimated by the management with reference to the progress of
property development projects.

R=B-2%
t-h=t+-A
HREE FERRER
Carrying 2l
amount at 6121808 18123658 IFHE Total
Fl= 31 December 0260 610180 181 to 365 122 123 Over  undiscounted
Interest rate 012 0-60 days days days 1-2years 2-3years 3years cash flows
ARET T ARBT T ARBTT ARET T ARBTT ARBT T ARBTT ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KTt eREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
T8 Non-interest bearing - 3,003,265 3,003,265 - - - = = 3,003,265
FEIE Fixed interest rate instruments 28%19% 2,785,670 571,041 922,199 881,49 1,093,805 - - 2,955,147
#8IR Variable interest rate instruments 6.15%-24.2% 6,079,738 90,676 11913 1,576,684 2,936,103 1,531,066 1,353,081 1,705,523
BHER Financial guarantees - - - - 1,667,296 - - - 1,667,296
TEIA-LEFE Derivatives - net settlement
EXREMETRBETETE  Trustand other loans related derivatives - 85,000 - - - 126,960 - - 126,960
RZE—F
+-A=1+-H
HREE FURRE R
Carmying &%
amount at 61Z180A 18123658 IEBE Total
= 31 December 0Z60H 6110180 18110365 1205 1RYE Over undiscounted
Interest rate m 0-60 days days days 12 years 23 years 3years cash flows
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB1000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB000
HiEeREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
TEE Non-interest bearing - 1,737,184 1737184 - - - - - 1,737,184
FEIA Fixed interest rate instruments 594%-16.8% 2,393,680 mIn 534,324 787,054 969,060 3125 - 2594286
FEIE Viariable interest rate instruments 6.65%-24.2% 5,483,505 80,075 405,548 338,508 2430647 2,667,966 609,746 6,532,490
BIEER Financial guarantees - - - - 49,834 - - - 49,834
TEIE-BEBE Derivatives - net settlement
EEREMETRBEHTETE  Trustand other loans related derivatives - 132,000 - - 60,000 - 139728 - 199728
BEER(EE)ERAA | —F——FF5% 169
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

f.  Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

g. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities stated at
amortised cost (excluding derivative instruments) is determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis;

- the fair value of trust and other loans related financial derivative
instruments is calculated using Monte Carlo simulation by
considering a number of parameters including volatility, credit
spread, risk free rate, property selling prices of the project and
the property development plan estimated by management.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values at the end of each reporting period respectively.

h. Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Trust related financial derivatives are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value and is grouped into Level 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable. Level 3 fair value
measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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41. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Financial information of the financial position of the Company:

—E2--F T —F
2012 2011
AR®TRT ARETT
RMB’000 R\B'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - R NERE Property, plant and equipment 1,080 1,694
R BATHIEE Investments in subsidiaries 166,099 -
JE U BB 1 B FA B Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,310,116 173,812
1,477,295 175,506
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
JRE M5 B R I LAt FELSURRIE Accounts and other receivables, deposits
Re MIB A and prepayments 2,864 9,831
W7 LRES Bank balances and cash 394,499 506,729
397,363 516,560
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEITER SR S B AT R 2 Accounts payable and accrued charges 34,724 2,475
EN—%ESF0E Amount due to a director — 2,871
RITER——FRFHh Bank borrowing — due within one year 375,840 140,940
410,564 146,286
RE(EE)EERE NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (13,201) 370,274
HWEERRBARE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,464,094 545,780
EXRG#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
kN Share capital 467,370 10,449
1 Reserves 996,724 206,471
AR 5 TOTAL EQUITY 1.464,094 216,920
EREBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
RITEN——F1&2H Bank borrowing — due after one year - 328,860
1,464,094 545,780

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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4. XRFNHBER @) 41. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) ARBERKFHEES : (b) Movement of capital and reserves of the Company:
LA
A R &E Capital 25 B8
Share Share contribution ~ Accumulated k]
capital premium reserve losses Total
AEETT  ARETT ARETT AR%Tn ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
FAREMAK L B & At date of incorporation - - - _ _
B-E—FHA-1H Loss and total comprehensive

(kA RZE expense for the period from

ZF——F+Zf=1-H 20 May 2011 (date of incorporation)

RN BERE AR X 258 0 31 December 2011 - - - (29971) (29971)
ki Issue of shares 10449 236,442 - - 246,891
N = At31 December 2011 10,449 236,442 - (29971) 216920
FREERZARATEE Loss and total comprehensive expense

for the year - - - (55,347) (55,347)

RIDVERL BT Capitalisation issue of shares 355,266 (355,266) - - -

BELMRRHET Issue of shares in connection with
the Listing 101,655 1,250,357 - - 1,362,012
RETREY Share issue expenses - (74,798) - - (74,799)
ANRAESEET RGO Recognition of equity-settled

share based payments - - 5,307 - 25,307

R=%-=F+=A=t-A At31 December 2012 WIA0  1067% 200 G318 146409
(c) RHMIBATKIKRE (c) Investments in subsidiaries

—F--F —T——F

2012 2011

AR¥ETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

FE ETRD GRIEERAR) Unlisted share, at deemed cost 166,099 -

d EBR(EFS)KMELR, —BEE (d)

I

K (A MBRR, —REEREAR
EER  RRNRRERER -
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Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries/a director

The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries and a director are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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41. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(e) Bank borrowing

In 2011, the Company borrowed from a bank for a fixed-rate
borrowing of RMB469,800,000 at 8%, 10% and 12% per annum
for first 12 months, 13 to 18 months and 19 to 24 months,
respectively as stipulated in the agreement. The loan was secured
by 115,128,000 shares of the Company beneficially owned by the
Ultimate Shareholders and guaranteed by the shareholder companies
beneficially owned by the Ultimate Shareholders.

Such security and guarantee was released upon the Listing. Included
in the outstanding balance at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2012, RMB93,960,000 was settled in 2012, the remaining balance is
fully repayable in 2013.

42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012
and 2011 are set out below:

F5E
W+=A=+-H
BAUTZAYE:L ) Felb kg
B Equity interest attributable BRIRARRE S2HE
HENBARLHE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of direct subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
8- _T——F
2012 2011
% %
JBRBRAR EERES 100 100 dMER  &E REER
Xu Sheng Limited —E——5HANE 50000%7  Hong Kong Investment holding
BI ERENEL
9May 2011 Registered
USD50,000
paid up capital
UsD1

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR
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42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
m+=R=1+—H
BajAvE Y e
HEA Equity interest attributable ERIREERA  EEHI
HEHBAREH Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—2--f “T——F%
2012 2011
% %
ETRBRNREEARAE  PE 100 97.% AMER  hE MEER
(P3E) e 3 ARH30000000T  PRC Property management
Beijing Xudong Property EA=1-H BHER
Management Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR 3,000,007
31 May 2002 Registered
RMB3,000,000
paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
TREEERNEXARAE  PE 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
(Pi3E) ZETNF ARH100000000  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingke NA+ZH BHEAR
Property Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AEE#100,000,0007T
12 August 2009 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TREERREXARAE  PE 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
(P3E) ZETNF ARH1000000007  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingteng NA+ZH BHEAR
Property Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AEE#100,000,0007T
12 August 2009 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

REHE
W+=ZR=+-H
BauiZAvE:LE )54 FElb kg
B Equity interest attributable ERTRAERA  TEHE
B AR AR Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid  Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
8- _T——F
2012 2011
% %
ERKBEEBRAR (M) +E 100 97.% HMER  E FHERE
Beijing Yongxu Property Co, Ltd. ~ —ZFF ARE20,0000007T PR Property development
(note) mARHA BEHEAR
PRC A #20,000,0007C
5 April 2004 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
TREBEXARAA(MEE) +E 100 97.% HMER  E FHERE
Beijing Wangxin Property Co, Ltd. =TT =F ARE100000007c  PRC Property development
note) +=ZANR BEHEAR
PRC A 10,000,007
8 December 2003 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
ROBHEHEREERAR F 100 97.9 FMER FHERE
(P3E) “ETLF ARH500000007T  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuxiang Real Estate NAZ1E BHEKR
Development Co., Ltd. note PRC AR 50,000,0007C
20 August 2007 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMB50,000,000

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

r5E
R+ZR=+—H
BEAUTZAYE:LE ) Felb kg
=p: Equity interest attributable BRIRARRE S2HE
HEZHBAREH Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“%-z=f —2—F
2012 2011
% %
ERMEBEHEREERAR H 100 97.95 FfiER FEERE
(Pi3E) “TTRF ARH800000007C  PRC Property development
Chongging Xupeng Real +AmA BEHEAR
Estate Development PRC AR E80,000,0007T
Co., Ltd. (note) 4 July 2005 Registered
RMB80,000,000
paid up capital
RIVIB80,000,000
JEEEERGHBRAR (M) HE 100 97.95 SfER  HE REER
CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (note] “ETTEF AEH5600,0000000  PRC Investment holding
NA+RA EYER
PRC AR 600,000,0007C
15 August 2000 Registered
RMB600,000,000
paid up capital
RMBG600,000,000
BEREBRAF BiE 100 100 EEER BB RERR
(BTFECIFI (Holdings) Group —E——F 100007 Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited) hA+=H ERERTETL
CIFI Enterprises Co. Limited (formerly Hong Kong Authorised
known as CIFl {Holdings) Group 12 May 2011 HK$10,000
Company Limited) paid up capital
HKS1
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
Bl R TEfGHRIE
=z Equity interest attributable BEIRBRRE A2
Gt YNIE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—B-Zf _T——F
2012 201
% %
IEZEETHEEEERLR HE 100 100 afiEx  HE RERR
(Pi3E) —E——F 1000000057  PRC Investment holding
Shanghai Hanpuka NA+tH BHEX
Commercial Management Co,,  PRC 1,500,000% 0
Ltd. (note) 17 August 2011 Registered
USD10,000,000
paid up capital
USD1,500,000
BNEBFHEREBRAR + 100 97.95 AftEx AH FiERE
(Pi3E) “TTNEF AK#100000007T  PRC Property development
Fuzhou Wancheng Real Estate tA+ImA BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #10,000,0007T
14 July 2004 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
BMNBRFEHEREBRAR + - 97.95 GfiEx FiERE
(Pi3E) “TTHE AK#100000007c  PRC Property development
Fuzhou Xuteng Real Estate ZAZtN\R BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #10,000,0007T
28 February 2005 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

fBiEER (KRB BRAR | —T——FFH

177



B3 0 R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FEMBATFHERB @

42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

piy-3
W+ZR=+-H
TR R JE(h AR E
H Equity interest attributable ERETRAERA  REHE
B AR AR Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TEEH
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E-Zf “Z——F
2012 201
% %
BMXAMEERBB LR HE - 97.95 AftER HE NEER
(P3E) —NWANE ARH10000007  PRC Property management
Fuzhou Yongsheng Property +—A++A EHEKR
Management Co., Ltd. (note| PRC AFREE1,000,0007T
17 November 1999 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
BNKABHEREERAR + - 97.95 iAftEx A FiERE
(Btzx) -AANE ARE100000007  PRC Property development
Fuzhou Yongsheng Real Estate +=A+—H EHEKR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AE£10,000,0007T
11 December 1998 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
EEREEHEREERAR + 100 97.95 iAftEx A FiERE
(Bzx) “TTtE ARH500000007  PRC Property development
Hefei Xuhai Real Estate Development  +— A+ =F EHEKR
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A #50,000,0007T
12 November 2007 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA50,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

T£E
W+=ZRA=+-H
Bai LY FEfGARIE
H Equity interest attributable BETRBRRE K
FEHBARRE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E--f —Z——F
2012 201
% %
HEEREXERARLA  E 100 979 AMER  E FHERE
(P3E) “EEAE AEH500000007T  PRC Property development
Hunan Longsheng Property TA=-tAE BHER
Development Co., Ltd. note] PRC AR 50,000,007
29 May 2006 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA50,000,000
HEBREHEERAR il 53 5191 FHER  E EERE
(P3E) “TTRE ARH1700000007  PRC Property development
Shanghai Haiji Real Estate Co., ltd. ~ =A+—E BHER
(note) PRC AE#£90,100,0007T
11 March 2005 Registered
RMB170,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA90,100,000
TERERERRERAR PE 755 739 AMER  E FHERE
(P3E) “TTHF AEH100000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Tongshuo Real Estate —“A—8 BHER
Development Co., Ltd. note] PRC AREET 550,0007T
1 February 2005 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB7,550,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F£E
W+=ZR=+-H
B FEfGARIE
H Equity interest attributable BETRARRE K
e = UNGIE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E--f —Z——F
2012 201
% %
TEEREXERARLNA  HE 100 979 AMER  hE FHERE
(P3E) —AANE ARH300000007  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xinchen Property mA+mA BHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AE#£30,000,0007T
14 April 1998 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
LEREESEGB AR " 100 979 AMER  hE FHERE
(P3E) TR AEH800000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xinbo Real Estate Co., Ltd = A+=E BHER
(note) PRC AE#80,000,0007T
13 March 2003 Registered
RMB80,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB0,000,000
DEMBRETRARDA  +E 100 979 AMER  E MERR
(P3E) “TTHF AEH600000007T  PRC Property construction
Shanghai Xinzhi Construction Co., Ltd.  +A=1E BHER
(note) PRC A #£60,000,0007T
20 July 2005 Registered
RMB60,000,000
paid up capital
RMBG0,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

r5E
RTZA=1—H
TR R JEfGRIE
R Equity interest attributable BRIREERA  EEHI
tENGIES Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TBEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—2--f “T——F%
2012 2011
% %
DEMERELAERAR  TE 100 100 AfMER  E REER
(PzE) —ZTRE ARH1600000007T  PRC Investment holding
Shanghai Xuhui Investment Advisory ~ +— A LA BHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 160,000,000
9 November 2006 Registered
RMB160,000,000
paid up capital
RMB160,000,000
JEEL( LB RABRBRAR HE 100 100 SMEx @ B
(Pi3E) “TTHE ARH20000007T  PRC Investment holding
Xukai (Shanghai Investment mANB EHER
Consultant Co., Ltd. [note) PRC AR 20,000,0007T
8 April 2005 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
DERERFREER i 100 97.95 AfMER  E MEER
BREAR(M) —E-ZF AE®200000007,  PRC Property management
Shanghai Xumei Business Investment 75 8/\ B BHEAR
Management Co., Ltd. (note] PRC AR 120,000,007
8June 2010 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

T5E
W+=ZR=t-H
BauIZAVE:LE )5 FEfhRiE
H Equity interest attributable BETRARRE K
B ARBE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—8--F Z%F
2012 2011
% %
FEREEXARARA(MGE) SE 100 979 HMER  BE FHERE
Shanghai Xubo Property Co., Ltd. ~ —Z—ZF AKH1000000007c  PRC Property development
note) HA+TEA BHER
PRC AR H100,000,0007T
14 May 2010 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
FBRAIEXARAR(MEE) SE 100 979 HMER  BE FHERE
Shanghai Xuchuang Property Co, Ltd. —~EZ+ % ARH60000,0007C  PRC Property development
(note) NA+T—H BHER
PRC AR E60,000,0007T
11 September 2007 Registered
RMB60,000,000
paid up capital
RMB60,000,000
FRREEXARARA(MEE) SE 100 979 HMER  BE FHERE
Shanghai Xuhui Property Co., Ltd. ~ —ZZNF ARH35,0000007  PRC Property development
note) +A+HEA BHER
PRC AR 35,000,000
14 October 2009 Registered
RMB35,000,000
paid up capital
RMB35,000,000
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REHE
W+=ZR=t-H
BaUIZAVE:LE )5 FElh R
H Equity interest attributable BETRBRRE K
FEHBAFRE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
8- _T—F
2012 201
% %
LRRAEEARAA(MEE) PE 100 979 HMER  BE FHERE
Shanghai Xuming Property o, L. —Z—ZF ARH1000000007t  PRC Property development
(note) +=A=t/N\H BHER
PRC AR H100,000,0007T
28 December 2010 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TRBEXARAA(MEE) PE 9 %.01 HMER  BE FHERE
Shanghai Xupu Property Co, Ld. =TT =F ARH300000007  PRC Property development
(note) +—A%H BHER
PRC AR 29,100,000
5 November 2003 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB29,100,000
TEREHEREERAR PE 100 979 AR BE RAEEERIERS
(FizE) —EENE AER®10000007,  PRC Provision of property agency
Shanghai Xusheng Real Estate +-A=t++H BHEXR service
Agency Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AEH1,000,0007T
27 November 2006 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
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42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BAITZAYE:L ) FEfGHRIE
B Equity interest attributable BRIRARRE S2HE
AEBARAHE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—E--f T——F
2012 2011
% %
LBRERHEREERAR + 100 97.95 AfER FHERE
(PaT) “TTHE ARH800000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xufeng Real Estate —A-+EA BERAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #580,000,0007
25 January 2005 Registered
RMBB0,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB0,000,000
LBRREEERAR th 100 97.95 AfER FHERE
(PaT) —T-TF ARH590000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xutai Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ +—AFLA BERAR
(note) PRC A #59,000,0007T
5 November 2010 Registered
RMB59,000,000
paid up capital
RMB59,000,000
DEKERHEREERAR + 100 97.95 AER FHERE
(PaT) “TT-F AKH100000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Yonghui Real Estate MA+AR ERAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #10,000,0007
18 April 2001 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

3L
RTZA=1—H
AL R FEiGRIE
R Equity interest attributable ERIREERA eI
NGRS Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—2--f “T——F
2012 201
% %
DEKANEERBRAR  H 100 97.95 #MER  FE MEER
(PzE) “TT-F ARH100000007T  PRC Property management
Shanghai Yongsheng Property EA=1-H BHEXR
Management Co., Ltd. (note] PRC A 10,000,007t
31 May 2002 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
LBERRERNEA i 100 97.95 HfER  H Rt AR
BREAR(M) T AE#10000007,  PRC Provision of consultancy
Shanghai Yijian Architectural Design ~ /\A+=H BHEAR services
& Consulting Co., Ltd. note) PRC ARH1,000,0007T
12 August 2002 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
EFXABRRREBRAR HE 100 97.95 #MER  FE FHERE
(Pi3E) “NEE ARB450000007T  PRC Property development
Xiamen Yongsheng Enterprise +-A=1H BHEXR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 45,000,007
20 November 1997 Registered
RMBA45,000,000
paid up capital
RMB45,000,000

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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42. FEMBATFEB @

42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
W+ZR=+—H
BAITZAYE:L ) FElbkiE
B Equity interest attributable BRIRARRE S2HE
BEHBARAHE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—E--f T——F
2012 2011
% %
EFTANERBERLR FE 100 97.95 AMER  E MEER
(PaT) —NEE ARH300000007T  PRC Property management
Xiamen Yongsheng Property Services  +—A+=H BERAR
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC A #30,000,0007T
13 November 1995 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
HIMBIENERE i 100 97.95 FfiER FHERE
BRAR(M) “EENEF AR#200000007T  PRC Property development
Zhenjiang City Xujiang Real Estate ~~ — A9 A BEHAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #20,100,0007T
4 February 2008 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,100,000
BITEREERE i 100 97.% AMER  hE FHER
BRAR(M) —T-ZF ARH500000007T  PRC Property development
Zhenjiang City Xurun Real Estate tA+TNE EHAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #50,000,0007
19 July 2010 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

REHE
W+ZR=+-H
BauIZAvE:LE )54 Felb g
B} Equity interest attributable BETRERRE A=t
B AR AR Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E--f —E——F
2012 2011
% %
MLBBEXBRARA(MEE) +E 100 97.% HMER  HE FHERE
Zhejiang Xuhui Property Co, Ltd. ~ —ZZTRE ARH1000000007T  PRC Property development
(note) NAZ+=H FHER
PRC AR E100,000,0007T
23 August 2006 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
hEEHEREERAR th 100 97.9 afiEAx FHERE
(P3E) “ETNE ARH1000000007T  PRC Property development
Zhongshi Real Estate Development ~~ +—A+7UE EHEXR
Co., Ltd. (note] PRC AR E100,000,0007T
14 November 2006 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
HFNBERHMEXARRA  +E 100 97.% HMER  HE FiERE
(P3E) “ETHE ARH6490000007T  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui High-Tech Property o, T = A=E EHEKR
Ltd. (note) PRC AR #649,000,0007T
3 December 2009 Registered
RIMB649,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB649,000,000
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42. FEMBATFEB @

42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

r5E
Wt=A=+-H
BAITZAYE:L )5 Felb kg
=p:t Equity interest attributable BERIRARRE S2uE
NGRS Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
~F--f ZFF
2012 2011
% %
FNBBEXERAA(HEE) + 100 97.95 AfER FHERME
Suzhou Xuhui Property ColLtd. (note) —ZZ+F AEH1400000007  PRC Property development
=RA+=H EYER
PRC AR 140,000,000
13 March 2007 Registered
RMB140,000,000
paid up capital
RMB140,000,000
FIEERREXERLA P 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
(PaE) “EENE AK#191,0000007T  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui Xingteng Property Co,  +—A=E EHER
Ltd. (note) PRC AR 191,000,000
3 December 2009 Registered
RMB191,000,000
paid up capital
RMB191,000,000
FTREBGAEFERAR H 80 78.36 afiEx  HE FERE
(PaE) —E-F AKH1000000007T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Sunshine Property Co,  —A+=H ERAR
Ltd. (note) PRC AR E80,000,0007T
13 January 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RIVIB80,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F£E
W+ZR=1-H
TR R FEfGHRIE
B} Equity interest attributable BETRERRE &£
B ARBE Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid  Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E--f —Z——F
2012 201
% %
ERBENERERAT " 100 979 HMER  BE FHERE
(P3E) % ARH100000007T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuxingcheng Property Co., Ltd.  —A+=E BHEXR
(note) PRC A #£10,000,0007T
13 January 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
REMEHEERARNA  HE 100 979 HMER  BE MEER
(P3E) —E—f ARH50000007T  PRC Property management
Jiaxing Xumei Business Management  — A =+H BHEXR
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AEH5,000,0007T
20 January 2011 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
ERMERHERE i 100 97.95 FHER FEiERE
BRAR (M) % ARH20000007T  PRC Property development
Chongging Xuchang Real Estate =A+A BHEXR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AE1£20,000,0007T
10 March 2011 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

REHE
W+ZR=+-H
BauiZAvE:LE )4 FElE kg
A Equity interest attributable BETREGERA LI
B AR AR Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E-Zf “Z——F
2012 2011
% %
aEBERHEREERAR + 100 97.9 afEx  HE FHERME
(Bzx) —T——F AEH2000000007c  PRC Property development
Hefei Xubin Real Estate Development  — A+ B EHER
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 200,000,007
19 January 2011 Registered
RMB200,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB200,000,000
LBRAEXERARME) + 100 97.9 afEx  HE FHERE
Shanghai Xubang Property Co,, Ltd. —Z——4 AK®30000000T  PRC Property development
note) MA+HH EHER
PRC AZ 30,000,007
14 April 2011 Registered
RIMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
LBREEXERARME) + 100 97.9 afEx  HE FHERME
Shanghai Xuyu Property “E——F AE390000007  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) —A+Z=H EHEAR
PRC AR #39,000,0007C
12 January 2011 Registered
RIVB39,000,000
paid up capital
RMB39,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
WTZA=1—H
TR R JEfGRIE
B Equity interest attributable BRIREGERA  EEHI
BEHBAREHR Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TBEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—2--f “T——F%
2012 2011
% %
ROBBRIERE " 100 979 AMER  hE FHERE
BRAR(HE) —T——F ARH100000000T  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuhai Real Estate ~ATH BEHAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note] PRC ARE100,000,0007T
10 June 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TREERBEXARAE  PE 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
(Pi3E) —E——F AR#10000000  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingsheng Property Co. 75 A7 8 BEHAR
Ltd. [note] PRC AE#10,000,0007T
16 June 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
LERRERBRAA " 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
(P3E) —E——F ARH10000000  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xujia Property Co., Ltd. ~AZt=H BHER
(note) PRC AE#10,000,0007T
23 June 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

191



B3 Y R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

r5E
R+ZR=+—H
BRUTZAVE:E ) Felb kg
=p Equity interest attributable BREIRARRE S2HE
REHBARRHE Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid  Place of TRER
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—g-=f 3%
2012 2011
% %
EIBEE X F i ERE " 80 78.36 AMER  E FHERE
BRAR () “E——F AEE100000007  PRC Property development
Tangshan Xuhui Yiwen Real Estate £ A+ H BEHAXR
Development Co.Ltd. (note) PRC AR 8,000,007
7 July 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
REBEEERE e 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
BRAR () “F——F AEE1000000007  PRC Property development
Tianjin Xuhai Real Estate NARA BEHAKR
Development Co.Ltd. (note) PRC AR E100,000,0007T
5 August 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
BB ELARAR i 100 979 AMER  HE FHERE
(i3 % ARH100000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xugiang Property Co., Ltd. ~ LAT/LE BEHAKR
(note) PRC AE#10,000,0007T
19 September 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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r5E
R+ZRA=+—H
RATZAVE:LE ) FelbkiE
B Equity interest attributable BRIRARRE S2HE
HIEZNBAREH Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
“E--f T——F
2012 2011
% %
ROTIEEFHERE i 100 97.95 AfER FHERE
BRAR(H) —F——F AR#10000000  PRC Property development
Changsha Lilongchang Real Estate ~~ /LA7<H BERAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note] PRC ARE10,000,0007T
6 September 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RIB10,000,000
JBEBRAR EBRUES 100 100 dMER  &E RERER
Xu Ming Limited —F——F 5000037C  Hong Kong Investment holding
NA=1A EYER
BVI (ESp
20 September 2011 Registered
USD50,000
paid up capital
USD1
B2 (BE)RRAT Bk 100 100 EERER  BA RERER
XuMing (HK) Limited “F——F 10,000/87c  Hong Kong Investment holding
AAZt++E EYER
Hong Kong 1B
21 September 2011 Authorised
HK$10,000
paid up capital
HKS1

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR
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42. TEMBARIFE® 42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
R+ZR=+—-H
BaBAvE Y JEfGRIE
=p: Equity interest attributable BREIRARRE S2HE
HENBAREHRE Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—2--f “T——F%
2012 2011
% %
TRERRREXARAR  PE 100 97.% AMER  hE FHERE
(i3 —F——F AKH1000000007T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Shunxin Property Co,  +=A+=H BEHAR
Ltd. {note) PRC ARE100,000,0007T
12 December 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
FNBREXERAA i 100 - #fER  HE FEiERE
(3 —T—F ARH560,0000007T  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xu Ming Property A=A BEHAKR
Development Co., Ltd. (note] PRC AR E557,716,7107T
29 May 2012 Registered
RMB560,000,000
paid up capital
RMB557,716,710
REMBREIEEXRER t 100 - HfiER  H FEiERE
BRAR () —E--F 200000007 PRC Property development
Tianjin Xu Bin Creative Industrial Park A =1 HH BEHAXR
Managements Limited (note) PRC z
25 July 2012 Registered
USD20,000,000
paid up capital

nil
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

piy-3 ]
W+ZR=+-H
TR R FEfGHRIE
B Equity interest attributable DRIRERRA LI
B AR AR Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TEEH
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
8- _T——F
2012 201
% %
LEBREXARAR i 100 - AftEx A FiERE
(Bzx) —T-—F AEH100000007  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xutong Property Co,, Ltd. ~ \A/\R EHEX
(note) PRC AZ 10,000,007
8 August 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
REM R ERE i 51 - afigAx FiERE
BRAA () “E-ZF ANEE612245007t  PRC Property development
Tianjin Shijixing Real Estate MA+7<A EHEX
Development Co. Limited (note) ~ PRC ARH31,224,5007C
16 April 2010 Registered
RMB61,224,500
paid up capital
RMB31,224,500
LBBHNEEARAR i 100 - AftEx A FHERE
(Bzx) —T-—F AEH100000007  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xuhe Property Co., Ltd. +A=+mA EHER
(note) PRC AZ%10,000,0007C
24 October 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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42. FEMBATFHEB @

42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

AEHE
W+ZRA=+—H
BRIAEE DY FEfGHRIE
B Equity interest attributable BREIRARRE S2HE
NGRS Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
2 T——F
2012 2011
% %
FTREBEREEARAR H 100 - afiER EHERE
(i3 S AR#10000000  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Shuntai Property +—A BERAR
Co. Ltd. [note| PRC ARE10,000,0007T
11 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
IRBREESERAA Bl 100 - afEx  FE EHERE
(i3 S AR#10000000  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuxinglong Property +—A BERAR
Co. Ltd. [note] PRC ARE10,000,0007T
11 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
RORERHEREERAR + 100 - afiER EHERE
(i3 S AR#10000000  PRC Property development
Changsha Dingzun Real Estate 7~H BERAR
Development Co. Limited (note) ~ PRC ARE10,000,0007T
6 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
piy-3
W+ZR=+-H
BRI FEfGRIE
A Equity interest attributable ERIRAERA  REHE
B AR AR Place and date of to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
8- _T——F
2012 201
% %
ROBNEERE hE 100 - AftER HE FiERE
BRAR (M) —E-F+ZA AR#80000007T  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuhe Real Estate ~“+ZH EHEKR
Development Co. Limited (note] ~ PRC AR 8,000,0007C
22 December 2012 Registered
RMB8,000,000
paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
FNESEXBRARA (M) +E 100 - AMER  E FHERE
Suzhou Xuyang Property ZE-CFTZA ARE10000000T  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) s el = BEHER
PRC ARE10,000,0007T
22 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
EEERBEARARA(ME) PE 100 - AftER HE FiERE
Shanghai Xuxiang Property “E-CFTZA ARH50000000  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) A BEHER
PRC ABR5,000,0007T
10 December 2012 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

BB (EE) AR AR | —T——FFR

197



B3 4 1 85 R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FEMBATFHEB @

42. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

T5E
Rt=A=+-8H
BauIZAvE:LE )5 FelE g
HE Equity interest attributable BRIIRARRE SL2u%
N EUNGIE Place and date of to the Group Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation at 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
B —T——F
2012 2011
% %
EEBABEEARAA M) FE 100 - HMER  E FHERE
Shanghai Xuwei Property Co. L.~ —F =% 1A AR50000000c  PRC Property development
(note) TH BFHER
PRC ABRHES,000,00070
10 December 2012 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

MiEE © RS AR EEMERER AR - HE
EXEBIRARANER BB NEEFER XA
RSO o

FRINMEZRATEZEFARAEAN
BAAREEEEFERRNIDHARE
MEBAR - EER A HEMHE QA

HERSHTBNATE -
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Note: The English names of these companies represent the best effort made by management
of the Company to directly translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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43. HEHREKEE

RZTE—=F—AH  A&HEF]
TP EEAER  UREHARE
182,200,000 T Y £/ — 18 b Ay T3
EAE - BREBEERER  REAESHR
FR112 /990 B BB AT -

R-Z—=F—HA_-+/\B ' x&H
VT HEAR  UWKEBHARYE
1,340,000,000 7T 4 & K — 18 Ty +
Hh{E AR o

BB (EE) AR AR | —T— —FFR

43. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 6 January 2013, the Group entered into a land grant contract
acquiring land use rights of a parcel of land in Shanghai at a
consideration of approximately RMB182.2 million. Pursuant to the
contract terms, the consideration shall be paid in full within 90 days
upon signing of the contract.

On 28 January 2013, the Group entered into a land grant contract

acquiring land use rights of a parcel of land in Tianjin at a consideration
of approximately RMB1,340 million.
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Four Years’ Financial Summary

BET-A=1T—HLLFE

For the year ended 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009
—E--F —ZT——F ZZT-TF ZTTNF
RMB’'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
S RESULTS
A Revenue 8,143,949 4,008,330 4,162,440 2,631,460
MR FR AT AE Profit before taxation 2,839,643 2,204,504 1,034,007 710,799
ey Income taxes (818,809) (742,449) (359,046) (261,998)
FERF)E Profit for the year 2,020,834 1,462,055 674,961 448,801
LA ARG - Attributable to:
RKAREE A Owners of the Company 1,937,127 1,336,920 474176 342,045
el g Non-controlling interests 83,707 125,135 200,785 106,756
2,020,834 1,462,055 674,961 448,801
SRAEF - AR Earnings per share, RMB
AR Basic 0.42 0.30 A iE AN/A i@ FAN/A
E Diluted 0.42 0.30 TEFN/A N EAN/A
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 26,856,515 19,224,898 11,386,551 7,521,475
weE Total liabilities (19,915,921) (15,580,403) (8,777,785) (5,566,522)
6,940,594 3,644,495 2,608,766 1,954,953
RNATHER AFEAS Equity attributable to owners of
&N T the Company 6,549,528 3,270,628 1,835,312 1,371,136
FEVE IR Non-controlling interests 391,066 373,867 773,454 583,817
6,940,594 3,644,495 2,608,766 1,954,953
200 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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